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DRAFT

Camden Council

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Camden, the Best of Both Worlds
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Financai Staternents 2017
Camden Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Contents Page
1. Understanding Council’s Financial Statements 2
2. Statement by Councillors and Management 3
3. Executive Summary on the Financial Statements 4

4. Primary Financial Statements:

- Income Statement 6
- Statement of Comprehensive Income 7
— Statement of Financial Position 8
— Statement of Changes in Equity 9
— Statement of Cash Flows 10

5. Notes to the FinancialfS

RAFT

6. Independent Auditor’

- On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [2]) 83
- On the Conduct of the Audit (Sect 417 [3]) 85
Overview

(i) These financial statements are General Purpose Financial Statements and cover the operations for
Camden Council

(i) Camden Council is a body politic of NSW, Austraka — being constituted as a local government area
by proclamation and is duly empowered by the Local Government Act 1993 (LGA)

Council's guiding principles are detailed in Chapter 3 of the LGA and includes

* principles applying to the exercise of functions generally by Council,
¢ principles to be appbed when making decisions,

* principles of community participation,

* principles of sound financial management, and

* principles for strateg:c planning relating to the development of an integrated planning and reporting framework.
A descnption of the nature of Council's operations and its principal activities are provided in Note 2(b}
(i) Al figures presented in these financial statements are presented in Australian currency

(iv) These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Council on 24 October 2017
Council has the power to amend and reissue these financial statements.

page 1
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Camden Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financal Statements 2017

Understanding Council’s financial statements

Introduction

Each year, individual local governments across New
South Wales are required to present a set of audited
financial statements to their Council and Community,

What you will find in the statements

The financial statements set out the financial
performance, financial position and cash flows of
Council for the financial year ended 30 June 2017.

The format of the financial statements is standard
across all NSW Councils and complies wnh both lhe
accounting and reporting requisgiRea

Accounting Standards and
down by the Office of Local

About the Councillor/Manag

The financial statements must be cedified by senior
staff as ‘presenting fairly’ the Council's financial
results for the year and are required to be adopted
by Council — ensuring both responsibility for and
ownership of the financial statements.

About the primary financial statements

The financial statements incorporate five 'primary’
financial statements:

1. The Income Statement

Summarises Council's financial performance for the
year, listing all ncome and expenses.

This statement also displays Council's original
adopted budget to provide a comparison between
what was projected and what actually occurred.
2. The Statement of Comprehensive Income

Primarily records changes in the fair value of
Council's Infrastructure, Property, Plant and
Equipment.

3. The Statement of Financial Position

A 30 June snapshot of Council's financial position
indicating its assets, liabilities and “net wealth”.

4. The Statement of Changes in Equity

The overall change for the year (in dollars) of
Council's “net wealth”.

§. The Statement of Cash Flows

Indicates where Council's cash came from and
where it was spent. This statement also displays
Council's onginal adopted budget to provide a
comparison between what was projected and what
actually occurred.

About the Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide
greater detail and additional information on the five
primary financial statements.

1. an opinion on whether the financial statements
present fairly the Council's financial performance
and position, and

2. their observations on the conduct of the audit,
including commentary on the Council's financial
performance and financial position.

Who uses the financial statements?

The financial statements are publicly available
documents and must be presented at a Council
meeting between seven days and five weeks after
the date of the Audit Report.

The public can make submissions to Council up to
seven days subsequent to the public presentation of
the financial statements.

Council is required to forward an audited set of

financial statements to the Office of Local
Government,

page 2
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Financai Staternents 2017
Camden Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Statement by Councillors and Management
made pursuant to Section 413(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1893 (NSW) (as amended)

The attached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:
* the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended) and the regulations made thereunder,
* the Australian Accounting Standards and professional pronouncements, and

* the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these financial statements:

iks gpera It and fipanci il ar, and
@ \Rr

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

* present fairly the Cou

* accord with Council’s 3

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 24 October 2017.

Cr Lara Symkowsak Cr Theresa Fedeh

MAYOR DEPUTY MAYOR

Ron Moore Paul Rofe

GENERAL MANAGER RESPONSIBLE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

page 3
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Executive Summary — 2016/17 Annual Financial Statements

Camcen continues to be one of the fastest growing areas
In New South Wales with more than 150 new residents
per week This growth places substantial pressure on
Council's finances and rescurces. The cost of planning for
growth i an up front cost that is required before additional
rate income is realised through growth.

Council works closely with all levels of Government and
the community to ensure there is a balance between
providing for existing residents and those we welcome to
Camden in the future

The information below provides a snap shot of Council's
financial performance over the past 12 months, more
detailed information is provided within the Financal
Statements.

Financial Performance

The following table highiights the 'financial performancs’
comparison between 2016/17 and 2015/16:

Income Statement 201617 201516
$'000 $000
Total Income from :
Continuing Operations $188,734 $218,130
"-; f‘,‘.;ll.-"— -

o

Surplus Operating
Result from Continuing $96,704 $134,753

Contributions providea ($1,668) ($3,086)
for Capital Purposes
(deficit)

Local Government Accounting - Operating Result

It 1s impertant to note that the operating result shown in
the Income Statement is not Councils budget or cash
postion The Income statement complies vith the
International  Financial Reporting  Standards and s
required 1o be reported on an accruals basis, It considers
non-cash entries and the timing of the receipt or payment
of money. Counc's budget is done on cash basis. The
reported surplus of $95.704 million (afler capital ftems)
does not mean Councll has addicnal funds of $95.704
millon to spend Alternatively the fact that Council's
Income Statement has a reported ceficit of $1.67 million

(before capital tems) does not mean Council's budget Is
over spent or Council's liquidity position is poor

Council continues to balance its budget annually and ils
Iquicity position IS strong as demonstrated by the financial
Indicators in Note 13 to the Financlal Statements.

(o] ing Result (after | items

The 2016717 Operating Result after accounting for capital
income is a surplus of $96.70 million ($134.75 million
2015/16). Thes surplus s primarily due to non-cash
contributions made by developers for infrastructure such
as roads, drainage and open space. The value of these
non-cash dedications for 2016/17 was $78.16 million
($114.83 milion 2015/16). Accounting standards require
the dedication of assets to be brought to account as
income which inflates the surplus reported

Operating Result (before capital items)

Cceuncil's operating result before capital items is a deficit
of $1.67 million. This result excludes capital income of
$98.37 million In comparing this result to the previous
financial year deficit of $3.09 million the improvement in
the operating deficd to $1.67 millien Is predominately 2
result of the Federal Government paying S0% of the
201718 Financial Assistance Grant In advance (318
miton) Other significant movements in Income included
Rates and Annual Charges Increasing by $5.80 million,
and Fees and Charges by $1 12 million predominately in
the area of building services and town planning asscciated
with the growth, In order te maintain existing service leveis
Ceuncil has employed an additional 342 staff during
2016417 which increased empioyee costs by $3.51 million
Materfals and Contracts aiso mcreased by $2.28 milkon
representing additional works and services undertaken to
meet senvice demand

Council continues to mondor its operating result and whist
Council's iquidity position is strong, Councd recognises
that longer term, operating deficits are not sustainable and
that sustained reported deficits will ultimately reduce
Council's abilty to maintain or replace its asset base over
time. Council expects that this position will continue to
improve over time through increased income associated
with growth and prudent long-term financial management
of expenditure budgets that consider the timing of future
mcome.

Measures that Council has adopted to improve and

ensure thst €= long ferm financial position remains
sustainable include:

¥ Balanced Budget

Council annually adopts and maintains a balanced budget
position and does not spend beyond its means

Page 4
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v Loans and Loan Reduction Program

Historically Council has pan funded ds annual road
reconstruction pregram through loans. In 2013/14 Council
adopted a lan reduction program to gradually reduce
Council's reliance on re-current lcan borrowings. Council
has completed this program 1 year ahead of schedule.
Council did not borrow for Its annual road reconstruction
program during 2016/17 and has no future re-current loan
borrowings in its long-term financial plan {10 years).

Council still has capacity to borrow for capital projects
(one-off) upon the appropriate financial assessment being
completed

¥ Long-Term Financial Planning (LTFP)

Council has a 10 year LTFP which is updated quarterly.
The LTFP is critical to Council’s planning and monitoring
of #s immediate and future financial sustainability It is
central to correcting the reported operating deficit in the
Income Statement by contaning expenditure and allowing
natural growth in Council's income base to achieve a
balanced or reportad operating surplus. It allows Council
to make informed decisions about sustainable levels of
debt and reserves (liquidity) t also forms part of a suite of
resourcing pians that suppert Counci’s Integrated
Planning and Reporting Package

v Asset Management Planning

Sound asset management and the correct allocation of
resources are central to Council's sustainadllity. As part of
Council's adaptive organsational  framework  and
Crganisational Improvement Plan an asset management
section was created dedicated to understanding the
financing and resourcing needs of our current and future
asset base. This will enhance Councis decision making
and longer term foracasting.

v Cash Reserves and Investing in the Future

Council has established reserves for capital improvement,
asset replacement and technology improvements,

¥ Community Infrastructure Renewal Program

Council realises that ageing infrastructure wili continue to
be an issue for the residents of Camden, n 2013 IPART
approved 8 special rate varistion for a $6 million (over 6
years) Community Infrastructure Renewal Program aimed
at addressing those assets in poor condition, The last year
of this program is 2018/19

¥ Building Partnerships

Council continues to actively pursug both State and
Federal funding opportunities to fund infrastructurs and
service requirements when made available. Examoles
Inchsde accessing the low Interest ioans under Local
Infrastructure Renewal Schemes

v Organisational Improvement Plan

As part of demonstrating Council is “M for the future” an
organisational improvement plan has been implemented
that addresses all areas of the organisation beth financal
and non-financial that wil allow Council to demonstrate a
modern contemporary orgainsation that is financially
sound and able to service its community now and into the
future. This improvement program is regularly reviewed by
the executive to ensure its progress is monitored and the
plan is Turther developed ovet time

Statement of Financlal Position

The net value of assels owned by our community is
$1.321 billion (31.173 billion in 2015/18) The majority of
this equity relates to the ownership of land and
infrastructure assets such as roads, stormwater drainage,
footpaths and bridges. Council's increase in equty is
predominately due to infrastructure assets being
dedicated to Council as part of new release areas being
developed and the reclassification of two property assets
to investment properies

Council revalued land under roads as at 30 June 2017
The increase in value has been transferred to Council
revalugtion reserve ($42 46 Million)

In 201617 Councd converted two of (ts buildings
o Investment propertles by leasing them to the
private sector. Over time leasing will generate Councll
additional income of over $0.8 milion per annum
An  independent valuation of these two properties
(including land} has also resulted in a fair vake
increment of $6.79 million, which has been transferred
to Council's asset revaluation reserve.

Ceuncil's loan debt s now $35.87 mison with a net
decrease of $3.73 million from 2015/16, primarily a result
of principal and Interest repayments during 2016/17 and
no new loans being taken up in 2016/17,

Financial Health Indicators

The financial haalth indicators for the 20168/17 financial
year can be found in Note 12 (pages 50-53} and Special
Schedule 7 (pages SS 5 - SS 8). These sections of the
financial statements provide a detalled explanation of
each indicator and any unique considerations which need
to be taken inte account when assessing Council's
financial performance. Oversll the indicators provide s
positve outlook for Councils continued financal
sustainability

it should also be noted that Camden Council was 1 of only
7 metropolitan Council's to be deemed fi for future as part
of IPART's review Inte the financial sustainability of NSW
Council's

Chief Financial Officer (R
Officer)

sible Accountin:

Pages
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Camden Council

Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financial Statements 2017

Budget Actual Actual
2017 $°000 G 2017 2016
Income from continuing operations
Revenue:
56,078 Rates and annual charges iy 57.907 52,107
16,015 User charges and fees 3 17,344 16,187
2,280 Interest and investment revenue 3402 3,493
2,244 Other revenues 2,501 1,469
5961 Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes - 9178 7,035
185270 Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 98,372 137,838
Other income:
Net share of interests in joint ventures and
~  associates using the equity method 15 29 =
277,848 Total income from continuing operations 188,734 218,130
Expenses frof u ati
40,835 Employee bene! c 4a 38,831 35,318
1,514  Borrowing costs 4b 1,960 1,793
21,835 Materlals and coftra 4 25792 23,501
14,118 Depreciation and amortisation ! 16,289 14,909
8,922 Other expenses Ae 7.334 6,496
— Net losses from the disposal of assets 1,724 1,326
Net share of interests in joint ventures and
—  associates using the equity method 12 - 34
87,224 Total expenses from continuing operations 92.030 83,377
190,624 Operating result from continuing operations 96,704 134,753
Discontinued operations
- Net profit/(loss) from discontinued operations 24 = =
190,624 Net operating result for the year 96,704 134,753
180,624  Net operating result attributable to Councll 96,704 134,753
Net operating result for the year before grants and
(4,646) contributions provided for capital purposes (1,668) {3.085)
na ¥ 1l |} 1 o |
This staterment should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. page &
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Financial Statements 2017

Camden Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Actual Actual
$ '000 Notes 2017 2016
Net operating result for the year (as per Income Statement) 96,704 134,753
Other comprehensive income:
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating result
Gain (loss) on revaluation of Land and Buillding* 208 (i 8791 -
Gain (loss) on revaluation of Land Under Roads 208 fii 42 457 -
Gain (loss) on revaluation of Community Land 206 (I - 10,035
Gain (loss) on revaluation of Land Improvments — non-depreciable 208 il - 3,922
Gain (loss) on revaluation of Land Improvments - depreicable 206 (il - 1.089
Gain (loss) on revaluation of Other Structures - 2,973
Gain (loss) on revaluation of Other Open Space /recreation assets 208 i - 723

Total items which will not be ntly
to the operating result

51,248 18,722
* Revaluation of specific council ed odlo ply

AASE 140 Investment Properties. A comprehesive revaluation wil
conducted for Property, plant and eguipment, operational land, building

on 30 June 2018

Total other comprehensive income for the year 51,248 18,722
Total comprehensive income for the year 147 952 153,475
Total comprehensive income attributable to Council 147,952 153,475
This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. page 7
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Camden Council

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2017

Financial Statements 2017

Actual Actual
$ '000 2017 2018
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents £ 7.518 8,691
Investments 68,200 65,200
Receivables 5.852 6,440
Inventonies 427 452
Other : 200 163
Total current assets 82,198 80,946
Non-current assets
Investments Bl 32,200 27,200
Receivables 1.627 1,633
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 1,271,992 1128817
Investments accounted for usin ity 73 44
Investment property 12,350 -
Total non-current assets 1,318,242 1,167,494
TOTAL ASSETS 1,400,440 1,248 440
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 21,807 14,827
Income received in advance 258 178
Borrowings 0 3.797 3,732
Provisions 10 10,254 9,275
Total current liabilities 36,116 28,012
Non-current liabilities
Payables 10 11,159 12,075
Borrowings 10 31,205 34,479
Provisions 10 659 525
Total non-current liabilities 43,023 47,079
TOTAL LIABILITIES 79,139 75,001
Net assets 1,321,301 1,173,349
EQUITY
Retained eamings 881,086 784,382
Revaluation reserves 440215 388,967
Council equity Interest 1,321,301 1,173,349
Total equity 1,321,301 1,173,345
This staterment should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. page 8
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Camden Council

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financial Statements 2017

Budget Actual Actual
2017  $'000 2017 2016
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts:
56,078 Rates and annual charges 57.858 52,085
15,299  User charges and fees 18.450 17,503
2,280 Investment and interest revenue received 3,339 3,597
21,354 Grants and contributions 31,394 30,489
—  Bonds, deposits and retention amounts received 9493 1,655
5635 Other 9,420 6,775
Payments:
(40,121) Employee benefits and on-costs (37,616) (34,274)
(22,031) Materials and contracts (33.889) (27.595)
(1,514) Borrowing costs (1,513) (628)
- (1.658) (2,199)
(12,314) (8,287) (4,674)
24 666 46,993 42 694
Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts:
Nil
~  Sale of investment securities 123,900 126,600
687  Sale of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 611 213
Payments:
- Purchase of investment securities (131,900) (142,300)
(46,275) Purchase of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (37.044) (46,218)
(45,588) Net cash provided (or used in) investing activities (44,433) (61,705)
Cash flows from financing activities
Receipts:
1,000 Proceeds from borrowings and advances - 23,000
Payments:
(3,732) Repayment of borrowings and advances (3,732) (3,173)
(2,732) Netcash flow provided (used in) financing activities (3,732) 19,827
(23,654) Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,172) 816
8691 rlus cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 8.691 7,875
(14,963) Cash and cash equivalents — end of the year 7.519 8,691
Please refer to Note 11 for additional cash flow information.
This staterment should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. page 10
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 20 June 2017

Financial Statements 2017

Contents of the notes accompanying the financial statements

Note

1
2(a)
2(b)

3

4

5
6(a)
6(v)
6(c)

9(a)
9(v)
9(c)
10(a)
"
12
13

14
15
16
17
18
19

20

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Details

Summary of significant accounting policies

Council functions/activities — financial information

Council functions/activities — component descriptions
Income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations

Gains or losses from the disposal of assets

Cash and cash equivalent assets

Investments

Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details
Receivables

Inventories and other assels

Infrastructure, progad
Externally restricl

Payables,bo 0 EI )

Infrastructure, pra

Statement of cash fiows — additional information

Commitments for expenditure

Statement of performance measures:

13a (i) Local government industry indicators {consolidated)
13a (i) Local government industry graphs {consolidated)
Investment properties

Financial risk management

Matenal budget variations

Statement of developer contributions

Contingencies and other liabilities/assets not recognised

Interests in other entities
Retained eamings, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting

policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors
Financial result and financial position by fund

‘Held for sale' non-cumrent assets and disposal groups
Events occurring after the reporting date
Discontinued operations

Intangible assets

Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration liabilties
Fair value measurement

Related party disclosures

cu ari

nfa - not applicable

Page

12
25

27
33
37
38

39
41
42
43

irments 44 nia

47
49

50
51

55
59
61
67

72

73 nia
73 nfa
73 nfa
73 nia
73 nfa
73 nfa
74
82
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financal Statements 2017

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial statements have
been prepared In accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards and Australian Accounting
Interpretations, the Local Government Act 1993
(NSW) and Regulations, and the Local Government
Code of Accounting Practice and Financial
Reporting. Council is a not R=pLo i
purpose of preparing these fing

(i) New and amended stafida
Council

AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures was adopted
during the year, the impact of this standard had no
impact on reported financial position or performance;
however note 28 has been added.

(ii) Early adoption of standards

Council has not elected to apply any
pronouncements before their operative date in the
annual reporting beginning 1 July 2016,

(iii) Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of certain financial assets and
liabilities and certain classes of preperty, plant and
equipment and investment property.

(ili) Significant estimates and
judgements

accounting

The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of certain crtical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Council's accounting
policies

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the Council and that
are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Camden Council makes estimates and
assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year include:

(i} Estimated fair values of investment properties
(i) lues of infrastructure, property,
nt,

icant ents In applying the
il's accapnting policies

(i) Impairment of Receivables

Council has made a significant judgement about
the impairment of a number of its receivables in
Note 7.

(b) Revenue recognition

Council recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the
Council and specific criteria have been met for
each of the Council's activities as described below.

Council bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the
type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
measured on major income categories as follows:

(i) Rates, annual
contributions

charges, grants and

Rates, annual charges, grants and contributions
(including developer contributions) are recognised
as revenue when the Council obtains control over
the assets comprising these receipts. Developer
contributions may only be expended for the
purposes for which the contributions were required,
but the Council may apply contributions according
to the priorities established in work schedules.
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Control over assets acquired from rates and annual (ii) User charges and fees

charges is oblained at the commencement of the

rating year as it is an enforceable debt linked to the User charges and fees (inciuding parking fees and
rateable property or, where earlier, upon receipt of fines) are recognised as revenue when the service
the rates. has been provided or when the penalty has been

applied, whichever first occurs.
Control over granted assets/contributed assels Is

normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittal) or (iii) Sale of plant, property, infrastructure and

upon earlier notification that a grant has been equipment

secured, and is valued at their fair value at the date

of transfer. The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined
when control of the assel has irrevocably passed

Revenue from Contributions is recognised when the to the buyer.

Council either obtains control of the contribution or

the right to receive it, (i) it js p obab me (iv

economic benefits comprising
flow to the Council and (ij
contribution can be measured

Int comdlis recognised using the effective
tefiest rate at the date that interest is earned.

Where grants or contributions recognised as (v) Rent

revenues during the financial year were obtained on

condition that they be expended in a particular Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line

manner or used over a particular period and those basis over the lease term,

conditions were un-discharged at reporting date, the

unused grant or contribution is disclosed in Note (vi) Dividend income

3(g). The note also discloses the amount of unused

grant or contribution from prior years that was Revenue is recognised when the Council's right to

expended on Council's operations during the current receive the payment is established, which is

year. generally when sharehokiers approve the dividend.

The Council has obligation to provide facilities from (vii) Other income

contribution revenues levied on developers under

the provisions of 594 of the EPA Act 1979. Other income is recorded when the payment is
due, the value of the payment is notified, or the

Whilst the Council generally incorporates these payment is received, whichever occurs first.

amounts as part of a Development Consent Order,

such developer contributions are only recognised as (c) Principles of consolidation

income upon their physical receipt by the Council,

due to the possibility that individual Development (i) The Consolidated Fund

Consents may not be acted upon by the applicant

and accordingly would not be payable to the Council In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1)
of the Local Government Act 1883 (NSW), all

Developer contributions may only be expended for money and property received by Council is held in

the purposes for which the contributions were the Council's Consolidated Fund unless it is

required, but the Council may apply contributions required to be held in the Council's Trust Fund.

according to the priorities established in the work

schedules. Cash and other assels of the following entities
have been included as part of the Consolidated

A detailed Note relating to developer contributions Fund:

can be found at Note 17.

=« Camden Town Farm Committee
A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is = Camden Seniors Programs Committee
reciprocal in nature to the extent that the requisite « Camden International Friendship Association
service has not been provided at reporting date,
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

= Camden Bicentennial Equestnan Park Committee Adjustments are made to the joint venture's
accounting policies where they are different from
(ii) The Trust Fund those of the Council for the purpose of the

consolidated financial statements.
In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of

the Local Govemment Act 1993 (NSW) (as Detailed information relating to Council's Joint
amended), a separate and distinct Trust Fund is Ventures can be found at Note 19 (b).
maintained to account for all money and property
received by the Council in trust which must be Camden Council does not cumently have any
applied only for the purposes of, or in accordance associated entities, i.e. entities where Council has
with the trusts relating to those monies. Trust monies the power to participate in the financial and
and property subject to Council’s control have been operating decisions of the entity,
included in these reporis.
(d) Leases
Trust monies and property held by Cou t not
subject to the control of Coundll NaVelg d Leages of progerly, plant and equipment where
from these reports. A separat@statergen es Couhgi les§ee, has substantially all the risks
held in the Trust Fund is availgble foffin a nd rewards of@wnership are classified as finance
the Council office by any persofl figg ge. s.
(iii) County Councils Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's
- inception at the fair value of the leased property or,
Council is not a member of any county councils. if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
i . i payments. The comesponding rental obligations,
(iv) Interests in other entities net of finance charges, are Included in other short-
_ term and long-term payables. Each lease payment
Joint ventures/associates is allocated between the liability and finance cost.
) The finance cost s charged to the income
Camden Council is a Sharehoider In the Southern statement over the lease period so as to produce a
Phone Company for two shares at $1.00 each, being constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
one in A class share and one in the B to ZZ class. balance of the liability for each period,
Also, Camden Council from 1 July 2014 became a The property, plant and equipment acquired under
member of Civic Risk Mutual formerly known as finance leases is depreciated over the asset's
Westpool and United Independent Group. useful life or over the shorter of the asset's useful
life and the lease term if there is no reasonable
Interests in joint ventures/associates are accounted certainty that Council will obtain ownership at the
for using the equity method in accordance with end of the lease term.
AASB128 Associates and Joint Ventures. Under this
method, the investment is initially recognised as a Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
cost and the carrying amount is increased or and rewards of ownership are not transferred to
decreased to recognise the Council's share of the Council as lessee are classified as operating
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the leases, Payments made under operating leases
investee after the date of acquisition. (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight-line
If the Council's share of losses of a joint venture basis over the period of the lease.
equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture, the Lease income from operating leases where
Council discontinues recognising its share of further Council is a lessor is recognised as income on a
losses. straight-line basis over the lease term.
The Council's share in the joint venture's gains or Council currently holds no finance lease.

losses arising from transactions between itself and
its joint venture are eliminated.
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
are not yet available for use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if ewvents or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired,

Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
camrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the assel's camying amount exceeds ils
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's falr value Jes
value in use.

For the purposes of assessi
are grouped at the lowest levalg

separately identifiable cash inflows mat are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units), Non-
financial assets that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

(f) Cash and cash equivalents

For Statement of Cash Flow presentation purposes,
cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand;
deposits held at call with financial institutions; other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafis are shown within borrowings in
current liabilties on the Statement of Financial
Position,

(g) Inventories

(i) Raw materials and stores, work in progress
and finished goods

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and
finished goeds are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour, and
an appropriate proportion of vanable and fixed

overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on
the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are
assigned to individual items of inventory on basis
of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

(ii) Inventory held for distribution

In distribution is held at cost,
adj icable for any loss of service
pot

ifLland hel@ for
borrowing costs

resale/capitalisation of

Land held for resaie is stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is assigned by
specific identification and includes the cost of
acquisition, and development and borrowing costs
during development. When development is
completed borrowing costs and other holding
charges are expensed as incurred,

Borrowing costs included in the cost of land held
for resale are those costs that would have been
avoided if the expenditure on the acquisition and
development of the land had not been made.
Borrowing costs incurred while active development
Is interrupted for extended periods are recognised
as expenses.

(h) Non-current assets (or disposal
groups) held for sale and discontinued
operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use.

They are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for
assels such as deferred tax assets; asseis arising
from employee benefits; financial assets; and
investment properties that are carried at fair value
and contractual rights under insurance contracts,
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

which are specifically exempt from this requirement. Loans and receivables are included in other
receivables and receivables (note 7) in the

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or Statement of Financial Position.

subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal

group) to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is Receivables are recognised initially at fair value

recognised for any subsequent increases in fair and subsequently measured at amortised cost

value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal using the effective Interest method, less provision

group), but not in excess of any cumulative for impairment. Receivables are generally due for

impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or settlement within 30 days.
loss not previously recognised by the date of the

sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are
recognised at the date of de-recognition. not discounted if the effect of discounting is
Immaterial.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a
disposal group) are not deprecia i

while they are classified as
and other expenses attributab
disposal group classified as he
be recognised,

(iii -to ity investments

He aturityy investments are non-derivative

indgficial as with fixed or determinable
ents andl fixed maturities that Council's

management has the positive intention and ability

(i) Investments and other financial assets to hold to maturity. If Council were to sell other
than an Insignificant amount of held-to-maturity
Classification financial assets, the whole category would be

tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale.
Council classifies its financial assets in the following

categories: financial assets at fair value through Held-to-maturity financial assets are included in
profit or loss,; loans and receivables, held-to-maturity non-current assets, excepl for those with maturities
investments; and available-for-sale financial assets. less than 12 months from the reporting date, that

are classified as current assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which

the investments were acquired. Management (iv) Available-for-sale financial assets
determines the classification of its investments at

Initial recognition and, in the case of assets Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
classified as held-to-maturity, re-evaluates this derivatives that are either designated in this
designation at each reporting date. category or not classified in any of the other

categories. They are included in non-current
assels unless management intends to dispose of

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or the investment within 12 months of the reporting
loss date.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Investments are designated as available-for-sale if

are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset they do not have fixed maturities and fixed or

is classified in this category if acquired principally for determinable payments and management intends

the purpose of selling in the short-term. Assets in to hokd them for the medium to long term.

this category are classified as current assets.
Recognition and de-recognition
(ii) Loans and receivables
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial are recognised on trade-date: the date on which

assets with fixed or determinable payments that are Council commits to purchase or sell the asset.

not quoted in an active market. They are included in

current assels, except for those with malurities Investments are Initially recognised at fair value

greater than 12 months afier the reporing date plus transaction costs for all financial assets not

which that are classified as non-current assets. carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
page 16

Attachments for the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 24 October 2017 - Page 22

Camden Council Financial Statements



Attachment 1

Camden Council Financial Statements

Financaal Statements 2017
Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

assets carmed at fair value through profit or loss are The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or
are expensed in the income statement. loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to measuring any impairment loss is the current
receive cash flows from the financial asseis have effective interest rate determined under the
expired or have been transferred and Councll has contract. As a practical expedient, the Council may
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of measure impairment on the basis of an
ownership. instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.
When securities classified as available-for-sale are
soid, the accumulated fair value adjustments Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an on-
recognised in equity are inciuded in the income going basis. Debts that are known to be
statement as gains and losses from investment uncollectible are written off by reducing the
securities. i jrectly. An allowance account

rment of receivables) is used
Subsequent measurement e is @bjective evidence that Council will
llect all amounts due according to

Loans and receivables ma of the receivables.

investments are carried at amortised cost using the

effective interest method. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or

Changes in the fair value of other monetary and non- financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency

monetary securities classified as available-for-sale in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are

are recognised in equity. considered indicators that the receivable is
impaired. The amount of the impairment allowance

Impairment is the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future

Counclil assesses at the end of each reporting period cash flows, discounted at the original effective

whether there is objective evidence that a financial interest rate.

asset or group of financial assels is impaired.
The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is the income statement within other expenses. When
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if a receivable for which an impairment allowance
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result had been recegnised becomes uncollectible in a
of one or more events that occurred after the initial subsequent period it is wrtten off against the
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated amounts previously written off are credited against
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of other expenses in the income statement.

financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Investment Policy
In the case of equity investments classified as

available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline Council has an approved investment policy
in the fair value of the security below is cost is complying with Section 625 of the Local
considered an indicator that the assets are impaired. Government Act 1993 (NSW) and Clause 212 of
the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005
(i) Assets carried at amortised cost (NSW).
For loans and receivables the amount of the loss is Investments are placed and managed in
measured as the difference between the asset's accordance with that policy and having particular
carrying amount and the present value of estimated regard to authorised investments prescribed under
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that the Ministerial Local Government Investment
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial Order. Council maintains an investment policy that
asset's original effective interest rate. complies with the Act and ensures that it, or its
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

representatives, exercise the care, diligence and skill
that a prudent person would exercise in investing
Council funds.

financial

(i) Fair value estimation -

instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities must be estimated for recognition and
measurement or for disclosure purposes.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date.

The fair value of financial ins
traded in an active market
valuation techniques. Counc
methods and makes assumpti %
market conditions existing at each reporting date,
Other techniques, such as estimated discounted
cash flows, are used o determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments
of trade receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The fair value of
financial habilities for disclosure purposes s
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the curent market interest rate that is
available to the Council for similar financial
instruments.

(k) Infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment (IPPE)

Council’s assets have been progressively revalued
to fair wvalue in accordance with & staged
implementation advised by the Office of Local
Government. At reporting date, the following classes
of IPPE were stated at their fair value:

Externally valued:

Operational land

Land improvements

Buildings - specialised/non-specialised
Other open spacelrecreational assets
Other infrastructure

Other assets

Internally valued:

« Community land

« Land improvements

Roads assets including roads, bridges and
footpaths

Bulk earthworks

Stormwater drainage

Other infrastructure

Other assets

As approximated by depreciated historical
cost:

gcialised assets with shon useful lives are
S preciated historical cost as an
ppgoximation @f fair value. Council has assessed
that any difference between fair value and
depreciated historical cost is unlikely to be
material.

Council assesses at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that a revalued asset's
carrying amount may differ materially from that
which would be determined if the asset were
revalued at the reporting date. If any such
Indication exists, Council determines the asset's
fair value and revalue the asset to that amount.
Full revaluations are undertaken for all assets on a
five-year cycle.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation are credited to the asset revaluation
reserve, To the extent that the increase reverses a
decrease previously recognising profit or loss
relating to that asset class, the increase is first
recognised as profit or loss.

Decreases that reverse previous increases of
assets in the same class are first charged against
revaluation reserves directly in equity to the extent
of the remaining reserve attributable to the class;
all other decreases are charged to the Income
Statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separale
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to Council and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All  other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Land is not depreciated.
Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the

straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives as

follows:
Plant & Equipment

- Office Equipment 5to 10 years

- Office furniture 7 to 10 years

- Vehicles 5to 7 years

- Heavy Plant/Road Making equip. Sto 7 years

- Other plant and equipment 510 7 years
Other Equipment / Assets

- Playground equipment a

- Benches, seats etc. 3Qyears

- Library Books 0 years
Buildings

- Structure 40 to 60 years

- Roof Membrane & Air Conditioning 20 years

- LI & Escalators 25 years

- Fire Services 30 years

- Floor Covenngs 10 years

Stormwater Drainage

- Drains 50 to 150 years

- Cuiverts 100 years

- Flood Control Structures 50 to 150 years
Transportation Assets

- Sealed Roads: Surface 20 to 50 years

- Sealed Roads: Structure 40 to 100 years

- Bridge: Concrete 40 to 80 years

- Footpaths 10 0 60 year
Other Infrastructure Assets

- Bulk earthworks Infinite

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate. at each
reporting date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount, These
are included in the income statement.

(I) Investment property

Investment  property, principally compfrising
freehold office buildings, is held for long-term rental
yields and is not occupied by the Council,

Investment property is carned at fair value, which
is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location
or condition of the specific asset. If this information
Is not available, Council uses altemative valuation
methods such as recent prices in less active
markets, or discounted cash flow projections,
Changes in fair values are recorded in the income
other income,

fair value unless the fair value cannot yel be
reliably determined. Where that is the case, the
property will be accounted for at cost until either
the fair value becomes reliably determinable or
construction is complete.

As at 30 June 2017 Council owns two investment
properties.,

(m) Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Council prior to the end of
financial year that are unpald. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition,

(n) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value. net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method,

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence thal it is probable that some or
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capilalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates,

Borrowings are removed from the Statement of
Financial Pasition when the obligation specified In
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recegnised in other income or
Council has an unconditid

finance cost.
: abill 5$
1 er
settlement of the liability for atfe n fte
the reporting date,

In April 2010, Council secured an $11.8 million
interest free loan from the NSW Local Infrastructure
Fund. In accordance with AASB 139 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, this
loan has been recognised at fair value.

Borrowings are classified as

(o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying asset have not been capitalised during the
period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed.

(p) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when Council has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, # is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settie the obligation,
and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settiement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole, A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one ittem included in the same class of
obligations may be small,

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management's best estimale of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date. The discount rate used to determine
the present wvalue reflects cumrent market

assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

{q) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and annual leave expecied to
be wholly settled within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the
rel recognised in respect of
e yees' seryjces up to the end of the reporting
easured at the amounts expected
he liabilities are settled.

The liability for annual leave is recognised in the
provision for employee benefits. All other short-
term employee beneftt obligations are presented
as payables,

(i) Other
obligations

long-term employee  benefit

The liability for long service leave and annual leave
that is not expected to be wholly settied within 12
months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service is recognised
In the provision for employee benefits and
measured as the present value of expected future
payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up 10 the end of the
reporting pericd using the projected unit credit
method,

Consideration is given to expected future wage
and salary levels, experience of employee
departures, and periods of service. Expected future
payments are discounted using marketl yields al
the end of the reporting period on national
government bonds with terms to maturity and
currency that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities
in the Statement of Financial Position if the Council
does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting
date, regardless of when the actual settlement is
expected to occur.
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(iii) Retirement benefit obligations Effective from 1 July 2009, employers are required
to contribute additional contributions to assist in
All employees of the Council are entitied to benefits extinguishing this deficit,

on retirement, disability or death.
The amount of employer contributions to the

Council contributes to various defined benefit plans defined benefit section of the Local Govermnment

and defined contribution plans on behalf of its Superannuation Scheme and recognised as an

employees, expense and disclosed as part of Superannuation
Expenses at Note 4(a) for the year ending 30 June

Defined Benefit Plans 2017 was $594 886,

A liabilty or asset In respect of defined benefit The amount of additional contributions included in

superannuation plans would ordinarily be recognised the total employer contribution advised above is

in the balance sheet, and measured as the presenl $245,383.

value of the defined benefj
reporting date plus unrecog
(less unrecognised actuarial
value of the superannuation
date and any unrecognised pa

ored annually and the Actuary
t as at 30 June 2017 a deficit still
of this deficit that can be broadly
ouncil was estimated to be in the

order of $655.767 anticipated as at 30 June 2017.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is

based on expected future payments which arise Council has been advised that an additional
from membership of the fund to the reporting date, contribution of $831,000 are estimated to be
calculated annually by independent actuaries using required until 30 June 2020. However, the Trustee
the projected unit credit method. Consideration is is considering extending this period to ensure that
given to expected future wage and salary levels, there is a sufficient contingency against weaker
experience of employee departures and periods of investment returns.
service.

Council's share of that deficiency cannot be
However, when this information is not reliably accurately calculated as the Scheme is a mutual
available, Council can account for its obligations to arrangement where assets and liabilities are
defined benefit plans on the same basis as ils pooled together for all member councils.
obligations to defined contribution plans - i.e. as an
expense when they become payable, For this reason, no liability for the deficiency has

been recognised in these financial statements.
Council is party to an Industry Defined Benefit Plan

under the Local Govemment Superannuation Council has, however, disclosed a contingent
Scheme, named the “Local Government liability in Note 18 to reflect the possible obligation
Superannuation Scheme ~ Pool B". that may arise should the Scheme require

immediate payment to correct the deficiency.
This Scheme has been deemed to be a “multi

employer fund” for the purposes of AASB 119, Defined Contribution Plans

Sufficient information is not available to account for Contributions to Defined Contribution Plans are
the Scheme as a defined benefit plan (in accordance recognised as an expense as they become

with AASB 119) because the assets to the scheme payable. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
are pooled together for all Councils. an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a

reduction in the future payments is available.
The last valuation of the Scheme was performed by

Mr Richard Boyfield (FIAA) on 2 December 2016,
relating to the period ending 30 June 2016.
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financal Statements 2017

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(iv) Employee Benefit On-Costs

Council has recognised at year end the aggregate
on-cost liabilities arnsing from employee benefits,
and in particular those on-cost liabilities that will
arise when payment of current employee benefits is
made in future periods.

These amounts include Superannuation and
Workers Compensation expenses which will be
payable upon the fulure payment of certain Leave

Liabilities accrued as at 30 June 2017.
; ad
haths, Ul

Council has elected to recognise all land under
roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance
with AASB 1051.

(r) Land under roads

Land under roads is land und
reserves inciuding land und
strips and median strips.

Land under roads acquired after 1 July 2008 is
recognised In accordance with AASB 116 -
Property. Plant and Equipment.

Council revalued land under roads as at 30 June
2017. The increase in value has been transferred to
Council revaluation reserve ($42.46 Million).

(s) Self-insurance

Council has decided to self-insure for various risks,
including public liability and professional indemnity.

On 1 July 2014, Camden Council became a member
of Civic Risk Mutual formerly known as Westpool
and United Independent Pools, Civic Risk Mutual is
a co-operative Local Government self-insurance
scheme. Westpool was established to help stabilise
insurance premium costs and achieve significant
cost savings and long term benefits for member
Councils through effective risk management

(t) Intangible assets

Council has not classified any assets as intangible.

(u) Crown reserves

Crown Reserves under Council’s care and control
are recognised as assets of the Council. While
ownership of the reserves remains with the Crown,
Council retains operational control of the reserves
and is responsible for their maintenance and use in
accordance with the specific purposes to which the
reserves are dedicated.

Improvements on Crown Reserves are also
recorded as assets, while maintenance costs
incurred by Council and revenues relating to the
reserves are recognised within Council's Income

St
V)Fural fire Frvice assets

Under section 119 of the Rural Fire Services Act
1997 (NSW), “all fire fighting equipment purchased
or constructed wholly or from money to the credit
of the Fund is to be vested in the council of the
area for or on behalf of which the fire fighting
equipment has been purchased or constructed”,

Council from 1/7/2011 stopped capitalising plant
and equipment as result of changes to the
insurance arrangements between Council and
RFS. As from 1/7/2011 the RFS moved to Red
Fleet Insurance which meant Councils no longer
had responsibility for insuring this plant and
equipment. Council also had no control over the
purchase or sale of ptant and equipment nor do we
receive any proceeds from sale, Once the need for
council to insure the plant and equipment was
removed from Council's responsibility # was
determined that Council had no care or control
over this plant and equipment and therefore it
should not be included in Council's assets register.
Also any maintenance undertaken by council on
the plant and equipment was claimed back from
the RFS, Council does keep a complete list of all
plant and equipment within its plant register.

All buildings used by the RFS are council owned

including tanks which are in councils assets
register and depreciated accordingly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Goods and Services Tax (GST) = amortised cost (where financial assets will only be
able to be measured at amortised cost where very
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net specific conditions are met),

of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST

incurred 1s not recoverable from the taxation
authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the AASB 2014 - 10 Sale or contribution of Assets

cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
expense. Venture

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the

amount of GST receivable or payable. The net The amendments address an acknowledged
amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to the inconsistency between the requirements in AASB
taxation authority is included with other receivables 10 and those in AASB 128 (2011), in dealing with
or payabies in the Statement of Financial Position. the sale or contribution of assets between an

investor and its associate or joint venture.

Cash flows are presented o

GST components of cash Th ce of the amendments is that
investing or financing acti afi in or is recognised when a transaction
recoverable from, or payable tg invelves a busihess (whether it is housed in a
are presented as operating cas idiary orn

A partial gain or loss Is recognised when a

interpretations issued not yet effective :L‘;;"g;s& even if these assets are housed in a

Cenain new accounting standards and ’ s
interpretations have been published that are not The effective date of this standard Is for annual

mandatory for reporting periods ending 30 June ;eop;oarﬁng periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017. ;

This standard will only impact Council where there
has been a sale or contribution of assets between
the entity and the associate or joint venture.

Council has not adopted any of these standards
early. Council’'s assessment of the impact of these
new standards and interpretations is set out below.

Applicable to Local Government: AASB 16 Leases

AASB 9 - Financial Instruments (and associated AASB 18 will result in most of the operating leases

amendina stondards of an entity bejng brought onto the statements of
ng ) financial position, There are limited exceptions
AASB 9 replaces AASB 139 Financial instruments: relating to short term leases and low value assets

Recognition and Measurement and has an effective which may remain off the balance sheet

date for reporting periods beginning on or after 1

: . The calculation of the lease liability will take into
SshuAry 2095 (and ks D BIpROD TetoIpRCN)- account appropriate discount rate, assumptions
The overriding impact of AASB 9 is to change the about the l|ease term, and increase in lease
requirements for the classification, measurement payments.

and disclosures associated with financial assels. g ; -
A corresponding right to use assets will be

recognised, which will be amortised over the term

Under the new mquiremenls the four current
of the lease.

categories of financial assets stipulated in AASB 139

Yol e fRpleind. vl two. mBasrenent calogories: Rent expense will no longer be shown. The profit

and loss impact of the leases will be through

» fair value and 5
amontisation and interest charges.,
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financal Statements 2017

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

The effective date of this standard is for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019; i.e. councils’ financial statemenis for year
ended 30 June 2020,

AASB 1058 Income of Not for Profit Entities

AASB 1058 supersedes all the income recognition
requirements relating to councils, previously in
AASB 1004 Contribution. The timing of income
recognition depends on whether such a transaction
gives rise to & liability or other performance
obligation (a promise to transfer a goods or service)
or a contribution by owners, related to an asset
(such as cash or another asse i

entity.

AASB 1058 applies when ¢
volunteer services or enters |
in which the consideration to acquire an asset is
significantly less than the fair value of the asset, and
where the counclis objectives is principally to enable
the asset to further the councils objectives”. In cases
where the council enters into other transactions, the
council recognises and measures the asset at fair
value in accordance with the applicable Australian
Accounting Standard (e.g. AASE 116 Property, Plant
and Equipment).

Upon initial recognition of the asset, this Standard
requires Council to consider whether any other
financial statement (called related amounts’) should
be recognised in accordance with the applicable
Accounting Standard, such as:

(a) contributions by owners

(b) revenue, or a contract liability arising from a
contract with a customer

(c) alease liability

{d) a financial instrument

(e) a provision,

If the transaction is a transfer of a financial asset to
enable Council o acquire or construct a
recognisable non-financial asset to be controlled by
Council (i.e. an in-substance acquisition if a non-
financial asset), the council recognises a liability for
the excess of the fair value of the transfer over any
related amounts recognised,

Council will recognise income as it satisfies its
obligations under the transfer similarly to income
recognition in relation to performance obligations
under AASB 15.

If the transaction does not enable Council to
acquire or construct a recognisable non-financial
asset to be controlied by Council, then any excess
of the initial carrying amount of the recognised
asset over the related amounts is recognised as
income,

The effective date of this standard is from annual
reporting period pericds beginning on or after 1
January 2019; i.e. councils’ financial statements for
year ended 30 June 2020.

The changes in revenue recognition requirements
n use changes 1o the timing and
e recorded in the financial

o

ntly being g viewed to determine the impact of
AASE 1058,

Prepaid rates received prior to the beginning of a
rating period will now be recognised as a financial
liability until the commencement of the rating
period

(y) Rounding of amounts

Unless otherwise indicated, amounts in the
financial statements have been rounded off to the
nearest thousand dollars.

(z) Comparative figures

To ensure comparability with the current reporting
period’'s figures, some comparative period line
items and amounts may have been reclassified or
individually reported for the first time within these
financial statements and/or the notes.

(aa) Disclaimer
Nothing contained within these statements may be

taken to be an admission of any liability to any
person under any circumstance.
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 20 June 2017

Note 2(b). Council functions/activities — component descriptions
Details relating to the Council’s functions/activities as reported in Note 2(a) are as follows:

ACTIVELY MANAGING CAMDEN'S GROWTH
Managing growth determined under the State Govemment’s Metropolitan Strategy while retaining Camden's
rural setting, country town feel and the lifestyle of the community.

Costs relating to the delivery of this strategic outcome include: Development Control, Heritage Protection and Urban
and Rural Planning.

HEALTHY URBAN AND NATURAL ENVIRONMENTS
A Camden in which its unique natural systems have been protected and enhanced and are enjoyed and
valued by the community.

Costs relating to the delivery of this strategic outcome indude: Regulating the Use of Public Areas, Public Health,
Protecting Natural Environment. Parks and Playgrounds, Environmental Activities, Enforcement of Legislation and

Policies and Appearance of Pu .
A PROSPEROUS ECONOMY R AF |
A Camden which is character| vi t 1 co ial centres, thriving local businesses, stable

and diverse employment opportunities, skilled local residents and a thriving tourist/visitor market.
Costs relating to the delivery of this strategic outcome include: Economic development, tourism and the management
of significant places.

EFFECTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT
A Camden that provides an affordable, convenient and integrated public transport system for equitable
access to services, facilities and places for all members of the community.

Costs relating to the delivery of this strategic outcome include: Transport Options, Road Safety, Local Traffic
Management, Construction and Maintenance of Local Roads, Footpath and Kerbing.

AN ENRICHED AND CONNECTED COMMUNITY

A Camden which has achieved a broad range of opportunities for a prosperous and complete lifestyle.

Costs relating to the delivery of this strategic outcome include: Recreational Services and Facilities, Community and
Cultural Development & Planning, Community Support Facilities and Services, Community Safety, Community Events
and Library Services,

STRONG LOCAL LEADERSHIP (GOVERNANCE)
A Camden which has strong leadership who are responsible to the community and who are working together
to achieve the community’s vision for the future.

Costs relating to the delivery of this strategic outcome include: Strong Local Demecracy, Stewardship of Community
Resources, Community Engagement, Community Information, Management of Emergency Events, and Support
Services,
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 3. Income from continuing operations

Actual Actual
$ "000 Notes 2017 2016
(a) Rates and annual charges
Ordinary rates
Residential 38,049 34,247
Farmiand 500 651
Business 7,999 7,657
Total ordinary rates 46,548 42,555
Annual charges (pursuant to s 496, 5 4964, = 4958, s.501 & s 611)
Domestic waste management services 10,822 9,064
Section 611 charges 48 44
Stormwater management levy 489 444
Total annual charges 11,359 9,552
TOTAL RATES AND ANNUAL CHARGE 57,907 52,107
Council has used 2013 year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates.
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

Actual Actual
$ '000 Notas 2017 2016
(b) User charges and fees
Specific user charges (per 5502 ~ spacific ‘actual use' charges)
Domestic waste management services (additional services) 30 26
On site sewerage inspection 45 44
Commercial waste management 565 745
On site sewerage annual charges 176 169
Total user charges 816 984
Other user charges and fees
(i) Fees and charges - statutory ul tions jgor s.
Building services — other 4,144 3477
Private works — section 67 24 39
Section 149 certificates (EPA 487 429
Section 603 certificates 259 237
Town planning . . , 4204 4272
Total fees and charges - statutory/requlatory 9,118 8,454
(ii) Fees and charges — other (incl. general user charges (per 5.608))
Cemeteries 355 185
Child care (family day care services) 492 357
Fire and emergency services levy (FESL) implementation 275 -
Leaseback fees — Council vehicles 830 743
Library services 47 61
Parks and leisure centres 4,005 4441
Public halls 1,298 855
Other 108 107
Total fees and charges - other ) 7410 6,749
TOTAL USER CHARGES AND FEES 17,344 16,187
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 3. Income from continuing operations (centinued)

Actual Actual

$ "000 Notes 2017 2016
(c) Interest and investment revenue (including losses)
Interest

- Interest on overdue rates and annual charges (incl, special purpose rates) 174 154

- Interest eamed on Investments (interest on restricted funds) 1,731 1,551

- Interest (general funds) 1,498 1,788
TOTAL INTEREST AND INVESTMENT REVENUE 3.403 3,493
Interest revenue is attributable to:
Unrestricted investments/financial assets:
Overdue rates and annual chargg e { 174 154
General Council cash and inve 1,498 1.480
Restricted investments/fund
Development contributions

— Section 94 (under plans) 1,234 1,449

— Section 83F (under plans) 173 98

— Section 94 (not under plans) 5 4
Domestic waste management operations 21 190
Department of Planning Interest Free Loan § 108 18
Total interest and investment revenue recognised ) 3403 3,493
(d) Other revenues
Rental Income — investment properties 14 42 -
Fines 440 221
Leqgal fees recovery — rates and charges (extra charges) 140 139
Legal fees recovery — other 10 255
Bushfire services 6 36
Commissions and agency fees 112 89
Contributions 10 long service leave — other councils 430 289
Domestic waste management 19 15
Easement compensation 1 23
Employee relations 178 139
Insurance claim recoveries 430 82
Rental income - council properties 33 15
Risk mgmt performance incentive rebates 188 84
Sales — general 33 30
Other 439 52
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 2,501 1,469
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 20 June 2017

Financial Statements 2017

Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

2017 2016 2017 2016
$ "000 Operating Operating Capital Capital
(e) Grants
General purpose (untied)

Financial assistance — general component 3.542 2,124 - -
Financial assistance - local roads component 1,742 1,048 - -
Pensioners' rates subsidies — general component 316 396 - -
Total general purpose 5,600 3,568 - -
Specific purpose

Domestic waste management 89 - - -
Better waste and recycling fun 5] - -
Child care (family day care) 3 1439 - -
Community services 17 4 - -
Economic development - - -
Environment education 112 108 - -
Environmental protection - 14 - -
Floodplain management - 72 140 -
Library 193 178 - 200
LIRS subsidy 110 86 - -
Noxious weeds 29 29 - -
Emergency services 243 170 - -
Recreation and culture 6 - - -
Recreational services 25 20 45 494
Street lighting 128 128 - -
Transport (other roads and bridges funding) - - 1,129 1,379
Total specific purpose 2,557 2,347 1314 2,073
Total grants 8,157 5,915 1,314 2,073
Grant revenue is attributable to:

— Commonwealth funding 7.114 4311 1,298 1,379
~ State funding 1,043 1,604 16 694

8,157 5,915 1,314 2,073
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Note 3. Income from continuing operations (centinued)

Financial Statements 2017

2017 2016 2017 2016
$ "000 Operating Operatin_gr Capital Capital
(f) Contributions
Developer contributions:

(893 & s94 - EP&A Act, 864 of the LGA):

VVPA - other cash revenue 368 244 1,875 3,295
VPA - dedicated drainage - - 1,394 881
VPA - dedicated open space - - - 972
VPA - dedicated roads - - 817 1,983
VPA - dedicated community facilities - - 2,547 -
VPA - dedicated land - - 4148 -
Other section 94 developer ns 51 171
Open space - 5,690 3177
Traffic facilities - 93 88
Drainage - 2,388 2,261
Roadworks (in kind) - - 235 -
Roadworks - - 3,082 2,293
Communtty facilities - - 6,289 6,641
Drainage (in kind) - - 157 -
Other developer contributions = = 37 =
Total developer contributions ' 812 727 28601 21762
Other contributions:

Community services - 91 567
Dedicated foothpaths and cycleways - - 30 -
Dedicated land under roads - - 4814 7,798
Dedicated subdivision roads - - 38,138 65,800
Dedicated Bndges - - 3,608 -
Dedicated drainage - - 18,411 34,048
Dedications — RMS foothpath - - - 3,347
Other councils - joint works/services 80 - - -
Paving - - 102 -
Recreation and culture 2 - 53 -
Roads and bridges - - 95 -
RMS contributions (regional roads, block grant) 106 93 1,093 2,444
Housing acceleration fund 13 300 - -
Dedicated operational land - - 2,021 -
Cther 7 - 1 -
Total other contributions 209 393 68,457 114,004
Total contributions 1,021 1,120 97,058 135,766
TOTAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS 9,178 7,035 98,372 137,839

page 31

Attachments for the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 24 October 2017 - Page 37

ORDO1

Attachment 1



ORDO1

Attachment 1

Attachment 1

Camden Council Financial Statements

Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

Financial Statements 2017

Actual Actual
$ "000 2017 2016
(g) Unspent grants and contributions
Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council on condition
that they be spent In a specified manner:
Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting peried 54 937 41.351
Add: grants and contributions recegnised in the current period but not yet spent: 855 1,106
Add: grants and contributions received for the provision of goods and services in 5,045 17,618
a future period
Less; grants and contributions gggaggised vious ftin : nt: (15,888) (5,138)
Net increase (decrease) in re & QAI I (10,188) 13,586
Unexpended and held as restricted assets 44749 54,937
Comprising:
- Specific purpose unexpended grants 892 1,027
— Developer contributions 37,987 48,188
~ Other contributions 5,870 5722
44749 54,937
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations

Actual Actual
$ "000 Notes 2017 2018
(a) Employee benefits and on-costs
Salaries and wages 29,035 26,297
Travel expenses 2,019 1,662
Employee leave entitiements (ELE) 4,034 3,925
Superannuation 3,339 3,123
Workers' compensation insurance 737 656
Fringe benefit tax (FBT) 201 207
Training costs (other than salaries and wages) 359 242
Other 169 197
Total employee costs 39,893 36,309
Less: capitalised costs (1,082) (991)
TOTAL EMPLOYEE CO 38831 35318
(b) Borrowing costs
(i) Interest bearing liability costs
Interest on loans 1,437 1,192
Total interest bearing liability costs expensed 1,437 1,192
(i) Other borrowing costs
Amortisation of discounts and premiums — interest free loan 523 601
Total other borrowing costs 523 601
TOTAL BORROWING COSTS EXPENSED 1,960 1,793
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 20 June 2017

Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

Actual Actual
$ "000 Notes 2017 2016
(c) Materials and contracts
Raw materials and consumables 8,923 7,904
Contractor and consultancy costs
- Leisure centre and pools 3,369 3,737
~ Waste management 4 245 4123
- Parks and garden manintenance 3,578 3,235
- Information technology 1,856 1,536
— Community support programs 271 2,002
- Agency agreements 378 94
Auditors remuneration ‘" 71 69
Legal expenses:.
- Legal expenses: planning a a 124 410
- Legal expenses. debt recovgn 141 137
- Legal expenses: other 396 254
Total materials and contracts 25,792 23,501
Less: capitalised costs e e
TOTAL MATERIALS AND CONTRACTS 25792 23,501
1. Auditor remuneration
a. During the year, the following fees were incurred for services prowvided by
the Auditor-General:
(i) Audit and other assurance services
- Audit and review of financial statements: Auditor-General 7 -
(i) Audit and other assurance services
- Audit and review of financial statements: Council's Auditor - 59
— Other audit and assurance services - 10
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services - 69
Total Auditor remuneration 7 69
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for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

Actual Actual

$ 000 Notes 2017 2016
(d) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Plant and equipment 1,168 1135
Office equipment 570 441
Furniture and fittings 135 19
Land improvements (depreciable) 432 295
Infrastructure:

- Buildings - non-specialised 2373 2,381

- Buildings - specialised 10 60

- Other structures 1,193 918

— Roads 7,429 6,926

- Bridges 485 403

- Footpaths 689 625

- Stonmwater drainage 2,128 2.001
Other assets

- Library books 178 154

— Other 271 215
Total gross depreciation and amortisation costs 17,057 15,573
Less: capitalised costs (668) (664)
Total depreciation and amortisation costs 16,389 14,909
TOTAL DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT COSTS EXPENSED 16,389 14,909
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 20 June 2017

Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

Actual Actual

$ 000 Notes 2017 2016
(e) Other expenses
Advertising 168 195
Bad and doubtful debts 142 99
Bank charges 187 166
Contributions/ievies to other levels of government

- Emergency services levy (incudes FRNSW. SES, and RFS levies) 700 627
Councillor expenses — mayoral fee 34 24
Councillor expenses — councillors’ fees 137 140
Councillors' expenses (incl. mayor) — other (excluding fees above) a1 70
Development operating expenseg 188 287
Donations, contributions and a . W [gani ns (Bection 356) 266 222
Election expenses 334 -
Electricity and heating i 471 297
Emergency services 52 42
Information technology expenses 193 130
Insurance 632 555
Postage 213 196
Printing and stationery 155 153
Rates collection charges 195 195
Sec 94 administration — operating expenses 169 624
Street lighting 1,657 1.487
Telephone and communications 275 312
Water charges 270 224
Reversal of housing acceleration fund debtor 300 -
Other _ 505 341
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 7.334 65,496
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for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 5. Gains or losses from the disposal of assets

Actual Actual
$ "000 Notes 2017 2016
Property {excl investment property)
Proceeds from disposal - property 519 -
Less: carrying amount of property assets sold/written off (84) -
Net gain/(loss) on disposal 435 -
Plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal — plant and equipment 92 213
Less: carrying amount of plant and equipment assets sold - (52)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal 92 161
Infrastructure
Proceeds from disposal - infr. - -
Less: carrying amount of infras (2.251) (1.487)
Net gain/{loss) on disposal (2,251) (1,487)
Financial assets *
Proceeds from disposal/redemptions/maturities ~ financial assets 123,900 126,600
Less: carrying amount of financial assets sold/redeemed/matured (123,900) (126,600)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal - -
NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS (1.724) (1,326)
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 6a. — Cash assets and Note 6b. — investments

Financial Statements 2017

2017 2017 2016 2016
Actual Actual Actual Actual
$ "000 Notes Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6a)
Cash on hand and at bank 2,519 - 3,191 -
Cash-equivalent assets '

~ Deposits at call 5,000 - 5,500 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 7,519 - 8,691 -
Investments (Note 6b)

- Term deposits 68,200 65,200 27,200
Total investments 65,200 27,200
TOTAL CASH ASSETS,

EQUIVALENTS AND IN 73,891 27,200
! Those investments where time to ofp
Investments were classified at year
end in accordance with
AASB 139 as follows:
Investments
Held to maturity 68,200 32,200 65,200 27,200
Investments 68,200 32,200 65,200 27,200
Refer to Note 27 Fair value measurement for information regarding the fair value of investments held,
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Financial Statements 2017

Note 6¢. Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details

2017 2017 2016 2016
Actual Actual Actual Actual
$ '000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Total cash, cash equivalents
and investments 75,719 32,200 73,891 27,200
attributable to:
External restrictions  (refer below) 24,000 32,200 36,235 27,200
Interal restrictions (refer below) 49396 - 30,103 -
Unrestricted 2,323 - 7,553 -
75,719 32,200 73,891 27,200
2017 Transfers from Closing
$ 000 restrictions balance
Details of restrictions
External restrictions — included in liabilities
Specific purpose unexpended loans (A) 3.301 107 - 3408
Section 94 — works in kinds (refundable) (B} 278 - - 278
External restrictions - included in liabilities 3.579 107 - 3.686
External restrictions - other
Developer contributions — general ) 53,620 21690 (31,743) 43 567
Specific purpose unexpended grants (D) 1,027 599 (752) 873
Domestic waste management (E) 4,944 3,281 (251) 7,974
Stormwater management levy (E) 170 504 (593) 81
Other 95 - (@ 19
External restrictions — other 58,856 26,074 (33415) 52514
Total external restrictions 63,435 26,181 (33,415) 56,200

A Loan moneys which must be applied for the purposes for which the loans were raised
Section 84 Developer Contnbution to be refunded within the next 12 months by resolution of Councit (refer note 10a)

C Development contributions which are not yet expended for the provision of services and amenites in accordance

with contributions plans (refer Note 17)

D Grants which are not yet expended for the purposes for which the grants were obtained (refer Note 1)

E Stormwater Management, Domestic Waste Management (CWWM) & other Special Rates/Levies/Charges are

externally restricted assets and must be apphed for the purposes for which they were raised

page 38

Attachments for the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 24 October 2017 - Page 45

ORDO1

Attachment 1



ORDO1

Attachment 1

Attachment 1

Camden Council Financial Statements

Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 20 June 2017

Financial Statements 2017

Note 6c¢. Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details (continued)

2017 Opening  Transfers to Transfers from Closing
$ "000 balance restrictions restrictions balance
Internal restrictions

Plant and vehicle replacement 2153 1,001 (909) 2,245
Employees leave entitlement 1.961 1,210 (585) 2,576
Revote/Carry forward reserve 3875 4468 (2,282) 6,061
Deposits, retentions and bonds 5745 11,386 (2,201) 14,930
Asset renewal reserve 2014 1,659 (1.772) 1,801
Camden parking reserve 121 - - 121
Camden town centre reserve 267 - (157) 110
Capital works reserve 3,021 9,359 (3,423) 8,957
Cemetery improvements 784 299 (985) 98
Central administration building (gsg 4 (6,689) 12
Commercial waste services 37 5 (191) 334
Community infrastructure prog 01 0 (926) 1,607
DOP loan repayment reserve 6200 (558) 6.200
Elections reserve 81 (311) -
Engineering services deposits 188 17 - 205
Family day care trust - 43 - 43
Information technology reserve 510 257 (179) 588
Public appeals reserve 36 - - 36
Risk management reserve 233 149 (12) 370
Sec 355 commitiee reserve 435 251 - 686
Stormwater management (general fund) 712 30 (487) 255
Water savings action plan reserve 107 22 (1) 128
Working funds reserve 452 1,859 (452) 1,859
Other 54 39 (19) 74
Total internal restrictions 30,103 41,440 (22,147) 49,396
TOTAL RESTRICTIONS 93,538 67,621 (55.562) 105,596
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Note 7. Receivables

Financial Statements 2017

2017 2016

$ "000 Notes Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Purpose
Rates and annual charges 1.434 301 1411 275
Interest and extra charges 157 136 140 168
Restoration and private works 5 - 4 -
Accrued revenues

- Interest on investments 1,113 - 1.034 -
City Deal projects 11 - - -
Commercial waste 11 - 8 -
Community and recreational facilities 259 - 209 -
Contribution to oran park library - - 624 -
Easement compensation 137 -
Employee accounts 4 - 26 -
Gas main rating charge 4 - a4 -
Government grants and subsid 9 - 794 -
Health and environment inspections - 48 -
Land compensation 625 1,190 625 1,190
Legal cost recovery 502 - 3N -
Leisure centre contracts 255 - 63 -
Net GST receivable 815 - 859 -
Section 94 contributions 12 - 12 -
Insurance Recoveries 140 - - -
Centribution to Meunt Annan Leisure Centre 110 - - -
Other debtors 46 - 379 -
Total 6,440 1,627 6,886 1,633
Less: provision for impairment
Other debtors (588) - (448) -
Total provision for impairment - receivabies (588) - (446) -
TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES 5852 1,627 6,440 1,633
Externally restricted receivables
Domestic waste management 461 70 386 63
Stormwater management 17 1 17 1
Section 84 contributions 12 - 12 -
Govemnment Grants 19 - - -
Total external restrictions 509 7" 415 64
Internally restricted receivables
Commercial waste reserve 1" - 8 -
Capital works reserve - - 1,000 -
Asset renewal reserve - - 500 -
Central adminsstration building reserve - - 2435 -
Internally restricted receivables 1" - 3,943 -
Unrestricted receivables 5,332 1,556 2,082 1,669
TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES 5,852 1,627 6,440 1,633
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 20 June 2017

Note 7. Receivables (continued)

$ "000

Notes on debtors from previous page:
(i) Rates and annual charges outstanding are secured against the property
(H) Doubtful rates debtors are provided for where the value of the property is less than the debt outstanding.
An allowance for other doubtful debts is made when there is objective evidence that a receivable is impaired.
(lii) Interest was charged on overdue rates and charges at 8.00% (2016 8.50%).
Generally all other receivables are non-interest bearing.
(iv) Please refer to Note 15 for issues conceming credit isk and fair value disclosures.

Note 8. Inventories and other assets

2016

$ 000 Current  Non-current

(a) Inventories

(i) Inventories at cost

Stores and materials 383 - 384 -
Trading stock 22 - 48 -
Stores and materials — domestic waste 12 - 12 -
Total inventories at cost - 427 - 452 -
(il) Inventories at net realisable value (NRV)

Nil

TOTAL INVENTORIES 427 B 452 =

(b) Other assets

Prepayments 117 - 151 -
Information technology holding account 31 - 12 -
Cther 2 - - -
TOTAL OTHERASSETS 200 - 163 -

Externally restricted assets

Domestic waste management

Stores and materials 12 - 12 -
Total domestic waste management 12 - 12 -
Total externally restricted assets 12 - 12 -
Total unrestricted assets 615 - 803 -
TOTAL INVENTORIES AND OTHER ASSETS 627 - 615 -
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 9b. Externally restricted infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

$'000 Actual Actual
2017 2016
Gross Accumulated Gross - Accumulated |
Class of ssyat carrying depn, and Ne::‘:mng carrying ‘ depn, and i, cnnytlng
amount impairment it mpai t
Domestic waste management \ '
Plant and equipment 10,875 | 7.321 3,554 10,965 5,940 4,025
Land
- Operaticnal land 1,657 ; - 1,657 1,857 - 1,657
Buildings 1,179 | 746 433 1.167 739 408
Total DWM 13,711 | 8,067 5,644 13,789 | 7.695 | 6,090
TOTAL RESTRICTED I|,PPRE 13,711 ‘ 8,087 5,644 13,789 | 7,689 | 6,090

Note 9c. Infrastructure
impairments

& r‘Rt Aqlpment 1:urrent year

Councll has recognised no impairment losses during the reporting period nor reversed any prior period losses.
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Camden Council
Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 10a. Payables, borrowings and provisions

2017 2016

$ ‘000 Mates Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Payables
Goods and services - operating expenditure 5703 - 6,659 -
Accrued expenses:

- Borrowings 524 - €00 -

- Salaries and wages 659 - 484 -
Security bonds, depoesits and retentions 14 643 - 8,806 -
Section 94 — works In kind agreements 278 11.159 278 12,075
Total payables 21,807 11,159 14,827 12,075
Income received in advance
Payments received in advance = 178 =
Total income received in adv 178 -
Borrowings
Loans — secured 31,2 3,732 34.479
Total borrowings 31,205 3,732 34479
Pravisions
Employee benefits:
Annual leave 3,260 - 2,966 -
Long service leave 6894 659 5,309 525
Total provisions 10,254 659 9,275 525
TOTAL PAYABLES, BORROWINGS
AND PROVISIONS _ 36116 43023 28012 47079
(i) Liabilities relating to restricted assets

2017 2016
Current  Non-current Current  Non-current

Externally restricted assets
Domestic waste management 6 - 167 -
Section 94 — Works in kind agreements 278 11,159 278 12,075
Liabiities relating to externally restricted assels 284 11,158 445 12,075
Internally restricted assots
Nil
Total Labilities relating to restricted assets 284 11,159 445 12,075
Total liabilities relating to unrestricted assets 35832 31.864 27,567 35,004
TOTAL PAYABLES, BORROWINGS AND
PROVISIONS 36,116 43,023 28,012 47,079

' Loans are secured over the general rating mcome of Council

Disclosures on liability interest rate risk exposures, fair value disclosures and security can be found in Note 15
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Camden Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 10a. Payables, borrowings and provisions (continued)
Actual Actual
$ ‘000 2017 2016
(if) Current liabilities not anticipated to be settied within the next twelve months
The following liabilities, even though classified as current, are not expected
to be settled in the next 12 months
Provisions — employees benefits 7174 6,525
Payables - security bonds, deposits and retentions 7.253 3413
14,427 9,938
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Camden Council
Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 11. Statement of cash flows — additional information

Actual Actual
$ ‘000 Hate 2017 2016
(a) Reconciliation of cash assets
Total cash and cash equivalent assets 7518 8691
Balance as per the Statement of Cash Flows 7,519 8,691
(b) Reconciliation of net operating result
to cash provided from operating activities

Net operating result from Income Statement 96,704 134,753
Adjust tor non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation 16,289 14,909
Net losses/(gains) on disposal sef 1,724 1.326
Non-cash capital grants and ' (76,157) (114,828)

~ Interest exp. on interest-fred ncil ( pRaviblsly fair val 523 601
Share of net (profits) or losses of associates/joint ventures (29) 34
+i- Movement in operating assets and liabilities and other cash items:
Decreasel/(increase) in receivables 452 (650)
Increase/(decrease) in provision for doubtful debts 142 100
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 25 (10}
Decrease/(increase) in other assets (37) 268
Increase/(decrease) in payables (956) 3,485
Increase/(decrease) in accrued interest payable (76) 564
Increase/(decrease) in other accrued expenses payable 175 285
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilties 7,001 1.012
Increase/(decrease) in employee leave entitiements : 1113 845
Net cash provided from/(used in)
operating activities from the Statement of Cash Flows 46,993 42,694
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 11, Statement of cash flows — additional information (continued)

Actual Actual

$ ‘000 Nate 2017 2016
(c) Non-cash invesling and financing activities
S84 contributions ‘in kind' 392 -
Other dedications 75,765 114,828
Total non-cash investing and financing activities 76,157 114,828
(d) Financing arrangements
(i) Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the

following lines of credit:
Bank overdraft facilities ‘"' 150 150
Credit cards/purchase cards I I - 450 450
Total financing arrangement 600 600
1 The bank overdraft faciity may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without nofice

Interest rates on overdrafs are Interest rates on koans and other payables are disciosed In Note 15.

{ii) Secured loan liabilities

Loans are secured by a mortgage over future years rate revenue only,
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Camden Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 12, Commitments for expenditure

Actual Actual
$ ‘000 Hate 2017 2016
(a) Capital commitments (exclusive of GST)
Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financial statements as habilities:
Property, plant and equipment
Bulldings 1619 15224
Plant and equipment 2,836 345
Infrastructure assets 6.564 4853
Other 626 2694
Total commitments ) 11,645 23,116
These expenditures are payable 8s oWs:
Within the next year h N 11,645 23,116
Total payable 11,645 23,116
Sources for funding of capital commitments:
Unrestricted general funds 11,645 22116
New loans (to be raised) - 1,000
Total sources of funding 11,645 23,116

(b) Finance lease commitments
Nil
(c) Operating lease commitments (non-cancellable)

a. Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the
reporting date, but not recognised as liabilities are payable:

Within the next year 1,040 1,009
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 777 956
Total non-cancellable operating lease commitments 1,817 1,965

b. Non-cancellable operating leases include the following assets:
Motor Vehicles, Photocopiers and Other Equipment. These leases range from 1 to 5 years in length.
Contingent rentals may be payable depending on the conddion of items or usage during the lease term.

Conditions relating to operating leases:

- All operating lease agreements are secured only against the leased asset.
— No lease agreements impaose any financial restrictions on Council regarding future debt etc,
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 13a(i). Statement of performance measurement — indicators (consolidated)

Amounts  Indicator Prior periods  Benchmark
$ ‘000 2017 2017 2016 2015

Local government industry indicators — consolidated

1. Operating performance ratio

Tota! continuing operating revenue ' excluding capital
grants and contributions less operating expenses 27 Fe

. 21 % 0 00%
Total continuing operating revenue ' excluding capial 90,333 0.03% 2% 400 ;

grants and contributions

2a. Own source operating revenue ratio
Total continuing operating revenue '

excluding all grants and contributions 81,156 42 47 260 O0%
Total continuing operating revenue ' 188,705 A1 JN0W, AN i

2b. Own source operating revenue ratio

(less non-cash capital de
I'otal continuing cperating revenus

excluding all grants and contnbutiofis 5
Total continuing operating revenus 12 7211 RO SONE
excluding non-cash capital dedications
3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets less all external restrictions 57.677 !
- X 1 7 =1 5
Current liabilities less specific purpose Babilties ™ 21,405 2.69x 239X 4.07x
4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result "'’ before capital excluding interest
and depreciationimpairment/amortisation 18,376
B 4
Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) 5,692 3.23x L
plus borrowing costs {Income Statement)
5a. Rates, annual charges, interest and
extra charges outstanding percentage “T o
Rates. annual and extra charges outstanding 2,028 syt
Rates, annual and extra charges collectible 60,215 7% el i ’
Rura
5b. Rates, annual charges, interest and extra charges
OQutstanding Percentage (excluding pensioners)
Rates, annual and extra charges outstanding
(excudng pensioners)™ 1,617
x 2.65% 3.17%
Rates, annual and extra charges collectible 60,215 2.69%

6. Cash expense cover ratio

Current year's cash and cash equivalents

plus all term deposits x12 107,819 1494
Payments from cash flow of operating and 7,224 mths
financing activities

16.7 mths 14,3 mins » 3 mths

Natns
" Excludes falr value adjustments and reversal of revaluation decrements,
net gainf{loss) on sale of assets and the net share of interests in joint ventures and asscciates.

“ Refer Notes 6-8 Inclusive.
Also excludes any reai estate and land for resaie not expected to be sold m the next 12 months,

' Refer to Note 10(a).
“ Refer to Note 10(a)(i) - excludes all payables and provisions not expected to be paid i the next 12 months {Incl. ELE)
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Financial Statements 2017

Note 13a(ii). Local government industry indicators — graphs (consolidated)

1. Operating performance ratio ‘ Pargiose of Commentary on 2016/17 result
| e
i dose || | performance ratio 2016/17 ratio  0.03%
2017 Tne benchmark far 1his ratio is better than 0 00%
£ 5% “215% or ITO.OD Thnis rr:uo’gxcluaea ctap-w income, fair
-4.99% / value movement of investment proparies, net
i o | - | Thk r:z::.:wtes losse§ from disposal of assgns ar_)d loss or gan
achlsvAmAnt of from joint ventures. Councils ratio of 0.03% is
| cantaining opersting meeting the benchmark and s higher than last
-15% | | expenditure within years ratio of <2 15%. The improved performance
| can be attributed to growth and 50% of the
20% operating revenue. | | - 17118 Fnancial Assistance Grant being paid if
‘ advance ($1 8M) by the Federal Govemment
-25% |
Denchmark —_— Mairmurn o0 00% Rafio achieves benchmark
Source for benchmak. Coede of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #25 Rafio is outsise benchmark
-
2a. Own source operating entary on 2016/17 result
70%
2016/17 ratio  43.01%
an — e
50% | The benchmark for this ratio is greater than 60%
£ | The ratio a5 at 30 June 2017 was 43 01%. This
40% | Thes ratio measures ratio is higher than 2016 ratio of 34%. This
! || fiscal fletilty. It is Indicator is impactad by the high level of non
30% the degree of reliance| | cash ncome Council receives through dedication
|| on external funding of nan cash assels which distorts the ratio. An
2% || sources such as acitional ratio a5 baen providad delew (2b)
10% operaling grants and which clearly demonstrales that Council meets
| contributions this benchmark upon removat of non cash
0% v ~ - Mt income refating to the dedicaton of assets.
2014 2015 2016 2017 |
Banchmeark - Mnimum »=80 DO%

Source for benshmark: Code of Accounting Practoe and Financial Reparbing #2¢

Ratic achieves benclynark
[Falic 8 outsice benchmistk

Commentary on 2016/17 result

2016/17 ratio TZ.11%

2b. Own source operating revenue ratio | | Purpose ot own
0% (less nop-cash capital dedications) operating
80% - revenue ratio
70%
o § SN S R Mt
50%% This ratio measures
|| fiscal Nexibilty. Itis
40% 1 | |the degree of reliance
30% on external funding
20% { sources such as
| | operating grants and
10% | contributions
0% -

The benchmark for this ratio s greater then 80N,
Upon the removal of nen cash income ($76.168)
refating to the dedication of assets the ratio
signilicantly improves from 43 01% 10 7211%
This additional ratio has been provided 1o ensure
there Is 8 fair companson against benchmark as
not all Counclls in NGW exparience high level of
growth that resuits in an extraordnary level of
non cash incoms.

Banshmark — Malum *=850.00%

Source for benchmark: Code of Accounting Prochice and Financial Reparting #25

Ratic achisves benchmark
Ratio iz cutside benchmark
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financial Statements 2017

Note 13a(ii). Local government industry indicators — graphs (consolidated)

3. Unrestricted current ratio

Purpose of Commentary on 2016/17 result
unrestricted current
ratio 2016/17 ratio  2.69x
The benchrmark far this ratio is belter han
1.50:1. Thes ratio is well above the Senchmark at
To assess the 2 62:1 which Indicates that far every $1 of kabilty
adequacy of working council has 32.69 of assets 1o pay for that
capital and its abiity liability. Compared to FY15/16 the rato has has
to satisfy obdgations remained fairly constant. Ths ratio continues to
In the short tarm for be abave the benchmark doe tc Councll's strong
the unrestricted liquidity {reserves) postion and controts around

|| activbes of Council

Councils level of debt

Henchmark _—— Maimum >=1 50

Source for tenchmark: Code of Acco

4. Debt service cover

3000 -

% 2500 -

i 2000 - :
150.0 |
100.0 -

50.0
0.0 y
014 2015 016 2017

Ratic achioves benchmari

itzide henchmark

ontary on 2016/17 result

201617 ratio  3.23x

Thes ratio measures
the availability of
aperating cash to
senvice debt including
Interest, principal and
ease payments

The benchmark for this ratio is better than 200x
This rato i3 above the benchmark at 322.8x. The
ratie has improved from last year due fo Council
having a stable debt portfolio and increasing
Income due to growth and the 50% advance
payment of Council'’s Fmancial Assistance Grant
by the Fegeral Government

Benchmark —— Mairmum >=2.00

Source for tenchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and F

inancial Reporting #25

Rafio achieves benchmark
Rativ 15 outside benchmark

5. Rates, annual charges, Interest and . Purpose of rates Comenentary on 2016/17 result
S A O U PN P | | and annual charges
% : outstanding ratio 2016/17 ratio 3.37%
|
4% | The benchmark for this ratic 15 1ss than 5%, The
£ 3% | 303177 ');BTh:'e batter than the berchmary at

T | i § e ratio has decreased from last year's
< | |Tosamess the Imbact | | ratio of 3.67% which can be attributed to Counc
% | and annual charges growing rate base and reflects a confinuous
2% | |onc I's hquidity improvement in Councils debt recovery
1% | | and the adequacy of precesses Furthermoere, Council bas & pelicy of

not taking 'egal action against pensioners. An

1% recovery efiorts. additional ratio has been provided below to show
0% thempact-ondhis rato

2014 2015 2016 017
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Note 13a(ii). Local government industry indicators — graphs (consolidated)

Commentary on 2016/17 result

201617 ratio  2.69%

As ndiceled sboye the removing of pensoners
fram the ratio reduces the resull for 209817 fo

5b. Rates, annual charges, interest and Purpose of rates
5% %%’u* and I charges
% outstanding ratio
A%
£ 3%
2.69%.
3% To assess the mpact
2% of uncoflected rates
% ‘ and annual charges
on Council's quicity
1% and the adequacy of
1% recovery eflors,
0% - -
2014 2015 2016 017
6. Cash expense cover
18.0 - - i
: expense cover ratio
160
14.0
-~ 12.0 3 92
i R This liquidity ratio
& indicates the number
&o of monthe a Counci controls
6.0 can continue paying
40 for its immediate
A — — expenses without
2.0 additional cash inflow
0.0 ¢ =
2014 2015 2016 2017
Benchmark SR Mamirmum >=3 00
Source far benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #25

ontary on 2016/17 result

2016/17 ratio 14,94 mths

The benchmark for this ratio is more than 3
monthe. The ratio is well above the benchmark at
15 monthe. This can e predomnately attibuted
ta Council's strong cash position and budgetary

Rafio achieves benchmark
Ratio 1s outside benchmark
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Financial Statements 2017

Camden Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 14, Investment properties

Actual Actual
$ ‘000 Nale 2017 2016
(a) Investment properties at fair value
Investment properties on hand 12.350 -
Reconciliation of annual movement:
— Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments - -
- Transfers from/(to) owner occupied (Note 9) 12,350 -
CLOSING BALANCE - INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12,360 -
(b) Valuation basis
The basis of valuation of invest| v . be which the properties could

(D
a

be exchanged between willing garties
for similar properties in the sam@ locati

prices in an active market

r
{ on t
i 0 simi ases.

i i
ion
dit u

The 2017 revaluations were based on independent assessments made by:

Herron Todd White (South East NSW) Pty Ltd - ABN 57 164 272 002

(c) Contractual obligations at reporting date

Refer to Note 12 for disclosures relating to any capital and service obligations that have been contracted.
(d) Leasing arrangements — Council as lessor

Details of leased investment properties are as follows:

Future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable

investmen! property operaling leases not recognised in the
financial statements are receivable as follows:

Within 1 year 83 -
Later than 1 year but less than 5 years 166 -
Total minimum lease payments receivable 249 -

(e) Investment property income and expenditure — summary

Rental income from investment properties:

- Minimum lease payments 42 -
Net revenue contribution from investment properties 42 -
plus

Falr value movement for year - -
Total income attributable to investment properties 42 -

Refer to Nota 27 Fair value measuremant for information regarding the far value of investment propertias held
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Note 15. Financial risk management

$ ‘000

Risk management

Council's activities expose it to a vanety of financial risks including (1) pnce risk. (2) credit nisk, (3) liquidity risk
and (4) interest rate risk.

The Council's overall nsk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and s therefore not subject to foregn
currency risk
arried out b cil's fin S

Financial risk management is ies approved by the Council.

A comparison by category of th an Iu financial assets and financial

liabilities recognised in the fina nts
Carrying value Fair value

2017 2016 2017 2016
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7.519 8,691 7,519 8641
Investments
~ ‘Held to maturity” 100,400 92 400 100,400 92,400
Receivables 7,479 8.073 7,479 8,073
Total financial assets 115,398 109,164 115,398 109,164
Financial liabilities
Payables 32,966 25,902 32,966 26,902
Loans/advances 35002 38211 35002 38211
Total financial liabilities 67,968 65,113 67,968 65,113

Fair value is determined as follows

~ Cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables - are estimated to be the carrying value that approximates
market value

- Borrowings and held-to-maturity Investments ~ are based upon estimated future cash fiows discounted by the current
mkt interest rates applicable to assets and liabilities with similar risk profiles, uniess quoted market prices are available.

— Financial assets ciassified (1) ‘at fair value through profit and loss’ or (ii) ‘available-for-sale' — are based upon quoted
markel prices (in active markets for identical investments) at the reporting date or independent valuation

Refer to Note 27. Falr value measurament for information regarding the far value of financial assets and liabiities.
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Financial Statements 2017
Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 15. Financial risk management (continued)

$ ‘000

Council's objective is to maximise its relum on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of
liquidity and preserving capital.

Council's finance area manages the cash and Investments portiolio with the assistance of independent
advisors

Council has an investment policy which complies with the Local Government Act 7993 and Minister's
investment order. This policy is regularly reviewed by Council and it's staff and an Investment report is tabled
before Council on a monthly basis setting out the portfolio breakup and its performance,

The risks associated with the investments held are:

— Price risk — the risk that the : s < changes in market prices,
whether there changes are d@used speci indiviual financi@ instruments or their issuers
or are caused by factors affagti i1l rket,

— Interest rate risk — the risk that movements In Interest rates could affect returns and Income.

- Credit risk — the risk that the investment counterparty will not complete their obligations particularto a
financial nstrument, resulting in a financial loss to Council - be # of a capital or income nature.,

Council manages these risks (amongst other measures) by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing
investments with high credit ratings or capital guarantees.

Council also seeks advice from independent advisers befere placing any funds in cash equivalents and
investments.

(a) Market risk — price risk and interest rate risk

The following represents a summary of the sensitivity of Council's income Statement and accumulated surplus
(for the reporting period) due fo a change in ether the price of a financial asset or the interest rates applicable,

It is assumed that the change in interest rates would have been constant throughout the reporting period.

Increase of values/rates Decrease of values/irates
2017 Profit Equity Profit Equity
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates 1,079 1,079 (1,079) (1,079)
2016
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates 1.011 1.011 (1,011) (1.011)
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Financial Statements 2017

$ ‘000

(b) Credit risk

Council’s major receivables compnse (i) rates and annual charges and (i) user charges and fees.

The major risk associated with these receivables is credit risk - the risk that debts due and payable to Council

may not be repaid in full.

Council manages this risk by monitonng outstanding debt and employing stringent debt recovery procedures
It also encourages ratepayers 1o pay their rates by the due date through incentives.

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to secure a charge over the land
relating to the debts — that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to charge interest
on overdue rates and annual charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of debt

There are no significant conce
specific industry sectors and/o

The level of outstanding receiv: E
acceptable collection performa

f , whéther th
E e C nthly and ben

individual customers,

marks are set and monitored for

Council makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and carries out credit checks on most

non-rate debtors,

There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.

A profile of Council’s receivables credit risk al balance date follows:

2017 2017 2016 2016
Rates and Rates and
annual Other annual Other
charges receivables charges receivables
(1) Ageing of recelvables - %
Current (not yet overdue) 0% 85% 0% 88%
Overdue 100% 15% 100% 12%
100% 100% 100% 100%
Rates and Rates and

(ii) Ageing of receivables - value annual Other annual Other
Rates and annual charges Other receivables charges  receivables charges  receivables
Currant 1298 2,456 1,561 5782
1 year overdue - 624 - 52

< yours ovetdus - 1.113 - 318

2 — 5 years overdue - 502 - 1
>0 years overdus > 81 days overdus 437 637 443 372
1,735 6,332 1,994 6,525

(iii) Movement in provision for impairment 2017 2016

of receivables
Balance at the beginning of the year 446 346
+ new provisions recognised during the year 142 100
Balance at the end of the year 588 4486
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Note 15. Financial risk management (continued)

Financial Statements 2017

$ ‘000

(c) Liquidity risk

Payables and borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk — the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand to me

payment obligations as and when they fall due.

Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an

adequate cash buffer.

Payment terms can (in extenuating circumstances) also be extended and overdraft facilities utilised as required.

The contractual undiscounted cash outflows (ie. principal and interest) of Council's payables and borrowings are

set out in the maturity table be

$ 000 Subject
to no payale :
maturity <1Year 1.2Yrs 23Yrs 34Yrs 45Yrs

>5Yrs outliows values

2017

Trade/other payables 25,802 7.164

Loans and advances - 3786 3684 5721 1371 1209
Total financial llabilities 26802 10960 3664 3T 1371 1,209
2016

Tradelother payables 6,805 7,790 4378 2643 33500 1,478

Loans and advances - 3.732 3,796 3,664 3 1371

32966 32,968
22107 35888 35,868

_22.407 68,834 66,834

308 26,802 26,902
23316 39600 39,600

Total financial liabilities 6,806 11522 8,172 6,307 7221 2,850

23,624 66,502 66,502

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk - the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely
affect funding costs and debt servicing requirements. Council manages this risk through the diversification of

borrowing types, maturities and inferest rate structures,

The following interest rates were applicable 2017
to Council’s borrowings at balance date: Carrying Average
value interest rate
Bank overdraft - B.21%
Trade/other payables 32966 0.00%
Loans and advances - fixed interest rate 35868 6.14%
68.834

2016
Carrying Average
value interest rate
- 8.38%
26,902 0.00%
39,600 8.22%
66,502
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 16. Material budget variations

$ ‘000

Council's original financial budget for 16/17 was adopted by the Council on 28 June 2016,

While the Income Statement included in this General Purpose Financial Repont must disclose the onginal
budget adopted by Council, the Local Government Act 1993 requires Council to review its financial budget on ¢

quarterly basis, so that it is able to manage the various variations between actuals versus budget that
invariably occur throughout the year.
This note sets oul the delails of material variations between Council's original budget and its actual
results for the year as per the Income Statement - even though such variations may have been adjusted for
during each quarterly budget review,
Note that for variations® of budg
Material variations represent thgs 10% or more ofithe original budgeted figure.
F = Favourable buaget vanstion,

2017 2017 2017
$ "000 Budget Actual e Varance”
REVENUES
Interest and investment revenue 2,280 3,403 1,123 49% F

Interest and investment revenue has exceeded budget expectations by $1.12M (F).This was mainly due to Counciis
investment portfolic being higher than first anticipated at the time of preparing the budget Furthermore an increase
in Section 93F developer contributions cash receipts resulted in obtaining higher interest and investment revenue,

Other revenues 2,244 2,501 257 1% F
Other revenues has exceeded the originai budget by $257K (F). This increase Is mainly due to council receiving a
higher insurance recovery amount compared to last financial year.

Operating grants and contributions 5,961 9,178 3,217 54% F
Operating grants and contributions exceeded original budget by 83 217K (F). This increase is mainly due to the
advance payment of the Financial Assistance Grant $1.8M, Contributions of 3444K for Section 84 works,
Contribution of $183K for library and $243K contribution for emergency services. The additional grants or
contributions where unknown at the time of preparing the budget.

Capital grants and contributions 195,270 98,372 (96,898)  (80%) U Capital grants and
coninbutions have not met the original budget by $95 898K (U). This is predominately due to not as many assets
being dedicated to Council as first budgeted, Assel dedications are difficult to predict.
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Camden Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 16. Material budget variations (continued)

2017 2017 2017
$ ‘000 Budget Actual - Variance® —
EXPENSES
Employee benefits and on-costs 40,835 38,831 2,004 5% F
Borrowing costs 1,514 1,560 (4_4_6) m;s) u

Actual borrowing costs were higher than the original budget by $446K (U). This is primarily due to the amortisaton
of an interest free loan in order to represent fair value. This is a non-cash entry and therefore is not included in the
original budgst figure.

Materials and contracts 21,835 25,792 (3,957) (18%) u
The Matenais and Contracts expenses exceeded the budget by $3.96M (U}, This i mainly due to an increase in
service demand due to growth and a focus on asset maintenance and service delivery to our community.

Depreciation and amortisatio
The depreciation expense has exge
being dedicated to council which

(2,2711) (16%) U
inately due to additonal assets

Other expenses 8,922 7,334 1,588 18% F
Other expenses were lower than the onignal budget by $1.588M (F). This is predominately due to savings in street
lighting charges $413K and general electricity $366k, an operational saving of S400K for the new administration
bullding and a general saving of $560K.

Net losses from disposal of assets - 1,724 (1,724) 0% U
The net iess from the disposal of assets resulted in a variation to budget of $1,724M (U). This is primarily due to the
disposal of road infrastructure assets of $2.251M (U) and proceeds of $519k (F) from the acquisition of land by the
RMS which where unknown at the time of preparing the budget.

Budget variations relating to Council's Cash Flow Statement include:

Cash flows from operating activities 24,666 46,993 22,327 90.5% F
The favourable variance of $22.327M was a result of increased Grants and Contributions Income by $10.0M, an
increase of income received for bonds and retention by $9.5M and a $3,2M increase in user charges and

fees. These items wera unknown at the time of preparing the orignal budget.

Cash flows from financing activities (2,732) (3,732) (1,000) 36.6% U
Council had expected to drawdown 2 $1.0M loan as part of adopting the 2016/17 budget. Upon a review of
Council's financial position at the time of drawdown these funds were no longer required,
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financial Statements 2017

Note 18. Contingencies and other assets/liabilities not recognised

$ "000

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for
recogniticn in the Statement of Financial Position, but
their knowledge and disclosure is considered relevant
to the users of Council's Financial Report.

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED:

Defined benefit superannuation
contribution plans

Council participates in an empioyer-sponsored
defined benefit superannuation ; and
contributions as determined by

scheme's trustees.

Member councils bear responsibility of ensuring there
are sufficient funds available to pay out the required
benefits as they fall due.

The schemes most recent full actuarial review
indicated that the net assets of the scheme were
not sufficient to meet the accrued benefits of the
schemes defined benefit member category with
member councils required to make significantly
higher contributions in future years

The position is monitored annually and the Actuary
has estimated that as at 30 June 2017 a deficit still
exists. The share of this deficit that can be broadly
atfributed to the Council was estimated to be in the
order of $655,767 anticipated as at 30 June 2017

Future contributions made to the defined benefit
scheme to rectify the net deficit position will be
recognised as an expense when they become
payable — similar to the accounting for defined
contributions plans

Council has been advised that an additional
contribution of $831,000 are estimated to be required
until 30 June 2020, The last valuation of the Fund
was performed by Mr Richard Boyfield, FIAA on 2nd
December 2016, relating to the period ending 30
June 2016,

Section 94 Developer Contributions Plans

Council levies Section 94 Contributions upon

vanous development across the Council area through
the reguired Contribution Plans. As part of these
Plans, Council has received funds for which it will be
required to expend the monies in accordance with
those Plans

These Plans indicate as well the propesed future
expenditure to be undertaken by Council, which will
and receipting funds
re a shortfall exits to fund by

These future expenses do not yet gualify as liabilities
as of the reporting date, but represent Councifs
intention to spend funds in the manner and timing
set out in those Plans

Land Credits

Council is currently negotiating the settlement of
outstanding ‘work in kind' credits with a major
developer going back several decades. The negotiation
is ongoing and is expected to be settied vathin the
2017-18 financial year. The outcome of this negatiation
may result in Council needing to recognise a liability

in the Statement of Financial Position.

Other guarantees

Coungcil has provided no other guarantees other than
those listed above.

Third party claims
The Council is invelved from time to time in vanious
claims incidental to the ordinary course of business

including ctaims for damages relating to its services

Council has no material contingent insurance liabvlities.
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Financial Statements 2017

Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 19. Interests in other entities

$ '000

Council’s objectives can and in some cases are best met through the use of separate entities and operations.

These operations and entities range from 100% ownership and control through to lower levels of ownership
and control via co-operative arrangements with other councils, bodies and other outside organisations.

The accounting and reporting for these various entities, operations and arrangements varies in accordance
with accounting standards, depending on the level of council's (i) interest and (il) control and the type (form) of
entity/operation, as follows;

Controlled entities (subsidiaries) Note 19(a)
Operational arrangements where Council's control {but not necessarily interest) exceeds 50%.

Note 19(b)
e at joint cofrol have
g nt i ce over th rations

Joint operations Note 159(c)
Operational arrangements where the parties that have joint control have rights to specific

assets and obligations for specific liabilties relating to the arrangement rather than a right

to the net assets of the arrangement

Joint ventures and associates
Joint ventures are operational an
nghts to the net assets of the arr;
Associates are separate entities :
(but neither controls nor jointly controls them).

Unconsolidated structured entities Note 19(d)
Unconsolidated structured entities represent "specia! vehicles” that Council has an interest

in but which are not controlied by Council and therefore not consolidated as a subsidiary,

Joint arrangement or associate. Attnbutes of structured entities include restricted activities,

a narrow and well-defined objective and insufficient equity to finance #s activities without

financial support.

Subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates not recognised Note 79(e)

Accounting recognition:

(1) Subsidiaries disclosed under Note 19(a) and joint operations disclosed at Note 19(c) are accounted foron a
‘line by line” consolidation basis within the Income Statement and Statement of Financial Position.

(ii) Joint ventures and associates as per Note 19(b) are accounted for using the equity accounting method
and are disclosed as a 1 line entry in both the Income Statement and Statement of Financial Position.

Council’s share of net income Council's share of net assets

Actual Actual Actual Actual

2017 2016 2017 2016

Joint ventures 29 (34) 73 44

Total 29 (34) 73 44
page 68

Attachments for the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 24 October 2017 - Page 74



Attachment 1

Camden Council Financial Statements

Financial Statements 2017

Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 19. Interests in other entities (continued)

$ "000

(a) Controlled entities {subsidiaries) — being entities and operations controlled by Council

Council has no interest in any controlled entities (subsidiaries).

(b) Joint ventures and associates

Council has included the following joint ventures and associates into its consolidated financial statements.(a)

Net carrying amounts - Council's share

Nature of Measurement
Name of entity refationship method 2017 2016
Civic Risk West Equi 20 (28)
Civic Risk Mutual ui 53 72
Total carrying amounts - ma cidtes 73 44
(b) Details
Place of

Name of entity Principal activity business
Civic Risk West Liability insurance and risk management Penrith
Civic Risk Mutual General insurance and risk management Penrith
{c) Relevant interests and fair values Interest in Interest in Proportion of

outputs ownership voling power
Name of entity 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Civic Risk West 01% L01% 01% D1%  10% 10%
Civic Risk Mutual 08% 1.0% 08% 1.0% 50% 59%
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Financial Statements 2017

Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 19. Interests in other entities (continued)

$ '000

(b) Joint ventures and associates (continued)

(d) Summarised financial information for joint ventures and associates

Civic Risk West Civic Risk Mutuai
Statement of financial position 2017 2018 2017 2016
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2935 2,960 506 171
Other current assets 13,732 9,749 6,239 4177
Non-current assets 47,434 47,864 5,889 8,539

Current liabilities

Current financial liabilities {excl@ e

and other payables and provisid 5 4999 2,89 2,800
Other current liabilities 688 523 423 346

Non-current liabilities
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding
trade and other payables and provisions) 20,429 22,856 2,830 2,454

Net assets 37,976 32,195 6,490 7,287

Reconciliation of the carrying amount

Opening net assets (1 July) 32,185 20943 7,287 7518
Profit/(loss) for the penod 7.465 3,498 (797) (231)
Other adjustments to equity . (1884)  (1.246) - -
Closing net assets 37976 32,195 6,490 7,287
Council's share of net assets (%) 0.1% 0,1% 0.8% 1.0%
Council's share of net assets (§) 20 (28) 53 72

Statement of comprehensive income

Income 7.066 7421 8,301 8,551
Interest income 3,757 2438 584 423
Interest expense (17) (17) - -
Other expenses (3.341) (6.244) (9,682) (9,205)
Profit/{loss) for period 7465 3498 (197) _ (231)
Total comprehensive income 7465 3498 e (231)
Share of income — Council (%) 0.6% 0.1% 2.3% 13.9%
Profit/(loss) - Council ($) 48 (2) (19) (32)
Total comprehensive income — Council ($) 48 (2) (19) (32)

*Councl has used information provided by the actuary for both comprehensive income and closing net assets, advice from the actuary is
that where percentage figures do not multiply correctly they will be rounding errors across the 10 counal's ncluded in this joint venture
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 19. Interests in other entities (continued)

$ "000

(c) Joint operations

Council has no interest in any joint operations.

(d) Unconsolidated structured entities

Council has no unconsolidated structured entities

(e) Subsidiaries. joint arrangements and associates not recognised

The following subsidianes, joint arrangements and associates have not been recognised in this financial report.

2017 2016
Name of entity/operation entity % Owned % Owned

Macarthur Regional Organisation of Australia 33%
Councils (MACROC)

Reasons for non-recognition
The Macarthur Regional Organisation of Councits (MACROC) is an advisory body for the Macarthur region’s
three local government authorities:

Camden Council
Campbelitown City Council
Wollondilly Shire Council

Formed in 1986, MACROC’s mission is to work at a regional level to advocate, lobby, promote regional
cooperation and o leverage additional funding for a wide range of projects of regional significance.

MACROC works collaboratively with other organizations to achieve positive outcomes for the region.

MACROC is established under Section 355 of the Local Government Act 1993. Decisions of MACROC will not
himit the Individual integrity of the operation of each member of Council, nor affect the right of an individual
Council acting in its own right on matters.

Member Councils are committed to MACROC being self funding. Member Council's contribute to an equal
agreed sum as its financial contribution towards the operating cost of MACROC. Such funds are held and
managed by Campbelitown City Council as are financial reporting obligations. Each member Council will
contribute equally to the cost of managing the financial affairs of MACROC.
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Fnancial Statements 2017
Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 20 June 2017

Note 20. Retained earnings, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting
policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors

Actual Actual
$'000 Notes 2017 2016
(a) Retained earnings
Movements in retained earnings were as follows:
Balance at beginning of year (from previous years audted accounts) 784,382 649,629
a. Net operating result for the year 96,704 134,753
Balance at end of the reporting period 881,086 784,382

(b) Revaluation reserves

(i) Reserves are represented
- Infrastructure, propenrty. p merntgeyaluati rve 440,215 388,967

Total 440,215 388,967
{ii) Reconciliation of movements in reserves:

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve

- Opening balance 388,967 370,245
- Revaluations for the year 30) 51,248 18,722
- Balance at end of year 440,215 388,967
Revaluation — Land and Building 8,791 -
Revaluation - Land Under Roads 42,457 -
Revaluation — Community land - 10,035
Revaluation — Land Improvements — non-depreciable - 3,922
Revaluation - Land Improvements - depreciable - 1.069
Revaluation - Other Structures - 2,973
Revaluation — Other Open Space/recreational assets - 723

51,248 18,722

(iii) Nature and purpose of reserves

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve

- The infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation
reserve is used to record increments/decrements of non-current
asset values due to their revaluation.

page 72

Attachments for the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 24 October 2017 - Page 78



Attachment 1 Camden Council Financial Statements

Fnancial Statements 2017

Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 20 June 2017

Note 21. Financial result and financial position by fund

$'000

Council utilises only a general fund for its operations,

Note 22, ‘Held for sale’ non-current assets and disposal groups

Council did not classify any non-current assets or disposal groups as ‘held for saie'.

Note 23. Events occu

Events that occur between the Jiine 2017) aqg the date when the financial
statements are ‘authorised for issue’ have been taken into account in preparing these statements.

Council has adopted the date of receipt of the Auditors’ Report as the applicable ‘authorised for issue’ date
relating to these General Purpose Financial Statements.

Accordingly, the 'authorised for issue’ date is 24/10/17.

Note 24, Discontinued operations

Council has not classified any of its operations as “discontinued’.

Note 25. Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance.

Council is unaware of any control over intangible assets that warrant recognition in the financial statements,
including either internally generated and developed assets or purchased assels.

Note 26. Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration liabilities

Council has no outstanding obligations to make, restore, rehabilitate or reinstate any of its assets/operations.
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Fnancial Statements 2017

Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 20 June 2017

Note 27. Fair value measurement

$'000

The Council measures the following asset and liability classes at fair value on a recurring basis:

— Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
- Investment property
— Financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of assets and liabilties must be estimated in accordance with vanous accounting standards for
either recognition and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all asseis and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a
‘level’ in the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access

at the measurement date
@ I w 1 hat are obs@rvable for the asset or liability,
)

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Level 2: Inputs other than quo!
either directly or indire

(1) The following table presents all assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at

fair values:
| Fair value measurement hierarchy |
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
)ate Quoted Significant Significant
Recurring fair value measurements of tatest prices in observable  unobservable
valuatior active mkts inputs inputs
Investment properties
Land 30081 - 11,850 - 11,950
Building 301081 - 400 - 400
Total investment properties ~ 12,350 - 12,350
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Operational Land 0061 3 - 91,083 - 91,063
Community Land 1006/ - - 112,884 112,884
Land under Roads 08N T - - 102,821 102,821
Land Improvements 10061 - - 34,173 34173
Buildings (Specialised & Non Specialised) 300601 - 68,305 - 68,395
Other Structures ) 1 - - 17,543 17,543
Roads IT0EN 5 < - 449 667 449 667
Bridges IVGRE - - 29,493 29,493
Footpaths 300615 - - 34 225 34,225
Bulk Earthworks 0061 - - 15,952 15,952
Stormwater Drainage 3008/ - - 256 429 256,429
Other Open Space / Recreational Assets 3084 - - 3,562 3,562
Other Assets - 1,177 1177
Total infrastructure, property, plant and equipment - 159,458 1,057,956 1,217,414
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 20 June 2017

Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

$'000

(1) The following table presents all assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at
fair values: (continued)

| Fair value measurement hierarchy |

2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Date Quated Significant Significant
Recurring fair value measurements of latest prices in observable  unobservable
aluatior active mkls npuls inputs
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Operational Land 30080 - 88,028 - 88,028
Community Land 108/ - - 112,968 112,968
Land under Roads 3081 4 = - 55,551 55,551
Land Improvements 100801 ¢ - - 33,998 33,998
Buildings (Specialised & Non lalised) 0406/ | 42 470 - 42,470
Other Structures YO - 14,196 14,156
Roads 30 =% 414 816 414 816
Bridges - 25711 25711
Footpaths & G 31,822 31,822
Bulk Earthworks 30081 - - 15,952 15,952
Stormwater Drainage 30/080 - - 237,745 237,745
Other Open Space / Recreational Assets 0 ¢ - - 2621 2621
Total infrastructure, property, plant and equipment - 130,498 946,344 1,076,842

(2) Transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies

During the year, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies for recurring fair
value measurements,
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Fnancial Statements 2017

Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 20 June 2017

Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

$'000

(3) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values
The fair valuation techniques Council has employed while ulilising level 2 and level 3 inputs are as follows

Investment properties:

Land - Operational and Investment properties

Level two valuation input were used to value land held in freehold title as well as land used for special purposes
which is restricted in use under current zoning rules. Sales proces of comparable land sites in close proximity are
adjusted for differences in key atributes such as property size The most sagnificant inputs into this valuation
approach are price per square melre

Building and Investments properties

The commercial perperty market aczoss qg has s i f improvement over the last
three (3) years with an increase || f scalaiifg valugs. Speciall iidings were valued using
the cost approach using profess ifisg A prs, rate Based on square meters could be
supported from market evidence

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPP&E)

Operational Land

This asset class contains land cefined as operational land in accordance vath the NSW Local Government Act 1993,
Council last valued operational land at fair value in June 2013 Operational land values were provided by an external
valuer (Scott Fullarton Valuations Pty Ltd)

Generally fair value s the most advantageous price reasonably obtainable by the seller and the most advantageous price
reasonably obtained by the buyer. This is not necessarily the market selling price of the asset rather, it is regarded as the
maximum value that agency management weuld rationally pay to acquire the asset if it did not hold it. taking into account,
quoted market price in an active and liquid market, the current market price of the same or similar asset, the cost of
replacing the asset, if management intend to replace the asset, the remaining useful life and condition of the asset and
cash flows from the future use and disposal

There has been no change to the valuation process for this asset class during this reporting period Council Operational
land is being utibsed for its highest and best use,

In 2016-17 only one Operational Land Asset was added to the inventory — 70-74 Central Avenue, Oran Park. Scott

Fultarton was engaged to perform independent valuation for this asset. The valuation technigue used was based on
market appreach on recent sales This has been reflected as the change in total operational land value in 201617
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 20 June 2017

Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

$'000

(3) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values (continued)
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPP&E) (continued)

Community Land

This asset class contains land defined as community land in accordance with the NSW Local Government Act 1893
Community land is land intended for public access and use or where other restrictions applying to the land create some
obligation to maintain public access. Therefore there a number of restrictions on community land including that; it cannot
be sold, cannot be leased for more than 21 years, and must have a plan of management.

Coungcils are permitted to use the NSW Valuer General's valuations to represent fair valuation for the revaluation of
community fand, Camden Council has adopted this approach for the valuation of its community land assets. Community

land was valued as at 30 June 2Q18 4sing th Valuer Genera i
There has been no change to tha 3 rth tcl ing thi reporting period. Council Community
Land Is being utilised for its hiahe ;

Land under Roads

Land under roads is land under roadways and read reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips and median
strips. Council intially recognised land under roads in 2011, All land under roads has been recognised on an englobo
valuation basis, based upen a municipal rate. The englobo basis of valuation is based on the concept of developing a
raw land value for land under roads.

Land under roads were revalued as at 30 June 2017 financial year, the value being calculated according to the revised
municipal rate. Council uses the Englobo basis for valuation and as per the methodelogy a discount rate of 90% is
apphed for Land under roads. The next revaluation will b2 conducted as at 30 June 2018 There has been no change o
the valuation process for this asset class during this reporting penod.

Land Improvements

This asset class contains all works carned out on land to improve its utility, service potential or make It ready for an
identified use It includes tems such as but not limited to playing courts and fiekds, imgation and landscaping. In 2015-16,
valuations were undertaken for this Asset Category and were completed by Council staff using the depreciable
replacement cost This was completed with the assistance of specialist staff such as Landscape Architects within the
Council and developer/contractor component breakdown. To estimate the replacement cost rates for this Asset Category,
the following sources were accessed:

- Cordell Commercial Building Cost Guide 2016,

- Rawlinson's — 2016 — Australian Construction Handbook andlor

- Actual supplied project cost rates for unigue items.

The inputs used to value these assets, Including estimates of residual value, patterns of consumption, asset condition
and useful life required extensive professicnal judgement which has had a significant impact on the final determination of
fair value.
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Financial Statements 2017

Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

$ '000

(3) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values (continued)
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPP&E) (continued)

Buildings (Specialised & Non Specialised)
Council's butlgings (specialised and non-specialised) were valued by an external valuer in June 2013. The valuations

were provided by Scott Fullarton Pty Ltd

The gross value of each building was obtained by applying a unit rate to a structure, or a square meter rate to a
building, based on its current replacement costs, which is the lowest cost of replacing the economic benefits of the
existing asset using modern technology. Whilst each budding was physically inspected, the inputs used to value
these assets, iInciuding estimates of residual value, patterns of consumption, asset condition and useful life required
extensive professional judgement which has had a significant impact on the final determination of far value.

thi cl ing thi& reporting period. New Buildings
to ba at conBtruction cost The next revaluation
Other Structures

This asset class contains ail other structures not included in the category of buildings that are controlied by Councll
and have been constructed for a variety of purpeses. It includes park furniture, park signage, play equipment,
fencing and retaining walis. For FY17, the Other Structures Asset Category has been further componentised into:

There has been no change to the
received by developers in FY16
vall be conducted as at 30 June

« Other Structures - In 2015-16, valuations were undertaken for this Asset Category and were compieted by Council
staff using the depreciable replacement cost This was completed with the assistance of specialist staff such as
Landscape Architects within the Council and developer/contractor component breakdown, To estimate the
replacement cost rates for this Asset Category, the follovang sources were accessed.

- Cordell Commercial Building Cost Guide 2018,

- Rawlinson's - 2016 ~ Australian Construction Handbook and/or

- Actual supplied preject cost rates for unigque items

Cther Structures (Artworks, Sculptures, Murais) — In 2015-16, valuations were undertaken for this category and
were completed by McWilliams & Associated Pty Ltd where the Valuer nominated Market Value was utilised as the
Current Replacement Cost of an Asset

« Other Structures (Paintings) - In 2015-16, valuations were undertaken for this category and were completed by
McWilllams & Associated Pty Litd where the Valuer nominated Market Value was utllised as the Current
Replacement Cost of an Asset.

» Other Structures {Cemetery) - In 2016-17, Camden Cemetery Stage 1 works were completed. The Assets
constructed in-house in FY17 have been brought into account based on at construction cost,

The inputs used to value these assets, including estimates of residual value, patterns of consumption, asset
condition and useful Iife required extensive professional judgement which has had a significant impact on the final
determination of fair value

There has been no change to the valuation process for this asset class dunng this reporting period
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 20 June 2017

Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

$'000

(3) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values (continued)
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPP&E) (continued)

Roads

This asset class comprises of the road structure (carriageway), kerb and gutter, traffic signs, road structures (such as
roundabouts and medians) and road fumiture (such as bus shelters and guardrails). The valuation of roads and road
structures was undertaken as at 30 June 2015 using the depreciable reptacement cost (unit rate) The construction cest
estimation was undertaken using 2014 Ravdinson's ~ Australian Construction Handbeok standard rates.

The condition assessment for all Asset Classes under Roads Asseat category was conducted using several
methodologies:

1. External Data Collection by Palle
2. Internal Asset Data collection ting
The level of componentisation a 3 e AASB118, OLG Circular 08-09 and the Institute
of Public Works Engineers inter Al M@nagententianual (IIM

The written down value of each asset was determined based on asset remaining useful life and asset depreciation was
calculated using straight-line depreciation methedology as described in AASB116. The component standard useful lives
have been identified using suggested lives in IPWEA IIMM or as part of professional judgement after noting the asset
depreciation and consumption pattern within Camden or in comparison with other Councils.

Bridges

Councll has three main types of tridges which are culverts, footbridges and road tridges. The valuation of bridges was
undertaken as at 30 June 2015 using the depreciable replacement cost {unit rate). The construction cost estimation was
based on actual project cost rates for footbridges and road bridges. The construction cost rate estimation for culverts was
undertaken using 2014 Rawlinson's — Australian Construction Handbook standard rates.

The inputs used to value these assets, including estimates of residual value; patterns of consumption, asset condition
and useful life have been identified using suggested lives in IPWEA IIMM or as part of professional judgement after
noting the asset depreciation pattern in the Council and comparing the information with other Councils

Condition assessmaents were conducted through in-house level 1 visual inspection in 2014-15. The assessment was
conducted by internal Councii staff. Condition assessments were based on four key components: superstructure,
abutment, sub-structure and general/miscellanecus.

The written down value of each asset was determined based on asset remaining useful life and asset depreciation was
calculated using strasght-line depreciation methodology as described in AASB116. The component standard useful lives
have been identified using suggested fives in IPWEA IIMM or as part of professional judgement after noting the asset
depreciation and consumption pattern within Camden or in comparison with other Councils
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 20 June 2017

Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

$'000

(3) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values (continued)

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPP&E) (continued)

Footpaths

This asset class compnses footpaths and cycle ways. The valuation of footpaths was as at 30 June 2015 using the
depreciable replacement cost (unit rate). The construction cost estimation was undertaken using 2014 Rawlinson's -
Australian Construction Handbook standard rates.

The condition assessment for all Asset Classes under Footpath asset class was conducted by internal Asset Data

collection by Camden Council — LGA wde sample data collection in 2014-15. The internal data collection was
undertaken to provide comprehensue c

The written down value of each aSset waglda 9
calculated using straight-line depggcia : 3 =@in AASB11 The component standard useful lives
have been identified using sugg Si ; 3 al judgement after noting the asset
depreciation and consumption pattern within Camden or in comparison with other Councils

Stormwater Drainage

Council has grouped Its stormwater assets into four main types which are pits, pipes, headwalis and stormwater gualty
improvement devices. The valuation of stormwater drainage was as at 30 June 2015 using the depreciable replacement
cost (unit rate). The construction cost estimation was undertaken using 2014 Rawlinson's — Australian Construction
Handbook standard rates

The inputs used to value these assets, Including estimates of pattern of consumption, asset condition and usaful life have
been identified using suggested Ives in IPWEA IIMM or as part of prafessional judgement after noting the asset
depreciation pattern in the Council and comparing the information wath other Councils.

Condition assessments were conducted through in-house sample data collection by conducting visual inspections
including collecting photegraphic evidence of sampie assets. The assessment was conducted by internal Council staff in
2014-15

The written down value of each asset was determined based on asset remaining useful life and asset depreciation was
calculated using straght-line depreciation methedology as descnbed in AASB116. The component standard useful lives
have been |dentified using suggested lives in IPWEA IIMM or as part of professional judgement after noting the asset
depreciation within Camden or in comparson with other Councils.
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Camden Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 20 June 2017

Note 27. Fair value measurement (continued)

$'000

(3) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values (continued)
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPP&E) (continued)
Open Space / Recreational Assets & Other Assets

This asset class Includes all of the Council's Playgrounds and associated Playground Comgonents such as fitness
equipment, piay equipment, playground Softfall and edging assets.

Valuations were undertaken in 2015-16 and were completed by Playfix Pty Ltd using the depreciable replacement cost
for all Playground Equipment. The inputs used to vaiue the Playground Assets, including estimates of residual value,
patterns of consumption required extensive professional judgement which was externally sourced. The external valuer
also performed detaded conditios e remaining useful lives of each
playground equipment compone:

In 2015-16, valuations were undsg ing assets and were completed by
Council staff using the depreciab = assistance of speciaiist staff such as
Landscape Architects within the Council and developer/contractor component breakdown. To estimate the replacement
cost rates for this Asset Category, the following sources were accessed:

- Cordell Commercial Bullding Cost Guide 2016,
- Rawlinsons — 2016 -~ Australian Construction Handbook andior
- Actual supplied project cost rates for unigue items

The inputs used to value the assets in this Asset Category, including estimates of residual value, pattemns of
consumption, asset condition and useful life required extensive professional judgement which has had a significant
impact on the final determination of fair value.

There has been no change to the valuation process for this asset class during this reporting period and the written down
value of each asset was determined based on asset remaining useful life and asset depreciation was calculated using
straight-line depreciation methodology as described in AASB116

(4). Highest and best use

Local Government has a responsibility to provide many assets for community purpose and therefore not all
assels are held at highest and best use.

(5). Reconciliation of movements

A reconciliation of movements in recurring fair value measurements allocated to Level 3 can be seen in
Note 9 (a) of the Financlal Statements.
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Camden Council

SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Camden, the Best of Both Worlds

council
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Camden Council Financial Statements

SPFS 2017
Camden Council
Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Contents Page
1. Statement by Councillors and Management spP2
2. Special Purpose Financial Statements:
Income Statement — Other Business Activities SP3
Statement of Financial Position — Other Business Activities SP4
3. Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements SP5
4. Auditor's Report SP9

DRAFT

Background

U]

(iii)

These Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared for the use by both Coungil and the Office of
Lecal Government In fullilling their requirements under National Compettion Pobcy.

The principle of competitive neutralty is based on the concept of a ‘level playing field' between persons/entities
competing in a market place, particularly between private and public sector competitors

Essentially, the principle is that government businesses, whether Commonweaith, state or local, should operate
without net competitive advantages over other businesses as a result of their public ownership.

For Council, the principle of competitive neutrality and public reporting appties only to declared business activities

These include (a) these activities classified by the Austraiian Bureau of Statistics as business activities being
water supply, sewerage services, abattoirs, gas preduction and reticutation, and (b) those activities formally
declared as a business activity (defined as Category 1 or 2 activities)

In preparing these financial statements for Council's self-classified Category 1 businesses and ABS-defined
activities, councils must (a) adopt a corporatisation model and (b) apply full cest attribution including tax-equivalent
regime payments and debt guarantee fees (where the business benefits from Council's borrowing pesition by
companson with commercial rates),
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Camden Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Statement by Councillors and Management
made pursuant to the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

The attached Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:

* the NSW Government Policy Statement ‘Application of National Competition Policy to
Local Government’,

* the Office of Local Government Guidelines ‘Pricing and Cosling for Council Businesses — A
Guide to Competitive Neutrality’,

* the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting,

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these financial statements:
*  present fairly the ope
activities for the year,

3 g abci jtion FhTal’s declared business
* accord with Council’s 3868 s 5 ;

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 24 October 2017.

Cr Lara Symkowiak Cr Theresa Fedel

MAYOR DEPUTY MAYOR

Ron Moore Paul Rofe

GENERAL MANAGER RESPONSBILE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
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Camden Council

Income Statement of Council's Other Business Activities
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Commercial Waste

Category 2

Actual Actual
$ '000 2017 2016
Income from continuing operations
User charges ) 878 745
Total income from continuing operations 878 745
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 229 204
Materials and contracts 220 205
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 46 43
Other expenses - _ o183 158
Total expenses from continuing operations 658 610

Surplus (deficit) from continuin

Grants and contributions provi
Surplus (deficit) from continuin

tion capitalgmou 135
@ ; se =
op on$iafter Bapif#l amolpt 22 136

Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations - -

Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 220 135
Less. corporate taxation equivalent {30%) [basad on result before captal] (66) (41)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX 154 94
Plus opening retained profits 1,244 1,427
- Corporate taxation equivalent 66 41
Less:

— Dividend paid (972) (318)
Closing retained profits 492 1,244
Return on capital % 149.7% 80.8%
Subsidy from Council - -

SPFS 2017
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SPFS 2017
Camden Council
Statement of Financial Position — Council's Other Business Activities
as at 30 June 2017
Commercial Waste
Category 2

Actual Actual
$ ‘000 2017 2016
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 334 1,075
Receivables 11 9
Total Current Assets 345 1,084
Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 147 167
Total non-current assets 147 167
TOTAL ASSETS 492 1,251
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables . U Y &
Total current liabilities - 7
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 7
NET ASSETS 492 1,244
EQUITY
Retained earnings 492 1,244
Council equity interest 492 1,244
TOTAL EQUITY 492 1,244
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SPFS 2017
Camden Council
Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Contents of the notes accompanying the financial statements
Note Details Page
1 Summary of significant accounting policies SP6
page SP 5

Attachments for the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 24 October 2017 - Page 94



Attachment 1

Camden Council Financial Statements

Camden Council

SPFS 2017

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1. Significant accounting policies

A statement summansing the supplemental
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
Special Purpose Financial Statements (SPFS) for
National Competition Policy (NCP) reporting
purposes follows.

These financial statements are SPFS prepared for
use by Council and the Office of Local Government.
For the purposes of these statements, the Council is
a non-reporting not-for-profit entity.

The figures presented In these Special Purpose
Financial Statements have been prepared In
accordance with the recognition and measurement

critenia of relevant Australian A ng ards,
other authoritative pronounce th ian
Accounting Standards Board n an

Accounting Interpretations.

The disclosures in these Special Purpose Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), the Local
Government (General) Regulation, and the Local
Government Code of Accounting Practice and
Financial Reporting.

The stalements are prepared on an accruals basis,
They are based on historic costs and do not take into
account changing money values or, except where
specifically stated. current values of non-current
assels, Certain taxes and other costs, appropriately
described, have been imputed for the purposes of
the National Competition Policy.

National Competition Policy

Council has adopted the principle of ‘competitive
neutrality” in its business activities as part of the
National Competition Policy which is being applied
throughout Australia at all levels of government.

The framework for its application is set out in the
June 1996 NSW government policy statement titled
‘Application of National Competition Policy to Local
Government'.

The Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses, A
Guide to Competitive Neutrality issued by the Office
of Local Government in July 1897 has also been
adopted.

The pricing and costing guidefines outline the
process for identifying and allocating costs to

activities and provide a standard for disclosure
requirements.

These disclosures are reflected in Council’s pricing
and/or financial reporting systems and include
taxation equivalents, Council subsidies, return on
investments (rate of return), and dividends paid.

Declared business activities

In accordance with Pricing and Costing for Council
Businesses — A Guide to Competitive Neulrality,
Council has declared that the following are to be
considered as business activities:

ate
ratin@fumover is over $2 million)
N

Category 2
(where gross operafing turnover is Jess than $2 milion)

Camden Commercial Waste Activity

Provide a diversified range of waste removal
services to business operations in the Camden
local government area.

Monetary amounts

Amounts shown in the financial statements are in
Australian currency and rounded to the nearest
thousand dollars.

(i) Taxation-equivalent charges

Council is liable to pay various taxes and financial
duties. Where this is the case, they are disclosed as
a cost of operations just like all other costs.

However, where Council does nol pay some laxes
which are generally paiki by private sector
businesses, such as income lax, these equivalent tax
payments have been applied to all Council-
nominated business activities and are reflected in
Special Purpose Financial Statements.

For the purposes of disclosing comparative
information relevant to the private sector equivalent,
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Camden Council

SPFS 2017

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

the following taxation equivalents have been applied
to all Counci-nominated business activities (this
does not include Council's non-business activities):

Notional rate applied (%)

Corporate income tax rate - 30%

Land tax— the first $549,000¢f combined land
values attracts 0%. For the combined land values in
excess of $549.001 up to $3,357,000 the rate
is 1.6% + $100. For the remaining combined land
value that exceeds $3,357,000 a premium marginal

rate of 2.0% applies.
ﬁ xaRﬂs

Payroll tax — 5.45% on the
and wages In excess of $750,

An income tax equivalent has been applied on the
profits of the business activities.

Income tax

Whilst income tax is not a specific cost for the
purpose of pricing a good or service, it needs to be
taken into account in terms of assessing the rate of
return required on capital invested,

Accordingly, the return on capital invested is set at a
pre-tax level - gain/(loss) from ordinary activities
before capital amounts, as would be applied by a
private sector competitor. That is, it should include a
provision equivalent to the corporate income tax rate,
currently 30%..

Income tax is only applied where a gain/ (loss) from
ordinary activities before capital amounts has been
achieved.

Since the taxation equivalent is notional — that is, it is
payable to Council as the ‘owner of business
operations, it represents an internal payment and
has no effect on the operations of the Council,
Accordingly, there is no need for disclosure of
internal charges in the SPFS.

The 30% rate applied is the equivalent company tax
rate prevalent al reporting date. No adjustments
have been made for variations that have occurred
during the year.

Local government rates and charges

A calculation of the equivalent rates and charges
payable on all category 1 businesses has been
applied to all land assets owned or exclusively used
by the business activity.

Loan and debt guarantee fees

The debt guarantee fee is designed to ensure that
council business activities face ‘true’ commercial
borrowing costs in  line  with private sector
competitors.

debt guarantee fee, Council
the differential borrowing rate
tween the commercial rate and
rate for its business activities.

(ii) Subsidies

Government policy requires that subsidies provided
to customers, and the funding of those subsidies,
must be explicitly disclosed.

Subsidies occur when Council provides services on a
less-than-cost-recovery basis. This oplion is
exercised on a range of services in order for Council
to meet its community service obligations.

Accordingly, 'subsidies disclosed’ (in relation to
National Competition Policy) represents the
difference between revenue generated from 'rate of
return’ pricing and revenue generated from prices set
by Council in any given financial year.

The overall effect of subsidies is contained within the
Income Statement of each reported business activity.

(iii) Return on investments (rate of return)

The NCP policy statement requires that councils with
Category 1 businesses 'would be expected to
generate a retum on capital funds employed that is
comparable to rates of return for private businesses
operating in a similar field’,

Such funds are subsequently available for meeting

commitments or financing future investment
strategies.
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Camden Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

The actual rate of retun achieved by each business
aclivity is disclosed at the foot of each respective
Income Statement.

The rate of return is calculated as follows:

Operating result before capital Income + interest expense

Written down vaiue of | PP&E as at 30 June

As a minimum, business activities should generate a
return equal to the Commonwealth 10 year bond rate
which is 2.60% at 30/6/17,

AFT

Council is not required to pay divide o ei
itself (as owner of a range of businesses) or to any
extemnal entities.

As part of its 2016-17 Council resolved to retain 50%
of Commercial Waste's Funded Surplus for the year
(Budget amount $48 266, actual $81,732). Amounts
of $190,000 and $700,000 were also allocated to
fund General Fund operations and the Central
Administration Building respectively.
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Camden Council

SPECIAL SCHEDULES
for the year ended 30 June 2017
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Attachments for the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 24 October 2017 - Page 98



Attachment 1 Camden Council Financial Statements

Specal Schedules 2017
Camden Council
Special Schedules
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Contents Page
Special Schedules'
Special Schedule 1 Net Cost of Services 882
Special Schedule 2(a) Statement of Long Term Debt (all purposes) SS4
Special Schedule 7 Report on Infrastructure Assets S8 5
Special Schedule 8 Permissible Income Calculation SS 10

DRAFT

' Special Schedules are not audited (with the exception of Special Schedule 8),

Background
(i) These Special Schedules have been designad to meet the requirements of special purpose users such as,

* the NSW Grants Commission
*  the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS),and
* the Office of Local Government (OLG)

() The financial data is collected for various uses including,

the allocation of Financial Assistance Grants,

the incorporation of Local Government financial figures in nationa! statistics,
the monitoring of loan approvals,

the allocation of borrowing rights, and

the monitoring of the financial activities of specific services.
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Camden Council
Special Schedule 1 — Net Cost of Services
for the year ended 20 June 2017
$'000

Expenses from Income from Nk co
Function or activity continuing continuing operations ¢

of services
operations Non-capital Capital
Governance ) 1,882 25 - (1,857)
Administration 28,918 3,487 2,112 (23,320)
Public order and safety
Fire service levy, fire protection, emergency
services 995 518 - (477)
Beach control - - - -
Enforcement of local government regulations 520 - - {520)
Animal control 249 49 - (200)
Other 8 - - (8)
Total public order and safety 17 - (1,205)
Health 114 - (863)
Envireanment
Noxious plants and insectivermin control 124 31 - (93)
Other environmental protecton 35 - - (35)
Solid waste management 9,170 12,203 - 3,033
Street cleaning - - - -
Crainage - - - -
Stormater management 2,728 520 22,420 20,214
Total environment 12,0565 12,754 22,420 23,119
Community services and education
Administration and education 222 25 - (197)
Social pretection (welfare) 669 145 - (524)
Aged persons and disabled 48 - - (48)
Youth Services 53 - - (53)
Children's services 1,882 1,891 - (91)
Other Community Services 28 45 - 17
Total community services and education 3,002 2,106 - (896)
Housing and community amenities
Public cemeteres 48 356 - 308
Public conveniences 192 - - (192)
Street lighting 1,681 - - (1,681)
Town planning 3,291 2408 - (883)
Other community amenities 33 - 6,288 6,255
Total housing and community amenities 5,245 2,764 6,288 3,807
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Specal Schedules 2017

Camden Council
Special Schedule 1 — Net Cost of Services (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2017
$'000

Expenses from Income from Nk cont
Function or activity continuing continuing operations s

of services
operations Non-capital Capital

Recreation and culture
Public fibranes 1,884 244 - (1.640)
Museums - - - -
Art galleries 15 - - (15)
Community centres and halls 1,461 1,441 3,301 3,281
Performing arts venues - - - -
Otner performing arts - - - -
Other cuitural services - - - -
Sporting grounds and venues 335 - - (336)
Swimming pools 3,917 4027 - 110
Parks and gardens {lakes) 8,400 263 6,367 {1,770)
Other sport and recreation 1 231 298
Total recreation and culture 6, 6,16 9,899 (72)
Fuel and energy - -
Agriculture - - - -
Mining, manufacturing and construction
Bulldng centrel 6,710 8,685 - 1,985
Other mrng, manufacturing and construction - - - -
Total mining, manufacturing and const. 6,710 8,695 - 1,885
Transport and communication
Urban roads (UR) - local 12,220 118 58,500 44,488
Urban roads —regional - 17 - 17
Sealed rural roads (SRR) ~ lecal 196 - 100 (96)

Sealed rural rosds (SRR} - regional - - - -
Unsealed rural roads (URR) - local - - - .
Unsealed rural roads (URR) - regional - - - =
Bridges on UR - local 495 - - (496)
Bridges on SRR - local - - - 2
Bridges on URR —local - - x -
Bridges on regional roads - - - —
12 - - (12)

Parking areas

Footpaths 774 - - (774)
Aercdromes - - - -
Other transport and communicaton 1121 389 253 (499)
Total transport and communication 14,819 504 56,943 42628
Economic affairs

Camping areas and caravan parks - - - -
Other economic affairs 509 a8 - (471)
Total economic affairs 509 38 = (471)
Totals — functions 92,030 37,223 97,662 42,855
General purpose revenues 53,820 53,820
Share of Interests - joint ventures and

associates using the equity method - 29 29
NET OPERATING RESULT 92,030 91,072 97,662 96,704
{1) Includes: roles and ommusa! charges (including ex gratis, sxchading waler and sewes), non-capilad ganeral purpose (2) As repoded in the Income Stalemen|

Qrants, interast on Invastmoants (excluding axtamally restrictad assats) and nternast on ovesrdue rales and annual charges
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Special Schedules 2017
Camden Council

Special Schedule 7 — Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Amounts Indicator Prior periods
$ '000 2017 2017 bencems 2016 2015

Infrastructure asset performance indicators *
consolidated

1. Infrastructure renewals ratio
Asset renewals ' 5,470

K =100 &1 13.85%
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 14,305 38.24% 8% 58
2. Infrastructure backlog ratio
Estimated cost to bring assets to a satisfactory standard 10,782 Y o

; <% % 1.63%
Net carrying amount of infrastructure assets 879,738 1.23% “Ex o
3. Asset maintenance ratio
Actual asset maintenance 5, 190 . 100 0.89 0.97
Required asset maintenance )
4, Cost to bring assets to agreed service level
Estimated cost to bring assets to
an agread service level set by Council 10,782 0.95% 0.98%
Gross replacement cost 1,130,373
Notes

All asset performance indicators are calculated using the asset classes identified in the previous table

IV Asset renewals represent the replacement and/or refurbishment of existing assets fo an equivatent
capacity/performance as cpposed to the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that
increases capacity/performance
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Camden Council

Special Schadules 2017

Special Schedule 7 — Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Commen on 2016/17 result
1. Infrastructure renewals ratio Purpose of asset tary
140% : P renewals ratio 2016/17 Ratio  38.24%
120% -
100% The benchmark for this ratio |8 better than 100%. A
e e PR, % " AR higher rerewal spending by Councll has resuted in
s 0% Tv‘:hid\ ; lhta;:;:l 2 improved ratio compared 1o last year It is difficult
i &0% S are being renewed to justdy s ratio of more than 100% fSor Camden
40% 31.61% rilat ihe Council whan Counci has a high proportion af naw
13.85% veto the rale ot assets that at this paint in ther life cyclo do not
A% which M ae require renewal, Thie ratio dees not allow the
0% 1 depreiating. Inclusion of trarsfers to the asset renawal reserve
2015 2016 017 for future renewal purpose
Benchmark —— Minimum >=10G.00% Ratio achieves benchmark
Sowece for berchmark’ Code of Accounting Practice and Finencial Reporting #25 Ratio iz outside banchmark
frastruct rpose Commaentary on 2016/17 result
il 930 In':'astrud:'m S
3.0% . backlog ratio 2016117 Ratio  1.23%
2A%. ent infrastructure backlog is 1.23%
#2000 P he ndustry standard of less than

hich suppeets the continuation of

ey 5 ranevwal programs
1.0%
0.5%
0.0% -
Benchmark Maximum <2.00% Ratio achieves benchmark
Souwrce for benchmarke Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reparting #25 Ratio is cetside benchrmark
Commentary on 2016/17 result
3. Asset maintenance ratio Purpose of asset
1.40 maintenance ratio 2016117 Ratio  1.00 x
1.20
Councd's asset mantenance ratio i 1.00 (or
= T AT S - et Compares actual vs.
= g required annual asset 100%) which i required to ensure assets remain
o 080 maintenance. A ratio | | 2! g00d standard Councl has consistently
0.60 above 1.0 indicates invested in its maintenance program 10 ensure
0.40 Council is investing the asset backlog remains within the industry
020 - | enough funds to stop benchmark of 2%
0.00 “l tha infrastructure.
2015 2016 17 | | backlog growing.

Benchmark _
Source for benchmark. Code of Accounting Practics and Financial Reporting #25

Minirum >1 00

Ratio achieves berchmark
Ratio m cadside benctynark

Ratio 9%

4. Cost to bring assets to agreed service
. el

1.20%
1.00%

0.80%
0.60%
0.40%
0.20%
0.00%

Commentary on 2016/17 resuit

2016 2017

Purpose of agreed
service level ratio 2016/17 Ratio  0.95%
“Thisrafio provides @ | | Councirs “cost 1o bring assets (o an agreed
snapshat of the service level” is the same as Council's costs to
proparticn of bring assets to a satisfactory standard as they
outstanding renewal are both calcuated using a condition 2 (good)
works compared to rating. This cost is less than 1% of Ceuncif's total
the total value of gross replacement costs. In lieu of an industry
1 assets under benchmark this ratio ks still kess than 2% being
l Cauncirs care any the industry benchmark for cost to bring asssts
stewardshp to a satisfactory standard
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Special Schedules 2017

Camden Council

Special Schedule 8 — Permissible Income Calculation
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Calculation Calculation
$'000 2016/17 2017118
Notional general income calculation "
Last year notional general income yield : 40,386 45,348
Plus or minus adjustments ¥/ b 4,197 3,173
Notional general income tavd 44,563 48,621
Permissible income calculation
Special variation percentage ' ‘ 0.00% 0.00%
Or rate peg percentage - 1.80% 1.50%
or crown land adjustment (incl. rate peg percentage) { 0.00% 0.00%
Less expiring special variation amount ) - -
Pius special variation amount h=dx{c-g s -
Or plus rate peg amount 802 728
Or plus Crown land adjustment <! - -
Sub-total f ) 45,365 49,249
Plus (or minus) last year's camy 60 60
Less valuation objections claimed in the previous year 0l (18) -
Sub-total vl e 42 60
Total permissible income a=k+n 45408 49,309
Less notional general income yield p 45348 49,249
Catch-up or (excess) result qmo-p 60 59
Ptus income lost due to valuation objections claimed @ T - 1
Less unused catch-up ¥ : - -
Carry forward to next year {=gt+r-% 60 60
Notes

(1) The notional general income will not reconcife with rate income in the financial statements in the corresponding
year. The statements are reported on an accrual accounting basis which include amounts that relate to prior years'

rates income.
(2) Adjustments account for changes In the number of assessments and any increase or decrease In land value occurnng
during the year The adjustments are called ‘supplementary valuations' as defined in the Valuafion of Land Act 1918
(3) The 'special variation percentage' is inclusive of the rate peg percentage and where applicable Crown land adjustment.
(4) Valuation objections are unexpected changes in land values as a result of land owners successfully objecting to the
land value issued by the Valuer-General, Councils can claim the value of the income lost due to valuation objections in
any single year.
(5) Unused catch-up amounts will be deducted If they are not caught up vathin 2 years. Usually councils will have a
nominal carry forward figure. These amounts can be adjusted for in setting the rates in a future year

(6) Carry forward amounts which are in excass (an amount that exceeds the permissible income) require ministerial
approval by order published in the NSW Government Gazetfs In accordance vith section 512 of the Local
Govarnment Act 1983 . The OLG will extract these amounts from Councif's Special Schedule 8 in the financial data

return (FOR) to administer this process.
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Camden Development Control Plan 2011 (Draft Amendment No.21) — Acoustic
Amenity DCP

1. Acoustic Amenity

Background

Acoustic amenity in the community can be affected by a range of sources including. transportation
(motor vehicles, aircraft, trains), industrial uses of all types and many commercial uses. This can not
only be & potential annoyance, but at higher noise levels may also have health consequences.

A variety of mitigation strategies exist to reduce or manage sound levels and preserve the acoustic
amenity of an area. This subsection seeks to establish criteria and detail acoustic design measures to
minimise noise emissions that may arise from existing or proposed development.

Objectives

a) To minimise the impacts of noise from major transpor infrastructure and commercial and
industrial areas on residential amenity and other noise sensitive uses.

b) To achieve an acceptable noise environment whilst maintaining well designed and attractive
streetscapes.

¢) To minimise the impacts of noise on sensitive receivers through subdivision layout and building
design,

Controls
Acoustic Amenity (General)

1. Acoustic reports, where required, must be prepared by a suitably qualified consultant, As a
minimum an acoustic report must: identify receivers; detlermine background noise levels;
establish noise criteria; provide predicted noise levels (including relevant assumptions), assess
potential impacts; and consider reasonable and feasible mitigation measures.

Council may consider a preliminary assessment from a suitably qualified acoustic consultant,
justifying why an acoustic report is not required.

2. Wnere possible bedrooms, main living areas and principal private open spaces are to be located
away from noise sources.

3. Noise attenuation measures must not adversely impact upon passive surveillance, active street
frontages and energy efficiency.

4. No plant equipment shall generate a noise level greater than 5dBA above background noise level
as measured at the boundary of a noise sensitive property during the hours of 7.00am to
10.00pm. Noise from plant equipment must not be audible in habitable rooms of adjoining noise
sensitive properties during the hours of 10.00pm to 7.00am,

5. Physical noise bamers (ie. noise walls or solid fencing) (other than earth mounds) are not
generally supported along sub-arterial, transit boulevards or collector roads. Measures to
attenuate noise through subdivision layout, building setbacks, building onentation, building
design and materials selection should be implemented to achieve compliant noise levels.

6. The use of physical noise barriers (ie. noise walls or solid fencing) (other than earth mounds)
may be supported on arterial roads where it can be demonstrated that the following mitigation
measures, in the listed order, are not able to adequately attenuate the noise source:
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a. Locating less sensitive land uses between the noise source and the sensitive receivers,
b. Using the built form to act as noise barriers;
c. Optimising the subdivision layout to maximise shielding of principle private open space;
d. Incorporating noise mitigating building facade treatments and locating bedrooms, main

7.

living areas and principle private open space areas away from the noise source;

e. Using acoustic mounds and/or barriers where other mitigations measures fail 10 meet
relevant criteria.

Where noise barriers are required, they shall be of a neutral recessive colour and design which
blends in with the natural environment. In addition, barriers are to be screened from the road by
a landscape strip of at least 1m.

Noise from Road and Rail Traffic Noise

1.

3.

Development applications for residential development and other noise sensitive uses such as
places of public worship, hospitals, child care centres and educational establishments must be
accompanied by an acoustic report where the development is:

« adjacent to a railway line, arterial, sub-arterial roads, transit boulevards; or

« adjacent to a collector road that is within a 100m radius of the centre of the intersection the
above roads.

The principle private open space or an equivalent area of useable open space of a dwelling
within a new release area is not to exceed 57dBA LAeq(1hr) between 9am and 3pm.

For dwellings in areas outside of the new release areas, the principle private open space area is
to be attenuated to 55dBA LAeq(15hr) from 7am to 10pm.

Council may consider an increased decibel level where it can be demonstrated that the objectives
of this policy are met and the above criteria is not able to be reasonably or feasibly achieved.

Residential flat building developments are to meet the objectives of Part 4J of the NSW
Department of Planning and Environment - Apartment Design Guide fo minimise potential
impacts of road and rail noise through appropriate siting and layout of buildings, noise shielding
and attenuation,

Development applications for residential flat buildings are to document the noise mitigation
measures that have been incorporated into the design.

An area of communal open space is to be attenuated to 57dBA LAeqg(1hr) between 9am and
3pm.

Dwellings adjacent to a railway line, arterial road, sub-arterial road or transit boulevards, or
collector roads that are within 100m of the centre of the intersection of those roads, are (o be
designed to minimise the impact of noise and must ensure the following levels are not exceeded:

a. in any bedroom in the building—35 dB(A) LAeq (Shr) between 10 pm and 7 am,

b. anywhere else in the building (other than a garage, kitchen, bathroom or hallway) —
40 dB(A) LAeq (15hr)

New and Upgraded Roads and Traffic Generating Development near Residential and Other
Sensitive Land Uses

1.

Where new and upgraded roads or traffic generating developments are proposed near residential
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and other noise sensitive land uses, acouslic assessments are 1o be undertaken in accordance
with the NSW EPA Road Noise Policy.

Aircraft Noise

1. Any noise sensitive development, including but not limited to residential developments and
schools, within the ANEF 20 contour (or higher) are considered to be potentially affected by
aircraft noise and will require an acoustic assessment to be undertaken to demonstrate
compliance with Australian Standard 2021 - 2015 Acoustics — Aircraft Noise Intrusion - Building
Siting and Construction.

Noise from Industrial development or Commercial development (including Community
Facilities and Religious developments)

1. An acoustic assessment will be required for industrial and commercial development where the
development:

a) Has the potential to impact on residences or noise sensitive receivers (defined as a
Laeq,15min level of more than background or more than the recommended acceptable
amenity criteria within the NSW Environmental Protection Authority's NSW Industrial Noise
Policy (INP) minus 10dB); or

b) Is located within a 100m radius from, or has a direct line of site of a distance of 150m to,
residences or noise sensitive receivers; or

c) Proposes to operate anytime between 10pm and 6am.

2. Noise emissions from industrial development must be assessed in accordance with the NSW EPA
Industrial Noise Policy (INP).

3. Noise emissions from commercial development must be assessed in accordance with the Noise
Guide For Local Government and must be consistent with the methodology within the NSW EPA
INP.

4. Noise from the construction of industrial and commercial developments must be assessed and
managed in accordance with the NSW Environmental Protection Authority’s Interim Construction
Noise Guideline 2009.

Noise from Child Care Centres and Educational Establishments

1. Development applications for child care centres and educational establishments must be
accompanied by an acoustic report,

2. Child care centres and educational establishments are to be designed to not exceed the
following noise levels:

» LAeq(15 minutes) noise level from children in the outdoor areas of the site must not exceed
the background LAS0 sound level by more than 10dB(A) when measured at the boundary of
the nearest or most affected residential premises (or if the boundary is more than 30 metres
from a residential dwelling, at the most affected point within 30 metres of a residence).

* LAeq(15 minutes) noise levels from all other operations (i.e. car park, plant) must not exceed
the background LAS0 sound level by more than 5dB(A) when measured at the boundary of
the nearest or most affected residential premises.
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Noise from Licenced Premises

1.

Any music/entertainment and noise of patrons (whilst on-site) from a licensed premises. must be
assessed In accordance with the noise emission criteria from Liquor and Gaming NSW, modified
as follows:

e The LA10,15min* noise level emitted from the licensed premises shall not exceed the
background noise level in any Oclave Band Centre Frequency (31.5Hz — 8kHz inclusive) by
more than 5dB between 7.00am and 12;00 midnight at the boundary of any affected
residence.

« The LA10,15min* noise level emitted from the licensed premises shall not exceed the
background noise level in any Octave Band Centre Frequency (31.5Hz -~ 8kHz inclusive)
between 12:00 midnight and 7:00am at the boundary of any affected residence.

« Notwithstanding compliance with the above, the Laeq,1min from the licensed premises shall
not be more than the background noise level minus 7dB in any Octave Band Centre
Frequency (31.5Hz — 8kHz inclusive) within any habitable room in any residential premises
between the hours of 12:00 midnight and 7:00am.

* For the purposes of this condition, LA10 can be taken as the average maximum deflection of
the noise emission from the licensed premises.

A noise management plan must be submitted with the DA that addresses noise associated with
patron departure in on site car parks or local streets, particularly after 10.00pm. Alternatively,
noise reduction and mitigation measures (where required) shall be addressed in a general plan
of management for the premises.

Cumulative noise from the licensed premises including patrons, music and mechanical plant and
car parks should comply with the requirements for commercial developments.,

Noise Attenuation of Public Open Space

3

Public open space areas are to be designed to sensitively locate passive recreation areas away
from noise sources without compromising the overall functionality of the area.

Physical noise barriers (other than earth mounds) for public open space areas will not be
supported.
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Existing Acoustic Amenity DCP

Camden Council
Development Control Plan 2011

B1.16 Acoustic Amenity

Background

Acoustic amenity can be impacted upon from a range of sources Including, motor vehicles, aircraft,
trains and industrial uses. This can nct only be an annoyance, but also have significant health
consequences. A variety of mitigation strategies exist to reduce sound levels and sustain the acoustic
amenity of an area. This subsection seeks to detail acoustic design measures to alleviate noise
emissions that may arise from development.

Objectives
1. Ensure that excessive neise Impacts from busy roads, rail corriders and other noise-generating
land uses, which affect sensitive receivers, are mitigated.

2. Design and manage subdivisions to minimise noise intrusien into residential areas.

Ensure the amenity of nearby residential uses is not unreasonably decreased by noise intrusion
from commercial or industnal development.

Controls
Residential Development

o Subdivision or development for residential purposes near roads, airports, and industnal/
commercial uses, shall include a program of appropriate noise attenuation measures to reduce
traffic or other noise that potentially will affect residental properties. For roads, neise attenuation
measures must be prepared in accordance with Council's Environmental Noise Palicy, The
program shall predict noise levels for a ten year period and any noise attenuation measures shall
address these noise levels.

2. Where propesed noise attenuation measures impede on identified view corridors (in chapter B3
and elsewhere), it must be demonstrated how such view corridors can be preserved and stifl
achieve external acoustic criteria (amenity) for residents

Noise bamers must be constructed as part of a subdivision where required by an acoustic study.

Height and/or the type of construction of dwellings are to be defined by the required accustic
study establishing the appropriate noise attenuation measures. Each site identified will require a
s888 Instrument identifying the noise attenuation measures

5. The environmental goal for road traffic noise shall be based on those levels set in Council's
Environmental Noise Policy.

6. The maximum fagade refiection levels are to be achieved 1.0 metre from the most affected
boundaries or other sensitive location, at a height of 1.5 metres above finished floor level.

7. Architectural treatments are to be designed in accordance with AS3671 - Traffic Notse Intrusion
Building Siting and Construction, the Indoor sound criteria of AS2107 - Recommended Design
Sound Levels and Reverberation Times for Building Interiors. The traffic noise measurement
used in conjunction with AS3671 ~ should be those currently recommended for use by DECCW

8. A traffic noise mitigation program satisfying the above requirements is to be submitted to Council
with the development application.

9. The materials proposed for use to mitigate noise shall be guaranteed to provide a minimum of
twenty (20) years of life and will be maintained by the landowner for normal wear and tear.
Altematively, other arrangements may be considered for the maintenance of the noise barriers.

10.  Atraffic noise assessment survey undertaken by a suitably qualified acoustc consuftant in
accordance with the RTA's and DECCW's measurement methodology, shall accompany the
development application.

11.  Applicants will be required to submit an acoustic report for development where indicated in
Council's Environmental Noise Policy, This may include:

(@)  The provision of noise barriers, mounding, landscaping, additional setbacks or a
combination of all these measures.

(b)  Architectural treatment of buildings will only be considered where it has been
demonstrated that noise barriers or mounding is not reasonable or feasible

Part B - General Land Use Controls

Page B37
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Camden Council
Development Control Plan 2011

(c) The noise attenuation measure will only be approved following a review of its visual
impact and the resultant proposals to create quality urban design, e.g. materials and
artistic design to minimise graffit

Note: The acceptance of such measures will be at Council's discretion and will be
considered on a case by case basis.

12. Acoustic barriers and other measures shall be augmented by suitable landscape measures
(inciuding automated irrigation) to be shown on a detailed fandscape plan which shall be
submitted to Council with the development application. An indication of the overall height of the
acoustic barrier should be given relative te a known point. An acoustic engineer shall endorse the
acoustic barrier at construction certificate stage

13. Noise attenuation fencing or barriers are preferred to be 1.8m however, additional heights up to
2.4 metres may be acceptable where these are located adjacent to a major road If required, the
additional noise attenuation barrier height is fo be made up of earth mounding. All attenuation
fences or barriers must have appropriate landscaping and water irngation as approved by
Councll. Stand alone fencing, | . not adjacent to private land, shall be of more durable material,
e g. concrete with cast patterns/symbols and paintad with anti graffiti coating, A sB8B Instrument
s to be created where a noise attenuation barrier is adjacent to private land ensunng the integrity
of the barrier is maintained by the private landowner.

14. A noise attenuation compliance report / certificate may be required as per Council's
Environmental Noise Policy after the development becoming operational.

Industrial and Commercial Development

15.  Noise from industnal and commercial development must be assessed in accordance with
Council's Environmental Noise Paolicy to determine if an acoustic assessment is required. Any
required acoustic assessment must be submitted with the development application.

Road and Rail Traffic Noise

16. Noise from road and rall developments must be assessed in accordance with Council's
Environmental Noise Policy to determine if an acoustic assessment is required. Any required
acoustic assessment must be submitted with the development application,

State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure)

17.  Development as proposed under the infrastructure SEPP that has the potential to impact on
other sensitive development with noise must be assessed in accordance with Council's
Environmental Noise Policy and the requirements of the SEPP,

18.  Any required acoustic assessment must be submitted with the development application,

Further Information:
. Camden Council’s Environmental Noise Folicy

. Building Code of Australia
. Envirenmental Protection Authonty, NSW Industrial Noise Poiicy
. Environmental Protection Authonty, Environmental Cntenia for Road Traffic Noise

. NSW Department of FPlanning, Development near Rall Corndors and Busy Roads -~ Interim
Guideline

. Roads and Traffic Authonty, Reducing Traffic Noise — a Guide for Home Owners, Designers
and Bulders.

. State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure).

. AS 3671 Road Traffic Naise Intrusion

. AS 1055 Acoustics - Description and Measurement of Environmental Noise

. AS 2107 Acoustics - Recommended design sound levels and reverberation times for building
intsnors

. AS 2021 Acoustics ~ Afrcraft Noise Intrusion - Building Siting and Construction

Part B - General Land Use Controls

Page B38
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Environmental Noise Policy

| 5. ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS

POLICY NO: 3.20

POLICY TITLE: ENVIRONMENTAL NOISE POLICY
RESPONSIBILITY: Director Development & Health
ADOPTED: 10 June 2008

MINUTE NO: ORD147/08

NEXT REVIEW DATE: June 2009

RELATED LEGISLATION: l:grgtaecﬁon of the Environment Operations Act

STAFF TRAINING REQUIRED?: NO

POLICY STATEMENT: (See Policy Document over page)

This document contains guidelines for the submission of acoustic reports for proposed
developments within the Camden Local Government Area, which have the potential to
generate noise that may unreasonably and detrimentally impact acoustic amenity.

The Policy for Environmental Noise provides a framework and criteria for the assessment of
noise impacts from development upon potentially sensitive receivers and describes the
procedure to be followed in the preparation of an acoustic assessment report. \Where
possible, recommendations have been included for indicative control measures, which can be
incorporated into a development to reduce the potential noise impact on the surrounding
environment.

Further, this Policy recognises community noise within residential communities that can give
rise to significant levels of noise generation and establishes criteria or management
techniques by which noise impact can be regulated and minimised.

NOISE POLICY Page 1
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PART A: NOISE POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND
BACKGROUND

1

INTRODUCTION

This document contains guidelines for the submission of acoustic
reports for proposed developments within the Camden Local Government
Area, which have the potential to generate noise that may unreasonably
and detrimentally impact acoustic amenity.

The Policy for Environmental Noise provides a framework and criteria for
the assessment of noise impacts from development upon potentially
sensitive receivers and describes the procedure to be followed in the
preparation of an acoustic assessment report. Where possible,
recommendations have been included for indicative control measures,
which can be incorporated into a development to reduce the potential
noise impact on the surrounding environment.

Further, this Policy recognises community noise within residential
communities that can give rise to significant levels of noise generation
and establishes criteria or management techniques by which noise
impact can be regulated and minimised.

OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY
The objectives of the Policy are:

a) To define Council’s role and responsibilities in the assessment
and control of noise from development,

b) To define the procedures for the assessment of noise emission
issues.

¢) To enable controls for noise emission to be considered and
allowed for at the planning stage through the existing approvals
framework.

d) To consider the impact of noise in Masterplans for areas which
are likely to be impacted by noise.

¢) To provide for ongoing management of noise emissions.

f) To establish planning guidelines to prevent an escalation of
ambient noise levels.

g) To provide guidance to the public concerning the assessment of
noise from development and noise related activities,

h) Consolidate and clarify relevant noise policies.

ENVIRONMENTAL NOISE - POLICY STATEMENT

Camden Council is committed to ensuring that development and other
activities within its Local Government Area take place in an
environmentally sustainable manner that does not unreasonably impact

upon other members of the community.

In regard to noise emission from developments it is Council’s Policy to:
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a)
b)

c)

€)

restrict the location of noise generating activities to appropriate
areas by means of land zoning and planning policy;

utilise the existing approvals process to control noise emission
from proposed developments;

apply its Guidelines for Environmental Noise across all forms of
proposed new noise generating development, with due regard to
the key issues of local community amenity, the social worth of
developments and the feasibility of noise control;

make its guidelines for acoustic assessment available to
applicants and the community., Where appropriate, these
guidelines will be consistent with those of the NSW Department
of Environment & Climate Change (DECC) (formerly EPA) and
with community expectations;

require an acoustic assessment for any development proposal
that may adversely affect the acoustical amenity of the
community. These assessments must be in accordance with
Council’s Environmental Noise Policy.

Note: Any reference in this Policy to the NSW “EPA” and NSW “DEC" should
now be considered to be the newly named NSW “DECC". Each reference
should be considered to represent the same organisation.

4 RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER NOISE POLICIES AND GUIDELINES

This policy is guided by and refers to much of the information that is
contained within the following NSW Department of Environment &
Climate Change’s noise publications and other related publications and

regulations:

v' NSW EPA Industrial Noise Policy (2000}

v" NSW EPA Application Notes — NSW Industrial Noise Policy (July
2006)

v NSW EPA Environmental Criteria for Road Traffic Noise (1999)

v NSW EPA Noise Guide for Local Government (2004)

v NSW DECC Interim Guideline for the Assessment of Noise from
Rail Infrastructure Projects (April 2007)

v Australian Standard AS2021-2000: Acoustics -Aircraft Noise
Intrusion - Building Siting and Construction

v State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure) 2007

v Protection of the Environment Operations (Noise Control)

Regulations 2008
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PART B: GUIDELINES FOR ASSESSMENT OF
NOISE FROM DEVELOPMENT

1

INTRODUCTION

Council as the Consent Authority is responsible for planning for
development within the Camden Local Government Area and has
environmental planning instruments and legislative powers to control
noise emissions. Whilst some industrial and commercial developments
are deemed to be “scheduled activities™ requiring a license under the
provisions of the Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997,
many developments require Council approval prior to proceeding.

The following guidelines have been developed to provide a clearly defined
process for acoustic assessment of developments which includes new
roads that have potential with use to generate noise. Equally important,
Council has included guidelines for assessing the acoustic adequacy of
noise sensitive developments (such as residential developments affected
by noise from major roads).

Noise is a technical issue and in many instances the advice of a suitably
qualified acoustic consultant will be required.

Where developments have little potential to exceed noise criteria as
stated in the policy and emissions are well regulated, the process of
acoustic assessment has been kept as simple as possible.

Where exceedance of noise criteria exists, the proponent will be required
to submit an acoustic report to accompany the development application.
Acoustic assessment reports shall be prepared by a suitably qualified
acoustic consultant.

Reporting requirements and criteria for acoustic assessment are set out
in these guidelines.

In all instances, Council reserves the right to request an acoustic report
and to request additional supporting information, where the initial
report is considered inadequate. Where reports are considered by
Council to be highly complex Council may refer an acoustic report for an
independent peer review by an independent acoustic consultant at
Council’s costs or alternatively the application may be refused.
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2 QUICK REFERENCE TO ACOUSTIC REQUIREMENTS

Table 2.1 may be used to quickly identify which sections of the
Guidelines are applicable in each case,

Table 2.1 Quick reference to Acoustic Requirements

Type of Development or Noise Source Refer to
Guideline Part /
' Section

Air-conditioners -~ on residential premises Part C - 3.3
Airport (Camden) Noise effect on Developments PartC -5
Amplified music on residential premises Part C-3.1
Audible Bird Scare Devices (Including Gas Scare Guns) Part C - 2.7
Bike Parks (non-motorised bikes only) Part C - 4.2.3
Birds or Caged Birds (Domestic) on residential premises Part C - 3.4
Child Care Centres Part C - 2.1
Churches and Religious Development Part C-2.2
Commercial Premises Part B - 4
Community and Multi-purpose Halls Part C-2.3
Construction Sites Part B - 4.2.2
Dogs — commercial kennels Part B - 4,

| Dogs on residential premises Part C - 3.2
Equestrian Centres Part C - 4.2.3
Four Wheel Drive Facilities Part C - 4.2.4
Home Businesses Part C - 2.4
Industrial Developments Part B-4, 5
Lavmmowers Part C - 3.5
Learn-to-Swim Schools on Residential Premises Part C - 2.5
Licensed Premises Part B-7,4,5
Model Aircraft Part C - 4.2.3
Motocross Facilities Part C-4.2.4
Motor Sport Noise effect on Developments Part C - 5.2.2
Music Festivals Part C-4.2.1
Open Air Cinemas Part C - 4.2.2
Open Air Concerts Part C-4.2.1
Parks Noise effects on Developments Part C - 6
Paintball Facilities Part B - 4, 5
Pubs & Clubs Part B-7,.4,5
Rail Part B - 6
Recreational Facilities (equestrian, skate parks, etc) Part C - 4,2.3
Recreational Vehicle Facilities Part C - 4.2.4
Residential Developments (Multi-dwelling) g"gngsl;Péﬁg“‘f”
Residential Subdivision Part B~ 5,6
Restaurants (licensed) Part B-7, 4,5
Restaurants (not licensed) Part B-4, 5
Roads Part B - 5
Schools Part C - 2.6
Shooting Ranges Part C - 4.2.5
Skate Parks Part C - 4.2.3
Sporting Facilities = Outdoor ball games etc Part C - 4.2.5
Swimming Pool & Spa Pool & Heat Pumps Part C - 3.6
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Tennis Courts for Commercial Use Part B - 4, 5

Tennis Courts an REesidential Premises Part C - 3.7

Trail Bikes in Off-Road Areas Part C - 3.8

Veterinary clinics Part B -4, 5

Development / Activities Not Listed Refer to Council for
requirements

* Where televant refer directly to the Building Code of Australia and / or SEFP 65 - Desipn Cruality of

Residential Flat Development.
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STATUS OF GUIDELINES

The guidelines as set out within this Policy have been prepared with the
intention of providing consistent and equitable assessment of noise
impacts from development by Council staff. They apply to operational
noise and in addition include guidelines to be applied to construction
activities. Criteria is also included for protecting some types of
developments from existing noise sources.

Whilst this Policy primarily applies to new developments, Council may
choose to apply these criteria to existing developments where a noise
problem is identified, with appropriate recognition given to existing
development consents, where applicable.

In certain circumstances, for example where a temporary development
application is received for a public event such as fair, festival, or circus
or where an event is only for a short period of time, it may be necessary
for Council to impose more or less stringent criteria in the interests of
local amenity or broader community benefit. Such instances will be
examined on a case-by-case basis by Council officers.

Where the control of noise to meet the guidelines criteria is not
economically feasible, or has a negative impact on other aspects of local
amenity, Council will consider applications to apply alternative criteria.
Applications of this nature will be considered in the light of the public
benefit of the development, and with a view to Council’s responsibility to
adequately protect the local amenity.

In addition to the specific criteria, Council may limit the hours of
operation of a development or the number of events, particularly if a
development is unable to comply with the guideline levels.

10
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NOISE FROM INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT

This section applies to industrial, commercial and retail premises as well
as warchousing facilities,

In January 2000 the NSW Department of Environment & Climate
Change (DECC, formerly EPA) published its NSW Industrial Noise Policy
(INP). The policy applies to the assessment of noise impact from
industrial developments that are scheduled under the Protection of the
Environment Operations Act 1997. The DECC states that Councils may
also wish to use the policy to assess and control noise from non-
scheduled industrial noise sources under their control, including
commercial premises and warehousing facilities.

Where Council requires the submission of a development application
(DA) for new building work and for the use or change of use of
commercial and industrial premises, a development application must be
lodged with Council for consideration. This application is to be
accompanied by a Statement of Environmental Effects and such
statements must address noise impacts.

For any development proposal the need for acoustic assessment needs to
be undertaken in accordance with this Section (note that in any case,
noise assessments may be required to accord with other Sections of this
policy). Section 4.1 determines this requirement. If an assessment is
required then it is to be carried out in accordance with the requirements
of Part B - Section 4.2 and Section 4.4 of this document.

4.1 Requirement for acoustic assessment

In accordance with this Section of the policy, some developments
do mnot generate sufficient noise to require an acoustic
assessment. As a guide the applicant should ensure that the
development is checked against the following points. If the
development qualifies for any of the following points and is likely
to cause an adverse noise impact then an assessment of noise
will be required.

- External mechanical plant or any plant or equipment
ducted to outside

- External forklift operations

- Regular use of powered equipment on site (including
handheld power tools, compressors, hoists etc but
excluding standard office equipment)

- Operates beyond Monday-Saturday 7am-6pm

- More than one heavy truck delivery/pickup per day where
loading / unloading is undertaken outside of any building
(i.e. open yard area)

- More than six light truck delivery/pickups per day

- More than eighteen vehicle movements on site per hour
where adjoining premises are noise sensitive (i.e.
residential)

11
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4.2

- Boundary or part of the site (including car parks or
driveways) within 30m of a residential boundary

- External amplified music or PA/paging systems (note that
internal systems will still need to comply)

- More than 7 children receiving care (excludes home based
childeare) or for existing centres increase by more than 7
children

Note: Any new development which falls to any of the points
above under Section 4 of this policy must comply with the
criteria regardless of whether an acoustic report is required. A
compliance test may be sought by Council on completion. If non-
compliance is found then noise control works will need to be
carried out at the applicant’s expense.

If an applicant believes that complying with the noise criteria
may be difficult then it is strongly advised that the advice of a
qualified acoustic consultant is sought prior to submission of the
DA. Council may also be consulted at this time, however, it is
still the responsibility of the applicant to ensure the development
will comply.

If Council receives a DA without an acoustic assessment and one
is deemed necessary, additional information will be sought in
accordance with the provisions of the Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act.

Council reserves the right to request an acoustic assessment
for any development - at the applicant’s expense should the
assessment deem that there will be impact by way of noise
on the amenity of the area.

Criteria
4.2.1 Operational Criteria

Operational noise from the development will need to be assessed
in accordance with the DECC’s NSW Industrial Noise Policy. All
developments must be designed to “Acceptable Recommended”
Liaeq Noise lLevels in Table 2.1 of that document. The
Recommended Maximum Ls., Noise Levels in Table 2.1 are not to
apply to any development. (Refer to Table 4.3.1 of this Policy,

page 16).

The Ly noise emission level from the operation shall be
determined by means of prediction using a recognised
calculation or modelling procedure. Where possible it is the
preference of this policy to accept actual data obtained from
assessment of a similar development elsewhere over modelled
data, however it is acknowledged that this may not always be
appropriate dependent on background noise levels.

12
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As a guide, where several industrial / employment developments
are proposed in a given area, these developments may be
assessed (where practical) as a group to facilitate project-specific
noise levels to be set for each development, Implementation of
this approach mvolves:

(i) Determining the number of development proposals to
be assessed;
(1) Determining the amenity levels from Table 2.1 and 2.2

from the Industrial Noise Policy (DECC 2000j;

(iii)  Determining the project specific noise levels to be
achieved for each development when measured at the
receiver, so that when each is added together
logarithmically, the resultant total level of noise
received from industry at any affected receiver will meet
the amenity level identified in Table 2.1 and Table 2.2
of the Industrial Noise Policy.

Developments may also need to refer to Part B - Section 5 of this
policy to assess the impact of increased traffic on surrounding
roads, where applicable.

Construction noise associated with a development must be
assessed in accordance with Section 4.2.2 below.

4,2.2 Guidelines for Construction Site Noise

Acoustic assessment reports of construction noise are not
normally required unless requested by Council. However,
Council may request noise levels be assessed at any time.

This applies to non-scheduled premises such as commercial
buildings where a long construction time is likely, However and
despite the above, noise level criteria may not be applicable to
long-term construction projects such as sand mining which may
take several years to construct.

Council may vary the noise level and time restrictions based on
the tyvpe of development proposed. Assessment of noise for
compliance purposes should be measured from the boundary of
the most affected residence.

* The noise level restrictions for construction activities
include but are not limited to the following:

(i) Construction period of 4 weeks and under:
The La., level measured over a period of not less than 15
minutes when the construction site is in operation must

not exceed the background level by more than 20 dB(A).

(ii) Construction period greater than 4 weeks and not
exceeding 26 weeks:

13
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The Lu., level measured over a period of not less than 15
minutes when the construction site is in operation must
not exceed the background level more than 10 dB(A).

(ii1) Construction period greater than 26 weeks:

The La, level measured over a period of not less than 15
minutes when the construction site is in operation must
not exceed the background level more than 5 dBla).

e The time restrictions for construction activities are as
follows:

Monday to Friday, 7 am to 6 pm
Saturday, 8 am to 4 pm

Note: Work outside of these hours may be considered on its
merits by way of submission at development assessment
stage.

No construction work is to take place on Sundays or Public
Holidays unless specifically stated in the conditions of
development approval.

4.3 Informative Summary of INP

The following summary and extracts from the INP are provided
for the information of applicants. This is a brief summary only,
consultants must refer to the INP for full criteria and assessment
requirements.

The assessment procedure has two main components:

« Controlling intrusive noise impacts in the short term.
« Maintaining noise level amenity for particular land uses in
the long term.

The assessment needs to consider both components. However,
in most cases one of them will become the limiting criterion
depending on the noise environment and the type of receiver.

In low noise areas, controlled increases in ambient noise levels
arc permitted, up to the point where the noise level limit
appropriate to the particular land use is reached. This increase
is usually limited to 5 dB(A) above the background noise level
where residences are potentially or likely to be impacted.

In developed areas with higher levels of ambient noise, the noise
limit that would be applied could be either:

14
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5 dB(A) above the background noise level, or
The noise limit set for the appropriate land use designed to
preserve amenity, whichever is lower.

In highly developed areas with high existing ambient noise
levels, DECC’s Noise Policy specifies different levels that are
dependent whereupon whether ambient noise is likely to be
reduced in the [uture.

¢ Where ambient noise levels are likely to be reduced, the
policy recommends design limits intended to return the noise
environment to the levels appropriate to the particular land
use,

e Where ambient noise levels are unlikely to be reduced, the
policy does not allow any increase above the existing noise
environment.

The criterion is applied under local prevailing weather conditions
in the reporting and assessment of any acoustic report.

Noise assessment is to reflect the proposed hours of operation
and include as part of the assessment the lowest background
noise levels applicable.

Adjustments are made for noise emissions with tonal, low-
frequency, impulsive or intermittent (at night) characteristics. An
adjustment may also be made for the duration of a single event
noise (to account for unusual and one-off events, not for to
regular high-noise levels that occur daily).

Noise amenity is considered in order to prevent the continuing
escalation in ambient noise levels, which would otherwise occur
with successive development. For the Camden area the
maximum ambient noise levels within an area should not
normally exceed the “acceptable” levels specified in Table 4.3.1.

15
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Table 4.3.1 Amenity Criteria - Recommended Lj.q Noise Levels from Industrial Noise
Sources
Type of Receiver Area Time of Day | Recommended La., Noise Level
(dBA)
Acceptable Recommended
Maximum
(see Note 1)
Day 50 55
Rural Evening 45 50
Night 40 45
Day 55 60
Suburban Evening 45 50
Night 40 45
; Day 60 635
Residence Urban Evening 50 S5
Night 45 50
Urban/ Day 63 70
Industrial E\emr&g 55 60
lnt_erface - for Night 50 55
existing
situations only
School Classroom - Internal All Noisiest 1-hour 35 40
period when in
use
Hospital Ward - Internal All Noisiest 1-hour 35 40
period
- External All Noisiest 1-hour 50 55
period
Place of Worship — Internal All When in use 40 45
Area specifically reserved for
passive recreation (e.g. All When in use 50 55
National Park)
Active recreation area (e.g.
school playground. golf All When in use 55 60
course)
Commercial premises All When in use 65 70
Industrial premises All When in use 70 75

Notes to Support the Noise Level Tables

1.  The recommended maximum nolse levels refer only to noise from industrial sources. Due to the existing low background noise

(Source: Table 2.1, Pagel6, NSW DECC, Industrial Noise Policy, 2000)

levels in the Camden Local Government area the maximum noise levels are not applicable in Camden. The levels refer to noise

frem all such sources at the receiver location, and not only noige due to a apecific project under consideration
represent outdoor levels except where otherwise stated.

The levels

Where the existing noise level from development is close to the
recommended “acceptable” level, the noise contribution from any
new development must be controlled to ensure that ambient
noise does not exceed the levels considered appropriate for the
particular area and land use.

16
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If, as a result of development, the existing noise environment of
the area already exceeds the recommended “acceptable” level,
the Ly noise level contribution from any new development
should not be greater than:

« 10 dB below the recommended “acceptable” level if it is
possible that existing levels may be reduced in the future.

e 10 dB below the existing level if there is no possibility that
existing levels will fall and no significant changes to land use

are envisaged.

The required criteria for preserving amenity are shown in Table

4.3.2.

Table 4.3.2 Modification to Acceptable Noise Level (ANL) to Account for
Existing Level of Industrial Noise

Total Existing Laug
Noise Level

Maximum La.q Noise Level for Noise
from New Sources Alone (dBA)

>ANL + 2 If existing noise level is likely to decrease in future:
ANL - 10
If existing noise level is unlikely to decrease
in future: Existing Level — 10

ANL + 1 ANL-8

ANL ANL - 8

ANL -1 ANL - 6

ANL -2 ANL - 4

ANL -3 ANL - 3

ANL - 4 ANL - 2

ANL -5 ANL - 2

ANL -6 ANL -1

<ANL -6 ANL

(Source: Table 2.2, Page 17, NSW DECC, Industrial Noise Policy, 2000)
ANL = Recommended Acceptable Lawy Noise Level for the
specific receiver, area and time of day from Table 4.3.1.

4.4 Acoustic Assessment Report

An Acoustic Assessment Report prepared by a suitably qualified
acoustic consultant detailing compliance with the specified
acoustic criteria shall accompany the development application
submitted to Council for approval.

The full Acoustic Assessment Report shall present, as a
minimum, the information listed in Appendix 1 of this policy.
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4.5

Implementation of the Policy and Compliance

Council’s requirements for compliance certification of the
installed /implemented noise attenuation measures, as noted in
the recommendations of the acoustic report attached to the
relevant development consent, will be noted as a condition of
that consent.

The following is an example of such a condition:

“Noise Attenuation Report Compliance - A report (from the
author of the approved Noise Attenuation Report/ Independent
Auditor) that contains a certifying statement confirming that the
recommendations of the approved Noise Attenuation Report have
been implemented and are compliant must be submitted to the
Principal Certifying Authority for inclusion in any

(Occupation/ Subdivision) Certificate”.

The acoustic consultant must conduct sufficient inspections to
verify that all construction aspects of the noise attenuation
components/measures are being carried out in accordance with
the approved report recommendations.

Should the acoustic consultant confirm that:

1. any specific construction aspect does not comply with the
report recommendations; or

2.that the constructed noise attenuation components/measures
do not achieve the criteria set by the approved report and this
policy;

the acoustic consultant must advise the applicant and the
Principal Certifving Authority of such non-compliance. The
applicant must arrange for the submission of an application
pursuant to s.96 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act 1979 for the modification of the issued development consent
to the Consent Authority, Camden Council, for determination.
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S NOISE FROM ROAD TRAFFIC

In May 1999 the NSW Department of Climate Change (DECC, formerly
EPA) published a guideline entitled Environmental Criteria for Road
Traffic Noise (ECRTN). The guideline provides a framework that “guides
the consideration and management of traffic noise issues associated with
new building developments near existing roads, and new upgraded road
developments adjacent to new or planned building developments!”,

The main intention of this guideline is to allow:

. Council to develop and set their own controls and criteria for land
uses that are affected by road traffic noise;
Council to integrate land use and road transport planning;
Inform road builders and their managers to select feasible and
reasonable noise mitigation measures as required.

In addition to the ECRTN Guidelines, the NSW Department of Planning
(DoP) gazetted in December 2007 the “State Environmental Planning
Policy (Infrastructure)” under the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979,

From the SEPP, “Part 3 - Division 17 Roads and Traffic, Clause 102 —
Impact of road noise or vibration on non-road development”, provides a
number of sub-clauses that apply to development. This development
involves buildings for residential use, a place of worship, a hospital, and
educational establishments or child care centres that are proposed “on
land in or adjacent to the road corridor that includes freeways, tollways
or transitway or any other road with an annual average daily traflic
volume of more than 40000 vehicles (RTA website) and that the consent
authority considers is likely to be adversely affected by road noise or
vibration=".

The main intention of this SEPP with respect to noise is to ensure:

. that the Consent Authority considers any guidelines issued by the
Director General prior to determining a development application;
and

. that the proposed buildings for residential use comply with
appropriate internal acoustic levels,

Council’s Policy adopts the assessment criteria as contained within the
ECRTN and the SEPP for assessing noise impact from road traffic noise
on developments. However, consideration of the SEPP acoustic criteria
will only apply to developments impacted by roads that have an annual
average daily traffic volume of more than 40000 vehicles.

' NSW EPA. 1999, Environmental Criteria for Road Traffic Noise. Environment Protection Authority.
Chatswood, p.2.

“ NSW Department of Planning, 2007. State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure). Sydney.
P.86,
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Regarding the ECRTN, the policy provides further guidance to
compliment, as well as simplify the procedure set out in the ECRTN. Any
assessment conducted in accordance with any of DECC’s documented
procedure are acceptable to Council,

With reference to the ECRTN, Table 5.3.1 sets out the criteria to be
applied to particular types of roads and land use developments with
potential to create additional traffic on quieter roads. Table 5.3.2 is
applicable for assessing the impact and mitigation strategies for road
development on new noise sensitive land use development affected by
road traffic noise.

With reference to the SEPP, the consent authority must be satisfied that
appropriate measure are taken to ensure that the following internal L.,
acoustic levels are not exceeded:

al In any bedroom in the building - 35 dB(A) at any time between
10pm and 7am; and

bj Anywhere else in the building (other than the garage, kitchen,
bathroom or hallway) - 40 dB(A) at any time.

5.1 Developments Requiring Assessment

New developments will require an acoustic assessment
report to be submitted unless all of the following points are
applicable for the development:

a) Does not increase the percentage of heavy vehicle movements
by more than 10% (over the 11 hour period 7am to 6pm,
Monday to Saturday); and

b) Has no heavy vehicle movements between 6pm and 7am or
any heavy vehicle movements on Sunday and Public
Holidays; and

c) Does not increase the total number of vehicle movements by
more than 20% (over the 15 hour period 7am to 10pm and
the 9 hour period 10pm to 7am); and

d) Has no residential component affected by a collector road
with an existing or potential (10 years hence) Annual Average
Daily Traffic (AADT) of > 6000; and

e} Has no residential component affected by a collector road
where the building facade is less than 4m to the primary
frontage or less than 2m to a secondary frontage to the
collector road; and

f) Has no residential component within 400m from any freeway,
arterial or sub-arterial road.

5.2 Council Criteria

Where an acoustic assessment is required to be prepared the
criteria of the:

- The DECC ({formerly EPA) Environmental Criteria for
Road Traffic Noise;
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- Camden Council’s Development Control Plan 2006; and if
applicable

- State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure)
2007.

shall also apply.

Assessments are to be carried out in accordance with the
requirements of Part B - Section 5.5 of this document.

5.3 Informative Summary of ECRTN

The following tables are reproduced from the NSW DECC’s
Environmental Criteria for Road Traffic Noise document

in order to provide an informative summary of the criteria in
that document. This summary is not complete in itself and
consultants should refer to the full document when preparing
an assessment.

Table 5.3.1 - Road Traffic Noise Criteria for Proposed Road or Residential
Landuse Developments

DEVEEI?:PMENT EA::"'IO pm) gl:;l;7 am|
dB(A) dB(A)

1. New freeway or arterial road

corridor o Laeg 12059 Liey(9hr) SO
2. New residential land use

developments affected by Laeg1s0nS5 Liasqony 50
freeway /arterial traffic noise

3. Redevelopment of existing

freeway/arterial road Laeq) 5160 Laequy155
4. New collector road corridor Lieig1 50060 Laey(9hriS5
5. New residential land use

developments affected by Liceg 10160 Ll 161D
collector traffic noise

6. Redevel t of existi =
Col]:ct.z’e OPAE - oIS l‘Amil':hrlso LA-:q]ﬂlni:’s
7. Land use developments with

potential to create additional - &
traﬁ'ic on exi'ﬂing LA-‘:”.II!IGO Lfv.'l(ghrisa
freeways/arterials

8. Land use developments with

potential to create additional Laeg 110160 Loy S
traffic on collector road

9, New local road corridor in a

metropolitan area Lacq 10158 Lot 11150
10. New local d corridor 1

l'u.l'al ;‘_@of_ road corndor n a LA-:qflhﬂs{) LA:\‘ﬂlhl',“s
11, New residential

developments affected by traffic | La.giu:55 Laegiing 50
noise from local roads

12. Redevelopment of existir 2 &
_lpgi_llrgggls p lg LAH(I m'lsa l-er|llhl1°O
13. Land use developments with | Ly 11955 Leq 11y 50
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potential to create additional
traffic on local roads.

(Source: Table 1, Page 6, NSW DECC, Environmental Criteria for Road Traffic Noise, 1999)

Table 5.3.2 - Road Traffic Noise Criteria For Sensitive Landuse

Sensitive Land  Day Night Noise Mitigation Measures
Use (7am-10pm) | (10pm-7am)
dBA dBA
1. Proposed school | Lacq i nou 40 To achieve internal noise criteria in
classrooms (For | (internal) the short term, the most practicable
existing schools mitigation measures are often related
see Technical to building or facade treatments.
Note x) | :
2. Hospital wards| Lae (i hou 35 Lacqinoan 35 | I the medium to longer term,
(internal) (internal) strategies such as regulation of
3. Places of | Tasq it tourt 40 Taoq (1 bowr 40 c‘chaust noise from in-service vehicles,
worship (internal) (internal) lumta.ntu-ms on exhaust br;‘u.(e use, and
4. Active recreation| Collector  and restricting access for sensitive areas or
(for example, | local roads: during sensitive times to low noise
golf courses) L boir 60 vehicles can be applied to mitigate
noise impacts across the road system.
Freeway/ Other measures inclade improved
arterial roads: planning, design and construction of
Lnsisisetioun DO sensitive land wuse developments;
reduced new vehicle emission
5. Passive | Collector  and standards, greater use of public
recreation and| local roads: transport; and alternative methods of
school Liasi (v:bost 55 freight haulage. .These medium to
playgrounds lox_;g—tex:m strategies apply equally'to
: Freeway/ mitigating internal and external noise
. arterial roads: levels.
Lﬁ.ﬂ”:ﬁl i) 55

Where existing levels of traffic noise
exceed the criteria, all feasible and
reasonable noise control measures
should be evaluated and applied.
Where this has been done and the
internal or external criteria (as
appropriate) cannot be achieved. the
proposed road or land use
development should be designed so as
not to increase existing road traffic
noise levels by more than 0.5 dBA for
new roads and 2 dBA for redeveloped
roads or land use development with
potential to create additional traffic.

{Source - Table 2, Pagc 10, NSW DECC, Environmental Criteria for Road Traffic Noise, 1999)

Note: “X" increases where existing schools are affected by noi
is LAeq [1hr| 45 dB{A) (internal)

5.4

Determination of Noise Levels

from proposed roads, the daytime criteria

The required criteria shall be determined by means of prediction

using a recognised

calculation procedure

such as the
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5.5

calculation of Road Traflic Noise (CORTN 1988} method or
similar, utilising the latest available traffic volume figures and
predicted traffic flows for 10 years hence.

Acoustic Assessment Report

An assessment of the impact of road traffic, including all heavy
vehicle movements, shall be included in an Acoustic Assessment
Report prepared by a suitably qualified consultant in acoustics
and submitted to Council for development approval.

The full Acoustic Assessment Report shall present, as a
minimum the information listed in Appendix 2 of this policy.

Implementation of the Policy and Compliance

Council’s requirements for compliance certification of the
installed /implemented noise attenuation measures, as noted in
the recommendations of the acoustic report attached to the
relevant development consent, will be noted as a condition of
that consent.

The following is an example of such a condition:

“Noise Attenuation Report Compliance - A report (from the
author of the approved Noise Attenuation Report/ Independent
Auditor) that contains a certifying statement confirming that the
recommendations of the approved Noise Attenuation Report have
been implemented and are compliant must be submitted to the
Principal Certifying Authority for inclusion in any

{Occupation/ Subdivision) Certificate”.

The acoustic consultant must conduct sufficient inspections to
verify that all construction aspects of the noise attenuation
components/measures are being carried out in accordance with
the approved report recommendations.

Should the acoustic consultant confirm that:

1. any specific construction aspect does not comply with the
report recommendations; or

2.that the constructed noise attenuation components/measures
do not achieve the criteria set by the approved report and this
policy;

the acoustic consultant must advise the applicant and the
Principal Certifying Authority of such non-compliance. The
applicant must arrange for the submission of an application
pursuant to 5.96 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act 1979 for the modification of the issued development consent
to the Consent Authority, Camden Council, for determination.
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NOISE FROM RAIL TRAFFIC

There are currently no public railway lines within the Camden local
government area however, a new rail line and associated infrastructure is
proposed in the near future for the area.

In response to such a proposal this Policy adopts the “Interim Guideline
for the Assessment of Noise from Rail Infrastructure Projects (April
2007)", produced by DECC, Department of Planning (DoP), Railcorp and
the Transport Infrastructure Development Corporation (TIDC). The Policy
also adopts the “State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure)
2007" produced by the DoP.

The interim guidelines provide for the assessment of noise and vibration
from new rail infrastructure projects and the mitigation of such impacts
and provides noise trigger levels that determine, if they are exceeded, the
requirement for an assessment of potential noise and vibration impacts.

The trigger levels are applicable for residential developments and
sensitive land uses (other than residential) affected by noise from:

1. rail lines where a new line development is proposed or where there
is an existing line; or

2. where an existing line is planned to be substantially realigned
outside of an existing rail corridor.

Note: The guideline does not apply to existing rail operations and its
impact on existing receivers unless there is a realignment of the existing
rail corridor.

By contrast the SEPP (Infrastructure| 2007, “Part 3 - Division 15
Railways, Clause 87 — Impact of rail noise or wvibration on non-rail
development”, considers the impact of existing rail on proposed
development that includes buildings for residential use, a place of
worship, a hospital, and an educational establishment or child care
centre, where this development is proposed “on land in or adjacent to a
rail corridor and that the consent authority considers is likely to be
adversely affected by rail noise or vibration'”,

The main intention of this SEPP with respect to noise is to ensure:

¢ that the Consent Authority considers any guidelines issued by the
Director General prior to determining a development application;
and

e that the proposed buildings for residential use comply with
appropriate internal acoustic levels.

6.1 Developments requiring an acoustic assessment

Where a new railway line or corridor is proposed or an existing
line is planned near residential or sensitive land use
development and the appropriate noise and vibration trigger
levels (from the tables) are determined to be exceeded, an
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acoustic assessment in accordance with this section of the
Policy will be required.

Where residential or sensitive development is proposed on land
adjacent to an existing railway line or corridor and that the
consent authority considers is likely to be adversely affected by
rail noise or vibration, an acoustic assessment in accordance
with this section of the Policy will be required.

Note: where noise and vibration has the potential to negatively
impact on non-residential or less sensitive landuse
development, suitable criteria applicable to such developments
should be sought from a qualified acoustical consultant.

Residential or sensitive land use development must comply with
the interim guideline noise and vibration trigger levels regardless
of whether an acoustic report is required.

If Council receives a submission for development without an
acoustic assessment and one is deemed necessary the
application may be delayed until an assessment has been
completed and received by the Consent Authority.

Council reserve the right to request an acoustic assessment
for any development - at the applicant’s expense.

Noise Criteria

Council’s Policy adopts the assessment requirements and trigger
level (criteria) contained within the NSW DECC “Interim
Guideline for the Assessment of Noise from Rail Infrastructure
Projects (April 2007)" and the SEPP (Infrastructure) 2007 for the
assessment of rail noise. Applications for development must
demonstrate compliance with the SEPP (where relevant) and the
Interim Guidelines.

Note: Where there is any conflict of criteria between the SEPP
and the interim guidelines the criteria within the SEPP and any
supporting guidelines / documents will prevail.

The SEPP (Infrastructure] 2007 requires that the consent
authority must be satisfied that appropriate measure are taken
to ensure that the following internal Le., levels are not exceeded:

aj In any bedroom in the building - 35 dB(A) at any time
between 10pm and 7am; and

b) Anywhere else in the building (other than the garage,
kitchen, bathroom or hallway) — 40 dB(A) at any time.

The interim guidelines includes the following tables which are
reproduced in order to provide an informative summary of both
the airborne rail traffic noise and ground-borne noise trigger
levels (criteria) in that document. This summary is not complete
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in itself and consultants should refer to the full document when
preparing an assessment.

Table 6.2.1 Airborne Rail Traffic Noise Trigger Levels For
Residential Land Uses

Type of
Development

Noise trigger levels dB(A)

Day ~ Night
(7am - 10pm) | (10pm - 7pm)

New rail line
development

Comment

Development increases existing
rail noise levels

and

resulting rail noise levels
exceed:

60 L!‘wqf 15h) 55 L:\x'q['-‘h;

80 L.’\ncn 80 LAmn'

Redevelopment of
existing rail line

Development increases existing
rail noise levels

and

resulting rail noise levels
exceed:

65 Llutzgflf-hl 60 Lﬁa,\”l‘hl

85 L.’u:m.\‘ 85 Ly’l,n:«.’(

These numbers represent
external levels of noise that
trigger the need for an
assessment of the potential
noise impacts from a rail
infrastructure project.

An ‘increase’ in existing rail
noise levels is taken to be
an increase of 2 dB(A) or
more in L, in any hour or
an increase of 3 dB(A) or
more in Lamax.

(Source: Table 1 - Airborne rail traffic noise levels for residential land uses, Page 6,
Interim Guideline for the Assessment of Noise from Rail Infrastructure Projects,
NSW DECC, 2007.)
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Table 6.2.2 Airborne Rail Traffic Noise Trigger Levels For Sensitive
Land Uses Other Than Residential

Sensitive land use

Noise trigger levels dB(A)

New rail line
development

Redevelopment of
existing rail line

Development increases existing rail noise levels by 2

dB(A) or more in L., in any hour
and

Resulting rail noise levels exceed:

Schools, educational 40 Lacqin 45 Laeqgiin
institutions - internal

Places or worship - 40 Lacgn 45 Lacgn)
internal

Hospitals 60 Lacyin 60 Laeg1n)
Hospitals — internal 35 Laegqin 35 Laeqiin

Passive recreation

Lac, as per residential noise level values in Table 1 (does
not include maximum noise level component)

Active recreation (e.g.
golf course)

65 Lacqizih

065 Laegiaen

(Source: Table 2 - Airborne rail traffic noise levels for residential land uses, Page 6,
Interim Guideline for the Assessment of Noise from Rail Infrastructure Projects,

NSW DECC, 2007.)

Table 6.2.3 Ground-borne (internal) Noise Trigger Levels

Receiver Time of day Noise trigger levels dB(A)
Development increases existing
rail noise levels by 3 dB(A) or
more

and
Resulting rail noise levels
exceed:
Residential Day (7am - 10pm) 40 Laax (slow)
Night (10pm - 7am) 35 Ly (slow)
Schools, educational When in use 40-45 Layax (slow)
institutions, places of
worship |

(Source: Table 3 — Ground-borne (internal) Noise Trigger Levels, Page 10, Interim
Guideline for the Assessment of Noise from Rail Infrastructure Projects, NSW

DECC, 2007.)

6.3 Vibration Criteria

Trigger levels have been determined for vibration impacts and
these can be assessed using the DECC’s “Assessing vibration: A

technical guideline” (December 2006).

When the trigger levels

contained within the “Interim Guideline for the Assessment of
Noise from Rail Infrastructure Projects (April 2007)" and the
above associated guideline are exceeded then a noise and
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vibration assessment needs to be undertaken by a consultant
for the development.

6.4 Determination of Noise Levels

A suitably qualified acoustic consultant should carry out
acoustic measurements. The noise levels for assessment shall
be measured over at least eight consecutive train passbys.
Where freight movements are present at least two freight
passbys must be measured.

Where the rail line is yet to be completed a qualified acoustic
consultant may predict the noise levels expected. We note that
accurate prediction of vibration levels may not be possible.

6.5 Acoustic Assessment Report

An acoustic assessment of the impact of rail noise shall be
included in an Acoustic Assessment Report prepared bv a
qualified consultant in acoustics and submitted to Council for
development approval.

The full Acoustic Assessment Report shall present as a
minimum the information listed in Appendix 3 of this policy.

6.6 Implementation of the Policy and Compliance

Council’s requirements for compliance certification of the
installed /implemented noise attenuation measures, as noted in
the recommendations of the acoustic report attached to the
relevant development consent, will be noted as a condition of
that consent.

The following is an example of such a condition:

“Noise Attenuation Report Compliance - A report (from the
author of the approved Noise Attenuation Report/ Independent
Auditor) that contains a certifying statement confirming that the
recommendations of the approved Noise Atftenuation Report have
been implemented and are compliant must be submitted to the
Principal Certifying Authority for inclusion in any

{Occupation/ Subdivision) Certificate”.

The acoustic consultant must conduct sufficient inspections to
verify that all construction aspects of the noise attenuation
components /measures are being carried out in accordance with
the approved report recommendations.

Should the acoustic consultant confirm that:

1. any specific construction aspect does not comply with the
report recommendations; or
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2.that the constructed noise attenuation components/measures
do not achieve the criteria set by the approved report and this
policy;

the acoustic consultant must advise the applicant and the
Principal Certifying Authority of such non-compliance. The
applicant must arrange for the submission of an application
pursuant to s.96 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act 1979 for the modification of the issued development consent
to the Consent Authority, Camden Council, for determination.

7 NOISE FROM LICENCED PREMISES

7.1

Jurisdiction

Where a premise holds a liquor licence, primary responsibility
for the control of noise lies with the NSW Police and the Liquor
Administration Board. These departments may, however, liaise
with the local Council for assistance with the measurement of
noise levels and for advice on noise control treatment. Council
may take action against a licensed premise before a Licensing
Court under the Liquor Act or the Registered Clubs Act but
initially such action would normally be taken through the NSW
Police or the Liquor Administration Board. Council may lodge
an objection when the premise applies to the Licensing Court for
a new licence or to change existing licence conditions.

Discussion

Licensed premises, particularly hotels and clubs, can cause
noise disturbance to nearby residential premises that result in
complaints, Amplified music and noise associated with patron
departure when trading hours extend past 10.00pm are
frequently cited as sources of complaint. Whilst noise emissions
from amplified music are more easily controlled, noise from
patron departure is difficult to address satisfactorily when the
premise is situated near residential premises.

The primary means of control is by restricting trading hours to
prevent sleep disturbance at nearby residential premises.
Consideration of the locality is taken into account in any
application to the licensing court for extended trading hours.
Implementing a Noise Management Plan or similar practices to
ensure patron departure is achieved with a minimum of
disruption to neighbouring premises is another effective means
of control.

Mechanical plant and equipment associated with ventilation and
refrigeration systems requires consideration to ensure that its
operation does not cause disturbance at other commercial
premises, and particularly at any nearby residential premises.
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7.3 Criteria for Licensed Premises

The noise emission criteria from the NSW Liquor Administration
Board (LAB) shall be applied to any music/entertainment and
patrons from the licensed premises.

The LAB criteria are as set out below.

“The Laio* noise level emitted from the licensed premises shall not
exceed the background noise level in any Octave Band Centre
Frequency (31.5Hz — 8kHz inclusive) by more than 5dB betiveen
7:00am and 12:00 midnight at the boundary of any affected
residence.”

“The Lai”* noise level emitted from the licensed premises shall
not exceed the background noise level in any Octave Band Centre
Frequency (31.5Hz — 8kHz inclusive) between 12:00 midnight and
7:00am at the boundary of any affected residence.”

“Notwithstanding compliance with the above, the noise from the
licensed premises shall not be audible within any habitable room
in any residential premises between the hours of 12:00 midnight
and 7:00am.”

Interior noise levels that still exceed safe hearing levels are in no
way supported or condoned by Council.

Noise emission from other sources on the site, including
mechanical plant and vehicle movements within site, shall be
assessed in accordance with Part B - Section 4 of this
document.

Noise increases due to increased traffic flow on surrounding
roads (due to vehicle flow from the site) shall be assessed in

accordance with Part B - Section 5 of this document where
applicable.

In addition to meeting all noise criteria to obtain Council
approval, a Noise Management Plan (NMP) is to be submitted to
council that addresses noise associated with patron departure,
particularly after 10.00pm. Points of access and egress should
be restricted wherever possible to minimise adverse impact
upon noise sensitive receivers. Noise emissions from car
parking facilities shall be monitored by management to ensure
patrons arrive and /or depart in the quietest manner possible.

** Forthe purpose of this condition. the L., can be taken as the average maximum deflection of the
noise emission from the licensed premises.
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7.4

7.5

7.6

Determination of Noise Levels

The noise levels from the licensed premises shall be determined
by means of prediction (using a recognised calculation or
modelling procedure) or measurements at the boundary of the
nearest or most affected premises; or, if the boundary is more
than 30 metres from a residential dwelling at the most affected
point, within 30 metres of the residence.

For the purpose of investigating a complaint from a resident
regarding noise associated with patron departure, measurement
of the noise level shall be conducted at the boundary of the most
affected premises or, if the boundary is more than 30 metres
from the residence, at the most affected point within 30 metres
of the residence.

Acoustic Assessment Report

An Acoustic Assessment Report prepared by a suitably qualified
acoustic consultant detailing the extent of compliance with the
specified acoustic criteria shall be submitted concurrently with
the development application submitted to Council for approval.

The full Acoustic Assessment Report shall present as a
minimum the information listed in Appendix 4 of this policy.

Implementation of the Policy and Compliance

Council’s requirements for compliance certification of the
installed /implemented noise attenuation measures, as noted in
the recommendations of the acoustic report attached to the
relevant development consent, will be noted as a condition of
that consent.

The following is an example of such a condition:

“Noise Attenuation Report Compliance - A report (from the
author of the approved Noise Attenuation Report/ Independent
Auditor) that contains a certifying statement confirming that the
recommendations of the approved Noise Attenuation Report have
been implemented and are compliant must be submitted to the
Principal Certifying Authority for inclusion in any

(Occupation/ Subdivision) Certificate”.

The acoustic consultant must conduct sufficient inspections to
verify that all construction aspects of the noise attenuation
components/measures are being carried out in accordance with
the approved report recommendations.

Should the acoustic consultant confirm that:

1. any specific construction aspect does not comply with the
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report recommendations; or

2.that the constructed noise attenuation components/measures
do not achieve the criteria set by the approved report and this
policy;

the acoustic consultant must advise the applicant and the
Principal Certifying Authority of such non-compliance. The
applicant must arrange for the submission of an application
pursuant to 5.96 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act 1979 for the modification of the issued development consent
to the Consent Authority, Camden Council, for determination.

PART C: Guidelines for Assessment of Community
Noise

1 INTRODUCTION

Within residential communities there are various facilities and activities
which can give rise to significant levels of noise generation. Whether the
noise levels emitted are perceived by other community members as
“annoying” is very much dependent upon the relevance of the facility or
activity to the receiver, the level of the noise, the character of the noise
and the time at which noise is made.

For this reason, many of the noisy activities or articles frequently
operated in residential communities (such as lawnmowers, air
conditioners and swimming pool pumps) have time restrictions applying
as determined by the Protection of the Environment Operations (Noise
Control) Regulations 2000.

The restricted times, apply to domestic activities specified in the
regulations that should be inaudible in a neighbour’s house. By limiting
the hours of operation of these noisy items / activities, the potential for
disturbance at neighbouring premise is greatly reduced.

The potential noise impacts of other sources of community noise, such
as schools, are outweighed by the community benefit provided by such
faciliies and community acceptance is generally widespread. The
importance of educational establishments is recognised by the majority
of the community and the limited hours of operation generally serves to
mitigate noise impact.

It is thercfore important for Council to identify the various source of
neighbourhood noise and establish criteria or management techniques
by which noise impact can be minimised.

2 COMMUNITY NOISE COMMERCIAL

2.1 Child Care Centres (excluding home based/ family childcare)
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Childcare centres are commercial enterprises and are
recognised as providing a valuable service to working parents in
the community. Council is responsible for administering the
control of noise from these commercial premises.

The noise sources of concern with regard to the operation of
child care centres (excluding home based [/ family care) consist
of mechanical plant and equipment associated with air
conditioning, kitchen mechanical exhaust, children at play, and
the operation of vehicles within car parks associated with staff
movements and the drop-off and collection of children.

The major source of noise emission from child care centres
primarily occur when the children are involved in outdoor play
or sporting activities. Strict daytime hours of operation,
generally Monday to Friday, does help to limit the duration of
noise disturbance to daytime periods only.

The Lacygis minuws noise level from children in the outdoor areas of
the site must not exceed the background Las sound level by
more than 10dB(A). When measured at the boundary of the
nearest or most affected residential premises, or if the boundary
is more than 30 metres from a residential dwelling, at the most
affected point within 30 metres of a residence.

All other noise impacts from the use of the site, including
children inside the buildings, mechanical plant, kitchen
exhaust, amplified music, vehicle use of the car park must
comply with Part B - Section 4 of this document. Noise impact
on the site from external noise sources such as nearby industry
must also comply with Part B - Section 4.

Noise increases due to increased traffic flow on surrounding
roads (due to vehicle flow from the site) shall be assessed in
accordance with Part B - Section 5 of this document where
applicable.

Council may restrict the areas in which pre-schools and day
care centres will be permitted. Factors of non-acoustical nature
will also play a large part in the determination of appropriate
zonings, such as traffic volumes on local roads, proximity to
potential health hazards, safety concerns and the like. In
addition to zoning restrictions, Council can also impose noise
control measures as part of the conditions of consent.

By implementing such an approach, Council recognises that
childcare centre developments do generate noise that can
impact negatively on the amenity of an area,

Where a childcare development is proposed, the applicant /
acoustic consultant may need to consider a range of noise
control measures to be incorporated into the design and
operation of the centre.
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2.3

Note: for additional guidelines and standards applicable to
childcare centres, applications are also required to comply with
Camden Council’s Development Control Plan 2006.

Churches and Religious Developments

Churches and religious establishments, whilst an acknowledged
part of the community, can be a source of excessive noise
causing disturbance to neighbouring premises.

Where neighbouring properties may be adversely impacted by
offensive noise that is generated from the arrival and departure
of religious congregations or from the conducting of religious
services, an acoustic assessment of such noise impacts must be
included in any report submitted with the development
application. Noise exemptions for occasions of special religious
significance (typically less than six events per year) mav be
permitted by Council.

Noise emission from amplified music shall be assessed in
accordance with the LAB criteria, set out in Part B - Section 7.

Noise emission from other sources on the site, including
mechanical plant and vehicle movements within the site, shall
be assessed in accordance with Part B - Section 4 of this
document.

Noise increases due to increased traffic flow on surrounding
roads (due to vehicle flow from the site) shall be assessed in

accordance with Part B - Section 5 of this document where
applicable.

Assessment of noise and acoustic reports for such developments
shall be conducted as outlined in Part B - Section 7.5 — Acoustic
Assessment Report.

Community and Multipurpose Halls and Facilities

The operation of any community or multipurpose hall or similar
facility shall not give rise to offensive noise at any nearby
residential premises.

Noise emission from amplified music shall be assessed in
accordance with the LAB criteria, set out in Part B - Section 7.

Noise emission from other sources on the site, including
mechanical plant and vehicle movements within site, shall be
assessed In accordance with Part B - Section 4 of this
document.

Noise increases due to increased traffic flow on surrounding
roads (due to vehicle flow from the site) shall be assessed in
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accordance with Part B - Section 5 of this document where
applicable.

Assessment of noise and reports for such developments shall be
conducted as outlined in Part B - Section 7.5 - Acoustic
Assessment Report.

Where a hall is deemed to be of significant community benefit
(e.g. scout halls, church halls and the like) and used for
community (and not commercial) purposes Council may apply
time restrictions in lieu of the above noise criteria. This
concession should not be applied to noise emission from
mechanical plant or amplified music.

In determining the approved hours of operation, Council shall
give consideration to traffic generation and noise impact due to
patron departure.

Home Business

Approval shall not be granted for the operation of a home
business unless it can be established to the satisfaction of
Council that the L 15 minuesy noise level due to noise level
emissions of a continuous or semi-continuous nature from the
home business operation will not exceed the background Laoo
(15min) sound level by more than 5 dB{A) when measured at the
property boundary of any nearby residence. If the boundary is
more than 30 metres from a residential dwelling at the most
affected point within 30 metres of the residence.

Where tonality or impulsiveness can be established at the
receiver location, a 5 dB(A) penalty shall be applied

Where there is a perceived high noise risk, assessment of noise
from the business shall be conducted as outlined in Part B -
Section 4.4 ~ Acoustic Assessment Report.

Learn-to-Swim Schools on Residential Premises

These facilities are of benefit to the wider community. However,
when located within a residential area, their operation may
result in some acoustic impact on neighbouring properties. The
hours of operation and the number of children attending classes
should be considered in relation to the suitability of the subject
site and the location of neighbouring properties.

The major noise emissions from these facilities involve children
arriving and departing the site, raised voices from instructors or
children during lessons, splashing noises, the possible use of
amplified sound and in some larger operations, traffic
generation on the residential street in which the facility is
located.
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The Lacy:s minuwes Noise level from children in the outdoor areas of
the site must not exceed the background Law j15min sound level
by more than 10dB(A) when measured at the boundary of the
nearest or most affected residential premises, or if the boundary
is more than 30 metres from a residential dwelling, at the most
affected point within 30 metres of a residence.

All other noise on the site, including children inside the
buildings, mechanical plant and cars within the carpark must
comply with Part B - Section 4 of this document.

Noise increases due to increased traffic flow on surrounding
roads (due to vehicle flow from the site) shall be assessed in
accordance with Part B - Section 5 of this document where
applicable.

Council may restrict the areas in which such facilities are
permitted. Factors of a non-acoustic nature may also play a part
in the determination of appropriate zonings, such as the size of
the site, location of surrounding premises, traffic volumes on
local roads, safety concerns, size and frequency of classes and
the like.

By implementing such an approach, Council recognises that
such developments do generate noise but such emissions have
the potential to be controlled by the time restrictions imposed
on the facility’s hours of operation. In addition to zoning
restrictions, Council can impose noise control measures as part
of the approved development application conditions of consent.

The following noise control measures may be incorporated
where appropriate to reduce noise levels. Note however that
incorporation of these controls DOES NOT in any way guarantee
compliance (or viability for a development to comply) and are
provided for informative purposes only.

* Hours of operation should be restricted to between 8,00 am
to 6.00 pm Monday to Friday and 8.00 am to 5.00 pm
Saturday with no classes on Sundays or public holidays.

e A noise screen fence of solid and continuous construction
should be erected along the property boundaries adjacent to
neighbouring residences. The fence shall be free of gaps and
cracks,

e The applicant shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of
Council that a strategy for noise management has been
prepared.

Whilst the submission of an acoustic report is not a pre-
requisite Council may require an acoustic report where there is
a perceived high noise risk.
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Schools

Although schools have the potential to generate significant levels
of noise, the restricted hours of operation generally serve to limit
noise impact to neighbours. In addition, the periods when
students are outside en masse are limited to a short time before
school, recess and lunch.

Public school buildings are designed in accordance with State
Government requirements, of which noise emissions to the
boundary are a consideration. However, it is recognised that
Private schools may not need to be designed to comply with the
same requirements.

Despite the above, generally building design should ensure that
rooms in which noise generating activities will be conducted,
such as woodwork, metalwork, music, etc, are located as
remotely from the school boundaries as possible. Consideration
should also be given to the separation between outdoor play
areas and boundaries.

As a guide the Lacyis minues noise level from children in the
outdoor areas of the site should not exceed the background Ly,
isminues; Sound level by more than 10dB(A) when measured at
the boundary of the nearest or most affected residential
premises, or if the boundary is more than 30 metres from a
residential dwelling, at the most affected point within 30 metres
of a residence.

All other noise on the site, including children inside the
buildings, woodwork/metalwork/music rooms, public address
systems, bells / alarms, mechanical plant, children’s external
play areas, and cars within the carpark must comply with Part
B - Section 4 of this document.

Noise increases due to increased traffic flow on surrounding
roads (due to vehicle flow from the site) shall be assessed in
accordance with Part B - Section 5 of this document where
applicable.

Assessment of the noise from the school shall be conducted as
outlined in Part C - Section 2.8 - Acoustic Assessment Report.

Audible Bird Scare Devices (Including Gas Scare Guns)

Audible bird scare devices are used by some orchardists and
viticulturalists to protect their crops from attack from birds and
fruit bats. The noise from the use of such devices, whilst
seasonal, may present a noise problem for residents in close
proximity to these properties.

Council and the NSW Police have statutory powers under the
POEO Act 1997 and the Noise Control Regulations to deal with
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2.9

such activities by applving the Offensive Noise test (refer to
definition of “offensive noise” under POEO). Noise Abatement
Directions and Penalty Notices can be issued where offensive
noise has been determined to exist.

Alternatively, Council can assess the suitability of the devices by
considering the South Australian Environment Protection
Authority Guidelines - “Draft Environment Noise Guidelines for
Audible  Bird  Scarers”  (http://www.environment.sa.gov.
au/epa/pdfs/bird_scarers.pdf).

Acoustic Assessment Report

An Acoustic Assessment Report prepared by a suitably qualified
acoustic consultant detailing compliance with the specified
acoustic criteria shall accompany the development application
submitted to Council for approval.

The full Acoustic Assessment Report shall present as a
minimum the information listed in Appendix 5 of this policy.

Implementation of the Policy and Compliance

Council’s requirements for compliance -certification of the
installed /implemented noise attenuation measures, as noted in
the recommendations of the acoustic report attached to the
relevant development consent, will be noted as a condition of
that consent.

The following is an example of such a condition:

“Noise Attenuation Report Compliance - A report (from the
author of the approved Noise Attenuation Report/ Independent
Auditor) that contains a certifying statement confirming that the
recommendations of the approved Noise Attenuation Report have
been implemented and are compliant must be submitted to the
Principal Certifying Authority for inclusion in any

(Occupation/ Subdivision) Certificate”.

The acoustic consultant must conduct sufficient inspections to
verify that all construction aspects of the noise attenuation
components/measures are being carried out in accordance with
the approved report recommendations.

Should the acoustic consultant confirm that:

1. any specific construction aspect does not comply with the
report recommendations; or

2.that the constructed noise attenuation components/measures
do not achieve the criteria set by the approved report and this

policy;
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the acoustic consultant must advise the applicant and the
Principal Certifying Authority of such non-compliance. The
applicant must arrange for the submission of an application
pursuant to s.96 of the Environmental Planming and Assessment
Act 1979 for the modification of the issued development consent
to the Consent Authority, Camden Council, for determination.

3 COMMUNITY NOISE RESIDENTIAL

3.1

3.2

Amplified Music (from residential premises)

The Protection of the Environment Operations (Noise Control)
Regulations 2008 restricts noise from the use of musical
instruments and amplified sound equipment between the hours
of:

10pm to 8.00am Sunday to Thursday;
* 12 midnight to 8am on Friday, Saturday and any other
night following a public holiday.

Where the sound is audible in a neighbour’s residence during
this time and a statutory warning to this effect is ignored, the
person operating the sound equipment is guilty of an offence
under the Act.

During the permitted hours of operation, the sound must be
deemed offensive by an Authorised Officer (in a habitable room)
before a noise notice or direction can be issued. As a guide to
minimise the likelihood of disturbance, the Lo, (15 minuwes hoise
level due to the operation of amplified sound equipment should
not exceed the background LA90 plus SdBA sound level when
measured in the immediate vicinity of the external structure of
any nearby residence.

Barking Dogs (from residential premises)

Where a barking dog continually causes disturbance to the
sleep of neighbours, it is a source of concern. Dogs that bark
during the daytime may also be a source of annoyance to
residents at home during the day.

Dog barking can be due to a variety of factors with perhaps the
two most common being boredom and visual stimulation.
Owners of barking dogs should be encouraged to exercise the
animal regularly for a sufficient period and to reduce the visual
stimulation of the dogs, particularly at night.

Council has statutory powers to deal with barking dogs under
the Companion Animals Act 1998 by issuing a nuisance order to
the registered owner or person who normally keeps the animal.
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Additionally, under the Protection of the Environment Act, 1997
Council can issue a Prevention Notice on the owner of a noisy
dog.

Council deals with the issue of noisy dogs located on residential
premises by way of set procedures. These procedures largely fall
outside the scope of this Policy. Residents also have the right to
take their own action against the owners of noisy dogs by way of
application to the Local Court requesting that the Magistrate
issue a Noise Abatement Order.

Note: Applications for commercial kennels will require an
acoustic assessment report to be submitted with
development applications. Noise impact should be
assessed in accordance with Part B - Section 4 of
this Policy.

Air conditioners (on residential premises)

Under Council’'s DCP 2006 (Part B - Exempt and Complying
Development), air conditioning units for dwellings are permitted
as exempt development, meaning they do not require
development consent where they are located a minimum
distance of 3 metres from any property boundary and located
behind the building line to any street frontage. Purchasers of
domestic air conditioners should consult Council’s DCP 2006 to
ensure compliance with these requirements. Where there is
non-compliance with this DCP, a development application shall
be required.

The Protection Of the Environment Operations (Noise Control)
Regulations 2008 sets out restricted times for the operation of
domestic air conditioners that should not be heard in a
neighbours home between the hours of 10.00pm to 7.00am
weekdays and 10.00pm to 8.00am on weekends and public
holidays. Where the operation of the air conditioner is audible in
a neighbour’s residence during these hours, and a statutory
warning not to operate the air conditioner is ignored, the person
operating the air conditioner is guilty of an offence under the
POEO Act 1997,

Outside of the restricted hours, the operation of the unit must
be deemed “offensive” by an Authorised Officer before a Noise
Notice can be served. To minimise the likelihood of disturbance,
the Lacy 115 minues Noise level due to the operation of the air
conditioner shall not exceed the background Lsso sound level by
more than 5 dB(A) when measured at the property boundary in
the immediate vicinity of the external structure of any nearby
residence. Where tonality can be established, a 5 dB(A) penalty
shall be applied.

Development Applications will need to be lodged with Council
prior to the installation of any air conditioner unless it can be
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3.5

3.6

clearly determined that full compliance can be achieved with
Council’s DCP 2006 - Part B, Chapter 2 “Exempt Development”.

It is important to note that compliance with Council’s DCP does
not ensure that an air conditioner will meet the above noise
goal. If noise from any air conditioner is identified as a problem
to a neighbour the above noise criteria will need to be complied
with at the owner’s expense (regardless of compliance with DCP
2006).

Assessment of the noise from air conditioners should be
conducted as outlined on Part C - Section 3.9 - Acoustic
Assessment Report,

Note: Air conditioners for commercial premises are
classified as mechanical plant and require a
development application. Noise impact should be
assessed in accordance with details contained
within Part B - Section 4 of this Policy.

Birds or Caged Birds (Domestic) on Residential Premises

Domestic and caged birds kept upon any premises shall be
deemed to cause offensive noise when the noise from the birds
can be heard by an Authorised Officer within a habitable room
in any affected residence between the hours of 10.00 pm and
7.00 am.

Outside of these hours complaints will be assessed in
accordance with the POEO Act 1997, Local Government Act
1993, and other relevant statutory powers.

Lawnmowers

The Protection Of the Environment Operations (Noise Control)
Regulations 2008 sets out restricted times for the operation of
lawnmowers that should not be heard in a neighbours home
between the hours of 8.00 pm and 7.00 am Monday to Saturday
and 8.00 pm and 8.00 am Sundays and Public Holidays. Where
the operation of the lawnmower is audible in a neighbour's
residence during restricted hours, and a statutory warning to
this effect is ignored, the person operating the lawnmower is
guilty of an offence under the POEO AcL

Swimming Pool & Spa Pool & Heat Pumps

The Protection Of the Environment Operations (Noise Control)
Regulations 2008 sets out restricted times for the operation of
swimming pool pumps that should not be heard in a neighbours
home between 8.00 pm and 7.00 am Mondays to Fridays and
8.00pm and 8.00 am weekdays and public holidays. Where the
operation of the pump is audible in a neighbour’'s residence
during this time, and a statutory warning to the effect is

31

Attachments for the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 24 October 2017 - Page 165

ORDO0O4

Attachment 3



ORDO04

Attachment 3

Attachment 3

Environmental Noise Policy

3.7

ignored, the person operating the pool pump is guilty of an
offence under the POEO Act.

Outside these restricted hours, the noise must be deemed
“offensive” by an Authorised Officer before a Noise Notice can be
served to minimise the likelihood of disturbance, the La 1=
minues) Noise level due to the operation of the swimming pool
pump shall not exceed the background L. sound level by more
than 5 dB(A) when measured at the property boundary of any
nearby residence.

Where there is a likelihood of objectionable or offensive noise
emissions bevond the property boundary, pumps must be
housed in a suitably constructed, sound-proofed structure.
Advice should be sought from a suitably qualified acoustic
consultant or similar qualified person with regard to the
materials to be used.

An acoustic report is not normally required to be submitted for a
pool or spa pump unless requested by Council. However when
installing such devices consideration is to be given to the
location of such devices in relation to neighbouring residences
and the noise criteria must still be complied with. The location
of such pumps must be detailed on any plans submitted with
the development application,

Tennis Courts on Residential Premises - Private Use

Attempting to regulate noise emissions from residential tennis
courts by applying noise level limits is difficult due to the nature
and duration of the noise source. As in the case of backvard
swimming pools, some degree of noise must be expected at
neighbouring premises from the actvities conducted. Unless
artificial lighting is installed, the use of tennis courts on
residential premises is restricted to daylight hours, which is
generally considered sufficient in terms of noise control.

However, where an application is made to install artificial
lighting to permit private court use outside of daylight hours,
the following restrictions shall be imposed upon the
development.

e Hours of Operation shall be restricted to between 8.00 am to
10.00 pm.

e A guideline minimum distance of 10 metres shall be
maintained between the edge of the court and the window of
any habitable room in an adjacent premise, or an alternative
form of noise mitigation shall be employed.

Note: Where it is proposed to use a tennis court for
commercial purposes such as private/public
coaching, an acoustic assessment report may be
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3.10

required to be submitted for approval in accordance
with Part B - Section 4.

Trail Bikes and Vehicles in Off-Road Areas

Trail bikes and vehicle activity in off-road areas, including both
public reserves and private land, can be a source of annoyance
to residents during the day. Council and the NSW Police have
the statutory powers under the POEO Act 1997 and the Noise
Control Regulations to deal with such activities by applying the
Offensive Noise test (refer to definition of “offensive noise™ under
POEQO). Noise Abatement Directions and Penalty Notices can be
issued where offensive noise has been determined to exist.

Acoustic Assessment Report

An Acoustic Assessment Report prepared by a suitably qualified
acoustic consultant detailing compliance with the specified
acoustic criteria shall accompany the development application
submitted to Council for approval.

The full Acoustic Assessment Report shall present as a
minimum the information listed in Appendix 5 of this policy.

Implementation of the Policy and Compliance

Council’s requirements for compliance certification of the
installed /implemented noise attenuation measures, as noted in
the recommendations of the acoustic report attached to the
relevant development consent, will be noted as a condition of
that consent.

The following is an example of such a condition:

“Noise Attenuation Report Compliance - A report (from the
author of the approved Noise Attenuation Report/ Independent
Auditor) that contains a certifying statement confirming that the
recommendations of the approved Noise Attenuation Report have
been implemented and are compliant must be submitted to the
Principal Certifying Authority for inclusion in any

{Occupation/ Subdivision) Certificate”.

The acoustic consultant must conduct sufficient inspections to
verify that all construction aspects of the noise attenuation
components/measures are being carried out in accordance with
the approved report recommendations.

Should the acoustic consultant confirm that:

1. any specific construction aspect does not comply with the
report recommendations; or
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2.that the constructed noise attenuation components/measures
do not achieve the criteria set by the approved report and this
policy;

the acoustic consultant must advise the applicant and the
Principal Certifying Authority of such non-compliance. The
applicant must arrange for the submission of an application
pursuant to s.96 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act 1979 for the modification of the issued development consent
to the Consent Authority, Camden Council, for determination.

4 NOISE FROM OPEN AIR ENTERTAINMENT AND OUTDOOR
FACILITIES

4.1 General

The following guidelines for the control of noise from open air
entertainment and outdoor facilities have been devised in order
to minimise the likelihood of disturbance to the surrounding
community. In some instances, however, where an event or
activity is determined to be of particular social or cultural
benefit, more relaxed criteria may be applied at Council’s
discretion.

In the case of existing facilities, such as Oran Park Raceway,
Council has applied specific noise criteria to the operation of the
facility via an approval These criteria will enable
Council to regulate the noise emissions from the operation of
the facility.

4.2 Guidelines
4.2.1 Outdoor special events

The staging of outdoor “special event” such as open-air concerts
or music festivals will require Council approval. The criteria that
follows is for events of an infrequent nature, perhaps once or
twice per year. Events of special cultural or social significance
as determined by Council will be given preference for approval.

Where approval is received the applicant will be required to
submit a Noise Management Plan that addresses the following:
suitable stage orientation, provision and location of foldback
monitors, speaker stack height, location and orientation and
implementation of noise control measures, how the community
will be informed about the festival operating times, provision of
a contact number for the event manager /staff, nomination of
the person contactable on the day of the event,

Where Council approval is granted, the maximum permissible
noise level measured at the nearest residential boundary shall
not exceed 70 dB(A) Lapa. or 85 dB(C) Lo Ideally, warning
should be issued to the mixing desk when the maximum level
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reaches 65 dB(A) Lamax or 80 dB(C) Lemax at the nearest or most
potentially affected residential premises.

Ideally, the duration of such events should be restricted to no
more than 4 hours with events to be completed by 10.00 pm. All
patrons are to be off site by 10:30pm.

4.2.2 Open Air Cinemas

Open-air cinemas are similar to open-air concerts with regard to
noise emissions. The main difference relates to the frequency of
events where an approval for open-air cinemas may extend to
cover a period of months of operation. In addition, the cinema
may operate over a number of evenings each week and it is this
frequency that is likely to cause annoyance amongst residences.

Assessment of noise from the open-air cinema shall be
conducted as outlined in Part C - Section 4.3.

Noise emission from amplified sound sources on the site as well
as any power generators or other plant, shall be assessed in
accordance with Part B - Section 4 of this document,

Noise generation from vehicular traffic within the site may need
to comply with Part B - Section 4 of this document. Council may
apply this criterion at their discretion.

Noise generation from vehicular traffic on surrounding roads
may need to comply with Part B - Section 5 of this document.
Council may apply this criterion at their discretion. The
preparation of a Noise Management Plan to accompany the
acoustic report is required where traffic control is necessary.

Where off-street parking is available, events shall be completed
by 10.30pm, with all patron cars off site by 11.00pm.

4.2.3 Recreational Facilities

Unless otherwise approved by a consent authority, the La.=
minutes) T1018€ level due to the operation of the recreational facility
including the operation of any public address system shall not
exceed the background L., sound level by more than S5dB(A)
when measured over a fifteen minute period at the nearest
residential boundary or, if that is more than 30 metres from the
residence, at the most affect point within 30 metres of the
residence.

Where a special event is deemed by Council to be of particular
social or cultural benefit to the wider community, a 10 dB(A)
exceedance of the background Laco sound level may be permitted
upon written approval from Council prior to the event.
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An example of recreational facilities includes skate and bike
parks (non-motorised), equestrian centres, model aircraft.

4.2.4 Recreational Vehicle Facility

Approval shall not be granted for the operation of a facility (such
as a motocross track etc) for recreational vehicle use unless it
can be demonstrated to the satisfaction of Council that the L.,
(15 minutes) N01S€E level at any time during vehicle operation will not
exceed the background Laso sound level by more than 5 dB(A)
when measured at the most affected point on or within the
residential property boundary or, if that is more than 30 metres
from the residence, at the most affected point within 30 metres
of the residence.

The recommended operating hours for such facilities are:

Monday to Friday 8.00 am to 6.00 pm
Weekends and Public Holidayvs 8.00 am to 5.00 pm

Assessment of noise from recreational vehicles shall be
conducted as outlined in Part C - Section 4.3.

4.2.5 Shooting Range Facility

Approval shall not be granted for the operation of any such
facility unless it can be demonstrated to the satisfaction of
Council that the following noise levels will not be exceeded when
measured at the most affected point on or within the residential
property boundary or, if that is more than 30 metres from the
residence, at the most affect point within 30 metres of the
residence.

Residential Level - dB (Lin) Peak Hold

|60 65 70|75|/80 85 90 95| 100 105 |

Maximum Usage — Days (Nights) per Week

Future Range
Daytime Use

7|16 S5 4|3 |2 1 - - - -

Future Range
Night-time Use

S E|E == ===~ | = =

For assessment of shooting range facilities, daytime is defined
as 10.00 am to 6.00 pm Monday to Saturday. Night-time is
defined as 6.00 pm to 10.00 pm Monday to Saturday.

Assessment of noise from shooting ranges shall be conducted as
outlined in Part C - Section 4.3.

Shooting on Sundays and Public Holidays is only permitted
between the daytime hours of 10.00 am to 5.00 pm.
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The requirements for sites using non-explosive projectiles, such
as "paintball” facilities and the like, are to be assessed in
accordance with Part B- Section 4 of this policy.

4.2.5 Sporting Activities

Organised outdoor sporting activities such as football, soccer,
netball, hockey and the like conducted at sporting grounds are
not subject to specific noise criteria (for participants and
spectators) during the following daytime hours:

Monday to Friday 7.00 am to 6.00 pm
Weekends and Public Holidays 8.00 am to 6.00 pm

Outdoor sporting activities are permitted between the hours of
6.00 pm and 10.00 pm, Monday to Saturday provided the La., 15
minutes) NOise level, measured over a fifteen minute period, does
not exceed the background L.. sound level by more than 10
dB(A). This is to be measured at the most affected point on or
within the residential property boundary or, if that is more than
30 metres from the residence, at the most affected point within
30 metres of the residence.

At all times however the use of public address systems must not
result in an Law 13 mnues hoise level, measured over a
representative period which exceeds the background Las« sound
level by more than 5 dB(A) when measured at the most affected
point on or within the residential property boundary or, if that is
more than 30 metres from the residence, at the most affected
point with 30 metres of the residence.

Noise emission from vehicle movements within the site shall be
assessed in accordance with Part B - Section 4 of this
document.

Noise increases due to increased traffic flow on surrounding
roads (due to vehicle flow from the site) shall be assessed in
accordance with Part B - Section 5 of this document where
applicable.

In all cases new sporting fields etc must take into account noise
during the planning and design process. Facilities should be
laid out in such a way as to minimise noise impact on nearby
residences.

Residential developments on land surrounding sporting fields
must take into account noise generation from such facilities.
Council reserve the right to require modifications of applications
for residential developments adjacent to sporting fields in order
to protect noise amenity and provide a buffer zone between the
sporting facilities and residences. In all cases where
development approval is granted near an existing facility {or site
set aside for a future facility) it remains the responsibility of the
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4.3

4.4

developer to provide sufficient noise control to protect resident
amenity.

Acoustic Assessment Report

An Acoustic Assessment Report prepared by a suitably qualified
acoustic consultant detailing compliance with the specified
acoustic criteria shall accompany the development application
submitted to Council for approval.

The full Acoustic Assessment Report shall present as a
minimum the information listed in Appendix 5 of this policy.

Implementation of the Policy and Compliance

Council’s requirements for compliance certification of the
installed /implemented noise attenuation measures, as noted in
the recommendations of the acoustic report attached to the
relevant development consent, will be noted as a condition of
that consent.

The following is an example of such a condition:

“Noise Attenuation Report Compliance - A report (from the
author of the approved Noise Attenuation Report/ Independent
Auditor} that contains a certifying statement confirming that the
recommendations of the approved Noise Attenuation Report have
been implemented and are compliant must be submitted to the
Principal Certifying Authority for inclusion in any

{Occupation/ Subdivision) Certificate”.

The acoustic consultant must conduct sufficient inspections to
verify that all construction aspects of the noise attenuation
components/measures are being carried out in accordance with
the approved report recommendations.

Should the acoustic consultant confirm that:

1. any specific construction aspect does not comply with the
report recommendations; or

2.that the constructed noise attenuation components/measures
do not achieve the criteria set by the approved report and this
policy;

the acoustic consultant must advise the applicant and the
Principal Certifying Authority of such non-compliance. The
applicant must arrange for the submission of an application
pursuant to s.96 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act 1979 for the modification of the issued development consent
to the Consent Authority, Camden Council, for determination.
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NOISE FROM CAMDEN AIRPORT / MOTOR SPORT FACILITIES

5.1

5.2

General

Whilst Camden Council is responsible for regulating noise
emissions from Oran Park Raceway, it is the Civil Aviation
Safety Authority (CASA) who is responsible for regulating the
operations of Camden Airport with respect to noise complaints.

In consideration of noise impact from Oran Park Raceway,
Council has specific noise criteria applicable to the operation of
the facility. This criterion enables Council to strictly regulate the
noise emissions that occur during operation of the facility.

Despite the above, it is recognised that Camden Airport and
Motor Sport Facilities independently have the potential to
negatively impact on the amenity of surrounding residents with
respect to noise. Therefore it is important to consider the level of
noise impact where it is planned to rezone land for development
when a more sensitive landuse is proposed.

The following guidelines for any assessment of noise from the
Airport / Motor Sport facilities have been devised in order to
minimise the likelihood of disturbance to the surrounding
community. In some instances, however, where an event or
activity is determined to be of particular social or cultural
benefit, more relaxed criteria may be applied at Council’s
discretion.

Guidelines
5.2.1 Airport (Camden) Noise effect on Developments

In Australia, the acceptability of land in the vicinity of airports
for development is assessed using the Australian Noise
Exposure Forecast (ANEF) systems which is endorsed by
Airservices Australia.

ANEF is based on forecasting future (as well as existing) aircraft
movements, the number of movements, the type of these
movements, and the time of day that movements are planned to
occur. Using similar techniques to ANEF a set of noise contours
are produced known as Australian Noise Exposure Concept
(ANEC) contours which require final endorsement from
Airservices Australia.

Australian Standard 2021 - 2000, Acoustics — Aircraft noise
intrusion - Building siting and construction, provides
recommendations regarding land use acceptability in
consideration of the various zones on the ANEF chart.
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5.3

Depending on the ANEF wvalue at a specific location, certain
building types are described by AS2021-2000 as either
“acceptable”, “conditionally acceptable”, or “unacceptable” with
reference to the ANEF value.

Developments outside the ANEF 20 contour do not require
assessment for aircraft noise (unless specifically requested by
Council).

Whilst the ANEF system provides guidance on the acceptability
of a proposed land use it does not inform prospective residents
in the “"acceptable” or “conditionally acceptable” areas about the
nature of any aircraft noise. Where this is the case, additional
techniques will need to be applied to the assessment process
that will inform proposed residents who are noise sensitive 1o be
informed of noise disturbance.

Acoustic Assessments of noise from airport [/ aircraft shall be
conducted as outlined in Part C - Section 5.3 and be strictly
assessed in accordance with AS2021 -2000.

5.2.2 Motor Sport Noise effect on Developments

As previously indicated, Oran Park Raceway has specific noise
criteria applicable to the operation of the facility. Whilst the
criteria enables Council to strictly regulate the noise emissions
that occur during operation of the facility it also provides
intrusive noise criteria to be adopted for assessment of impact
on a proposed development.

Where residential development is proposed on land that is likely
to be impacted by noise from Motor Sport Facilities then an
acoustic assessment report is required. The relevant intrusive
noise level (Lacyis nines) should not exceed the background (L)
plus 5 dB(A) at any proposed residential boundary or, if that
boundary is proposed to be more than 30 metres from the
residence, at the most affected point within 30 metres of the
residence.

Acoustic assessments should also take into consideration the
potential for night-time race events which are permitted (upon
request and written approval) until 10.00pm and the potential
meteorological effects on noise propagation.

Acoustic Assessments of noise from Motor Sport Facilities shall
be conducted as outlined in Part C - Section 5.3.

Acoustic Assessment Report

An Acoustic Assessment Report prepared by a suitable qualified
acoustic consultant detailing compliance with the specified
acoustic criteria shall accompany the development application
submitted to Council for approval.
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5.4

The full Acoustic Assessment Report shall present as a
minimum the information listed in Appendix 1 of this policy.

Implementation of the Policy and Compliance

Council’s requirements for compliance certification of the
installed /implemented noise attenuation measures, as noted in
the recommendations of the acoustic report attached to the
relevant development consent, will be noted as a condition of
that consent.

The following is an example of such a condition

“Noise Attenuation Report Compliance - A report (from the
author of the approved Noise Attenuation Report/Independent
Auditor] that contains a certifying statement confirming that the
recommendations of the approved Noise Attenuation Report have
been implemented and are compliant must be submitted to the
Principal Certifying Authority for inclusion in any

(Occupation/ Subdivision) Certificate”.

The acoustic consultant must conduct sufficient inspections to
verify that all construction aspects of the noise aftenuation
components/measures are being carried out in accordance with
the approved report recommendations.

Should the acoustic consultant confirm that:

l.any specific construction aspect does not comply with the
report recommendations, or

2.that the constructed noise attenuation components/measures
do not achieve the criteria set by the approved report and this
policy,

the acoustic consultant must advise the applicant and the
Principal Certifying Authority of such non-compliance. The
applicant must arrange for the submission of an application
pursuant to 5,96 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act 1979 for the modification of the issued development consent
to the Consent Authority, Camden Council, for determination.
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6

Parks - Noise effects on Developments

6.1

6.2

General

Camden Council is responsible for regulating noise emissions
from the recreational use of parks (such as Onslow and
Kirkham Parks) which are used for sporting events, circuses,
and special events,

It is recognised that the use of these parks has the potential to
negatively impact on the amenity of surrounding residents with
respect to noise. Therefore it is important to consider the level of
noise impact when land in the vicinity of such parks is proposed
to be rezoned for residential development or similar sensitive
land-use.

The following guidelines for any assessment of noise from the
use of these Parks have been devised in order to minimise the
likelihood of disturbance to the surrounding community. In
some instances, however, where an event or activity is
determined by Council to be of particular social or cultural
benefit, more relaxed criteria may be applied to the use of the
site.

Guidelines

6.2.1 Parks

Where residential development is proposed on land that is likely
to be impacted by noise from the use of parks then an acoustic
assessment report is required.

During the daytime the following hours are:

Monday to Friday
Weekends and Public Holidays

7.00am to 6.00pm
8.00am to 6.00pm

For the above daytime hours the relevant intrusive noise level
(Laeq, 15 minues) should not exceed the background (Laso) plus 5
dB(A).

During night-time hours of 6.00pm and 10.00pm. the relevant
intrusive noise level (Laeq, 15 minmes) should not exceed the
background (Lsuo) plus 10 dB(A).

Noise shall be assessed at any proposed residential boundary
or, if that boundary is proposed to be more than 30 metres from
the residence, at the most affected point within 30 metres of the
residence.

Acoustic assessments of noise from the use of parks shall be
conducted as outlined in Part C - Section 6.3.
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Acoustic Assessment Report

An Acoustic Assessment Report prepared by a recognised
consultant in acoustics and detailing compliance with the
specified acoustic criteria shall accompany the development
application submitted to Council for approval.

The full Acoustic Assessment Report shall present as a
minimum the information listed in Appendix 4 of this policy.

Implementation of the Policy and Compliance

Council’s requirements for compliance certification of the
installed /implemented noise attenuation measures, as noted in
the recommendations of the acoustic report attached to the
relevant development consent, will be noted as a condition of
that consent.

The following is an example of such a condition:

“Noise Attenuation Report Compliance - A report (from the
author of the approved Noise Attenuation Report/Independent
Auditor) that contains a certifying statement confirming that the
recommendations of the approved Noise Attenuation Report have
been implemented and are compliant must be submitted to the
Principal Certifying Authority for inclusion in any

(Occupation/ Subdivision) Certificate”.

The acoustic consultant must conduct sufficient inspections to
verify that all construction aspects of the noise attenuation
components/measures are being carried out in accordance with
the approved report recommendations.

Should the acoustic consultant confirm that:

1. any specific construction aspect does not comply with the
report recommendations; or

2.that the constructed noise attenuation components/measures
do not achieve the criteria set by the approved report and this
policy;

the acoustic consultant must advise the applicant and the
Principal Certifying Authority of such non-compliance. The
applicant must arrange for the submission of an application
pursuant to s.96 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act 1979 for the modification of the issued development consent
to the Consent Authority, Camden Council, for determination.
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DEFINITIONS
A-weighted: Sece dB(A).

Adverse weather: Weather effects that enhance noise (that is, wind and
temperature inversions) that occur at a site for a significant period of
time (that is, wind occurring more than 30% of the time in any
assessment period in any season and/or temperature inversions
occurring more than 30% of the nights in winter).

Airborne rail traffic noise: is noise from the operation of a surface rail line
that is heard at, and within, noise-sensitive premises.

Ambient noise: The all-encompassing noise associated within a given
environment. It is the composite of sounds from many sources, both
near and far.

Amenity criteria: See Tables 4.1.3.1 and 4.1.3.2.

ANEF: Australian Noise Exposure Forecast (which relates to assessment
of Airport Noise).

Annoyance: The most common type of reaction felt by residents towards
traffic noise. The degree of annoyance felt by an individual may be
assessed using social survey techniques.

Arterial Road: Includes sub-arterial roads as well as freeways and refers to

roads handling through-traffic, with characteristically heavy and continuous
traffic flows during peak periods. Through-traffic is traffic passing through a
locality bound for another locality.

Background noise: The underlying level of noise present in the ambient
noise, excluding the noise source under investigation, when extraneous
noise is removed. This is described using the Lago descriptor.

Barrier-noise: Any natural or artificial physical barrier to the propagation of
noise (from a roadway), but generally referring to acoustically reflective or
absorbent fences, walls or mounds (or combinations thereof] constructed
beside a roadway.

Buffer: An area of land between a roadway and a noise-sensitive land use,
used as open space or for some other noise-tolerant land use.

Collector road: Refers to a road situated in a built-up area that collects local
traffic leaving a locality and connects to a sub-arterial road.

Compliance: The process of checking that source noise levels meet with the
noise limits in a statutory context.

Construction activities: Activities that are related to the establishment
phase of a development and that will occur on a site for only a limited period
of time.
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dB: Abbreviation for decibel — a unit of sound measurement. [t is equivalent
to 10 times the logarithm (to base 10) of the ratio of a given sound pressure to
a reference pressure.

dB(A): Unit used to measure ‘A-weighted’ sound pressure levels. A-weighting
is an adjustment made to sound-level measurement to approximate the
response of the human ear.

DEC: Department of Environment and Conservation (formerly EPA)

DECC: Department of Environment and Climate Change (formerly DEC and
EPA)

Environmental Noise Policy: Refers to this Policy.
EPA: Environment Protection Authority (now known as DECC).

Feasible and reasonable measures: Feasibility relates to engineering
considerations and what is practical to build; reasonableness relates to the
application of judgement in arriving at a decision, taking into account the
following factors:

- noise mitigation benefits (amount of noise reduction provided, number
of people protected)

- cost of mitigation (cost of mitigation versus benefit provided)
- community views (aesthetic impacts and community wishes)

- noise levels for affected land uses (existing and future levels, and
changes in noise levels).

Freeway: See Arterial Roads

Ground-borne noise: is defined as noise generated inside a building by
ground-borne vibration generated from pass-by of a vehicle on rail.

Guidelines for Environmental Noise: Refers to guidelines contained within
this Policy.

Habitable room: Any room (in a dwelling) other than a garage, storage
area, bathroom, laundry, toilet or pantry. Used in determining the audibility
of noise under the ‘Times of Use” sections of the POEO Noise Control
Regulation.

Heavy vehicle: A truck, transport or other vehicle with a gross vehicle
weight above a specified level (for example: over 8 tonnes).

Intrusive noise: Refers to noise that intrudes above the background level by
more than 5 decibels.

Lago: The A-weighted sound pressure level that is exceeded for 90 per cent of
the time over which a given sound is measured. This is considered to
represent the background noise,
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Laeqt The A-weighted equivalent continuous noise level — the level of noise
equivalent to the energv-average of noise levels occurring over a measurement
period. Note that in some cases the Leq contribution from a site to be
measured may not be directly measurable in the existing ambient
environment. In such cases the Leq from the site may be determined
indirectly (for example by a combination of measurements and calculations to
include only the noise from site). In all such cases the method of
determination of the Leq must be clearly explained and justified.

Laeqisnr: The Lao, noise level for the period 7 am to 10 pm.
Lacgions: The Lae, noise level for the period 10pm to 7am.

Laequns The Ls. noise level for a one-hour period. In the context Section 5 of
this policy it represents the highest tenth percentile hourly A-weighted L.
during the period 7 am to 10 pm, or 10 pm to 7 am (whichever is relevant). If
this cannot be defined accurately, use the highest A-weighted L., noise level.

Laeq1s minutes)t The Lao, noise level for a fifteen-minute period. In the context
of this policy it represents the typical worst-case fifteen-minute period.

Lamax @ For measurement purposes the L. means A-weighted maximum
Root Mean Square (RMS) sound pressure level measured over a one (1)
second interval.

Lemax @ For measurement purposes Lina.. means C-weighted maximum RMS
sound pressure level measured over a one (1) second interval.

Meteorological conditions: Wind and temperature-inversion conditions.

Most affected location(s): Locations that experience (or will experience) the
greatest noise impact from the noise source under consideration. In
determining these locations, one needs to consider existing background
levels, exact noise source location(s), distance from source (or proposed
source) to receiver, and any shielding between source and receiver.

Noise criteria: The general set of non-mandatory noise level targets for
protecting against intrusive noise (for example, background noise plus 5 dB)
and loss of amenity (for example, noise levels for various land uses).

Non-compliance: A development is deemed to be in non-compliance with its
noise consent/licence conditions if the monitored noise levels exceed its
statutory noise limit by more than 2 dB.

Offensive Noise: Noise:
(a) that, by reason of its level, nature, character or quality, or the time at
which it is made, or any other circumstances:

{i) is harmful to {or is likely to be harmful to) a person who
is outside the premises from which it is emitted, or
(ii) interferes unreasonably with, (or is likely to interfere

unreasonably with) the comfort or repose of a person
who is outside the premises from which it is emitted, or
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(b) that is of a level, nature, character or quality prescribed by the regulations
or that is made at a time, or in other circumstances, prescribed by the
regulations

Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997 (POEO Act) : An
Act that consolidates air, water, noise and waste requirements into a single
piece of legislation. The POEO Act repeals and replaces (among other Acts)
the Noise Control Act 1975. It contains the provisions for Noise Control
Notices, Prevention Notice, Compliance Cost Notice and Noise Abatement
Directions.

Prevailing Weather Conditions: Usual / common weather conditions at a
particular location as a particular time of year.

Receiver: The noise-sensitive land use at which noise from a development
can be heard.

Recreational Vehicle: A motor vehicle {which is a vehicle that is built to be
propelled by a motor that forms part of the wvehicle) that is used for
recreational purposes.

RTA: Roads and Traffic Authority.

Scheduled Activity: Means an activity listed in Schedule 1 of the Protection
of the Environment Operations Act 1997.

Sleep disturbance: Awakenings and disturbance to sleep stages.

Sound pressure level: The level of noise, usually expressed in dB(A), as
measured by a standard sound level meter with a pressure microphone. The
sound pressure level in dB(A) gives a close indication of the subjective
loudness of the noise.

Suitably Qualified Acoustic Consultant: a member of the Australian
Acoustical Society, the Institute of Engineers, the Association of Australian
Acoustical Consultants or a person with appropriate professional
qualifications.

Temperature inversion: An atmospheric condition in which temperature
increases with height above the ground.

Traffic noise: The total noise resulting from road traffic, including both light
and heavy vehicles, steady and intermittent traffic flow and specific events
such as the use of engine brakes.
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APPENDIX 1 - Industrial and Commercial Development

The full Acoustic Assessment Report shall present the following
information:

A description of the industrial/ commercial development
outlining the major noise sources involved in operations on
which the assessment of noise impact is based.

The times of operation of the development.

A description of the area and surrounding land uses and
details of nearest potentially affected received locations.

A site plan showing distances between plant and potentially
affected receiver locations and detailing intervening
topography that may affect noise propagation.

Plans and clevations of building layouts and any enclosures
of noise sources. Descriptions of building construction and
means of ventilation should be included.

Details of existing background levels during the proposed
times of operation and the means by which these levels were
obtained.

Details of any control measures incorporated into the
development to mitigate noise emissions that includes Noise
Management Plans.

Noise level data for all major noise sources, cither as the
sound pressure level at a specified distance or the sound
power level in A-weighted decibels and preferably octave band
levels.

A description of the method used to determine the L., noise
level emission.

The predicted L., cumulative dBA level at the potentially
sensitive received locations considered.

A comparison of the predicted Ly, noise level emissions {rom
industry with the relevant design criteria at each potentially
sensitive receiver location considered.

Any other significant or relevant acoustic information
concerning the project.

A Statement of Opinion confirming compliance with the
acoustic assessment criteria requirements and detailing anyv
mitigation measures required in order to achieve the required
criteria.

Note: Council reserves the right to refer any acoustic report

for an independent review by an independent acoustic
consultant.
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Appendix 2 - Road Traffic Noise
The Acoustic Report shall present the following information:

e Details of ftraffic generation during operation of the
development;

e Details of times of significant traffic generation and hours of
operation of heavy vehicles;

e Details of the prediction method used to calculate the noise
level generated by road traffic;

¢ The predicted levels of road traffic noise at potentially
sensitive received locations with and without the
development;

e Details of the predicted future traffic flow increases expected
over the next 10 year period.

e A statement of opinion regarding compliance with the
acoustic assessment criteria requirements and detailing any
mitigating measures required in order to achieve the required
criteria that includes, where appropriate, noise and traffic
management plans.

Note: Council reserves the right to refer any acoustic report
for an independent review by an independent acoustic
consultant.
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Appendix 3 - Rail Noise Assessments
The Acoustic Report shall present the following information:

¢ A site plan showing the location of the proposed development
in relation to the railway, annotated with relevant
dimensions.

* A site plan showing the location of any measurements used
in the assessment,

* Discussion of the characteristics of the site and proposed
developments that is relevant in respect of noise and
vibration propagation such as cuttings, embankments,
ground type, structural design and building layout.

o Discussion of the relevant characteristics of railway activities,
including reference to special characteristics such as curve
squeal, wagon bunching or powering/braking on gradient.
Consideration of daytime and nighttime activities.
Consideration of future railway proposals.

e Details of the calculation methodologies used in the
assessment and the results.

e A statement of opinion regarding compliance with the
acoustic assessment criteria requirements and detailing any
mitigating measures required in order to achieve the required
criteria.

Note: Council reserves the right to refer any acoustic report
for an independent review by an independent acoustic
consultant.
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Appendix 4 - Licensed Premises

The full Acoustic Assessment Report shall present the following
information:

A description of the development outlining the major noise
sources involved in operations on which the assessment of
noise impact is based.

The times of operation of the development.

A description of the area and surrounding land uses and
details of nearest potentially affected receiver locations.

A site plan showing distances between noise sources and
potentially affected received locations and detailing
intervening topography which may affect noise propagation.
Plans and elevations of building layouts and any enclosures
of noise sources. Descriptions of building construction and
means of ventilation should be included.

Details of existing background levels during the proposed
times of operation and the means by which these levels were
obtained.

Details of any control measures incorporated into the
development to mitigate noise emissions,

Noise level data for all major noise sources, either as the
sound pressure level at a specified distance or the sound
power level in A-weighted decibels and preferably octave
band levels.

A description of the method used to determine the noise
levels emission

The predicted L., cumulative dB(A) level at the potentially
sensitive received locations considered.

A comparison of the predicted La., noise level emissions from
the development with the relevant design criteria at each
potentially sensitive received location considered.

A comparison of predicted noise level emissions from the
development with the Liquor Administration Board (LAB)
noise at each potentially sensitive receiver location.

Details of ingress and egress arrangements in use after
10.00pm. In addition, the applicant shall supply a
statement detailing the means by which noise associated
with patron arrival and departure is proposed to be
controlled.

Any other significant or relevant acoustic information
concerning the project.

A Statement of Opinion confirming compliance with the
acoustic assessment criteria requirements and detailing any
mitigation measures required in order to achieve the
required criteria.

Note: Council reserves the right to refer any acoustic

report for an independent review by an independent
acoustic consultant.
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Environmental Noise Policy

Appendix 5 - Community Noise and Outdoor Facilities

The full Acoustic Assessment Report shall present the following
information:

A description of the development outlining the major noise
sources involved in operations on which the assessment of
noise impact is based.

The times of operation of the development.

A description of the area and surrounding land uses and
details of nearest potentially affected receiver locations.

A site plan showing distances to potentially affected received
locations and detailing intervening topography which my
affect noise propagation.

Plans and elevations of building layouts and any enclosures
of noise sources. Descriptions of building construction and
means of ventilation should be included.

Details of existing background levels during the proposed
times of operation and the means by which these levels were
obtained.

Details of any confrol measures incorporated into the
development to mitigate noise emissions,

Noise level data for all major noise sources, either as the
sound pressure level at a specified distance or the sound
power level in A-weighted decibels and preferably octave
band levels.

A description of the method used to determine the La., noise
level emission.

The predicted Ls., cumulative dBA level at the potentially
sensitive receiver locations considered.

A comparison of the predicted La., noise level emissions from
the development with the relevant design criteria at each
potentially sensitive receiver location considered.

In the case of multipurpose halls, clubs, pubs, restaurants
and the like, details of access and egress arrangements in
use after 10.00 pm. In addition, the applicant shall supply a
statement detailing the means by which noise associated
with patron arrival and departure is proposed to be
controlled.

Any other significant or relevant acoustic information
concerning the project.

A Statement of Opinion confirming compliance with the
acoustic assessment criteria requirements and detailing any
mitigation measures required in order to achieve the
required criteria.

Note: Council reserves the right to refer any acoustic report

for an independent review by an independent acoustic
consultant.
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Submission

Submission to the Department of Planning and Environment - Site
Compatibility Certificate for 347 Narellan Road Currans Hill

Planning Considerations

Council officers have undertaken a review of the information provided by the
Department of Planning and Environment (DPE) and have identified the same issues
as those identified in the previous Site Compatibility Certificate (SCC) and provide an
update on their current status.

Traffic

Council's previous submission to DPE outlined concerns with regards to the existing
internal access road having sufficient capacity for additional residential purposes. The
internal road is accessed via fraffic lights at Narellan Road and currently experiences
queuing inside the site at peak times.

Given the queuing at peak times the submission also identified concerns regarding the
ability of emergency vehicles to access the site during peak times.

Future DAs for the seniors living development would need to clearly demonstrate
that the existing road network has capacity for the proposed use and would not
unfairly impact on existing uses on the site, and can provide for emergency vehicle
access during peak traffic periods.

Bulk and Scale of Proposal

The proposal as contained within the application for the SCC proposes 1 large
building with 6 wings and a height of 2 storeys across the proposal.

The subject site is located on the eastemn side of Currans Hill with a large portion of
single storey residential housing, and to the north of an existing Seniors Housing
development (359 Narellan Road) which consists of a number of 1 and 2 storey
buildings.

Council's previous submission to DPE outlined concemns with regards to the bulk and
scale of the proposal and recommended that the design of the propesed RCF building
be articulated or broken up to reduce the bulk of the proposal and improve its
integration with the surrounding development.

To address Council's concerns on the bulk and scale of the proposal, it is
recommended the DPE impose the same condition as issued on the previous SCC
requiring the building design to not exceed two storeys in height above natural
ground level.

Visual Impacts and Heritage Considerations

The site is located to the west of Kenny Hill, a significant compoenent of the Scenic
Hills landscape.

Council's previous submission to DPE identified potential concerns with regard to the
impact of a larger building mass impacting on the Kenny Hill view corridor. The
submission also noted that the proposal is adjacent to the state heritage listed
Sydney Water upper canal.
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Submission

The Camden Development Control Plan 2011 (Camden DCP 2011) contains specific
controls relating to development adjacent to the Sydney Water upper canal and
these should be considered as part of any future development.

It is recommended that Sydney Water and the Office of Environment and Heritage
(OEH) be consulted prior to determination of the SCC application.

Transmission Easement

The site is adjacent to a Transgrid electrical transmission easement measuring
approximately 60m wide. The proposal intends to have car parking and vehicuiar
access located within the easement.

The proposal is also for the main RCF building to abut the Transgrid easement
Council's previous submission to DPE recommended that the application be referred

to Transgrid for comments with regards to activities within the easement prior to
determination of the SCC.

It is recommended the DPE impose the same condition as issued on the previous
SCC, requiring future detailed design to demonstrate compliance with Transarid
guidelines for development within a transmission easement.

Drainage and Flooding

Council's flood information identifies that the site is affected by flooding from a
watercourse and is subject to flood related planning controls,

The proposed development is classified as critical utilities and public infrastructure
under Council's Flood Risk Management Policy

Council's previous submission to the DPE outlined that any proposal for the site will
need to demonstrate compliance with all controls for this classification. This will
include the provision of an evacuation plan up to the Probable Maximum Flood
(PMF) fiood event.

Social Impacts

Council officer assessment of the previous SCC outlined that the forecast for the
Camden Local Government Area (LGA) is for a further increase in the ageing
population. Therefore, Camden will continue to have a demand for accommodation
for aged care and people with disabilities.

The proposed addition of 150 beds within a 24 hour care RCF and 10 additional
serviced self-care units within the Camden LGA would provide a social benefit to the
local community.
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ORDO5

Attachment 2

)

ORDINARY COUNCIL
ORDO04

SUBJECT: RESPONSE TO THE APPLICATION FOR A SITE COMPATIBILITY
CERTIFICATE AT 347 NARELLAN ROAD, CURRANS HILL

FROM: Director Planning & Environmental Services

TRIM #: 14/146226

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to advise Council of the application for a Site Compatibility
Certificate (SCC) under the SEPP (Housing for Seniors and People with a Disability),
2004, (SEPP Seniors) at 347 Narellan Road, Currans Hill, and to seek Council's
resolution to forward a submission to the Department of Planning and Environment in
response to the application. A draft submission is provided as Attachment 1 to this
report.

BACKGROUND

On 3 October, 2013 Council received an application from Precise Planning to rezone
Part Lot 2 of DP 1019708 at 347 Narelilan Road from RU2 Rural Landscape to R2 Low
Density Residential for the purpose of a seniors housing development on the land.

During consideration of the rezoning application Council officers raised with the
applicant other mechanisms available to them to permit seniors housing without
rezoning the land to R2 Low Density Residential.

Mechanisms such as a SCC provide Council and the community with increased
certainty as to the final use of the site. The planning proposal was subsequently put on
hold whilst the proponent considered other opportunities.

On the 268" August 2014, the Department of Planning and Environment received an
application from Precise Planning on behalf of the landowners for a SCC to permit a
150 bed Residential Care Facility and 10 Serviced Self-Care Housing units on the
subject land. A site plan is provided as Attachment 2 to this report.

The Department of Planning and Environment has invited Council to provide comment
on the SCC application. Council was provided 21 days to provide comment (due 16
September 2014). The Department has been provided a copy of Council's Business
Paper and advised that Council will be considering the matter at this Council meeting.

This is the report submitted to the Ordinary Council held on 23 September 2014 - Page 1

Attachments for the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 24 October 2017 - Page 190



Attachment 2 Response Site Compatibility Certificate at 347 Narellan Road, Ordinary Council - 23
September 2014

Figure 1 - Location of the Subject Site - Lot 2 of DP 1019708 — 347 Narellan Road,
Currans Hill

MAIN REPORT

Site Compatibility Certificate (SCC)

The SCC as contained within the Seniors SEPP is a mechanism to permit seniors
housing in locations where it is not permissible in the zone under the Local
Environmental Plan (LEP).

A SCC is not a development approval it merely permits the use and overrides Council's
LEP. A subsequent development application will need to be lodged for the proposal,
and considered by Council as per the standard development approval process.

An application for a SCC is not publicly exhibited prior to a determination. Should the
SCC be issued, public exhibition would occur at the development application stage.
Community comments would then be considered as part of the DA process by the
relevant consent authority. Initial estimates of the cost of works for the proposal are

This is the report submitted to the Ordinary Council held on 23 September 2014 - Page 2
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Response Site Compatibility Certificate at 347 Narellan Road, Ordinary Council - 23
September 2014

N

=)

$22million which would require the proposal to be approved by the Joint Regional
Planning Panel (JRPP).

The Proposal

The application for a SCC at 347 Narellan Road proposes a 150 bed Residential Care
Facility (RCF) and 10 serviced self care housing units.

A Residential Care Facility (RCF) is defined as residential accommodation for seniors
or people with a disability that includes:
(a) meals and cleaning services, and
(b) personal care or nursing care, or both, and
(c) appropriate staffing, furniture, furnishings and equipment for the provision of that
accommodation and care, not being a dwelling, hostel, hospital or psychiatric
facility.

Serviced self care housing units are defined as - seniors housing that consists of
self-contained dwellings where the following services are available on the site. meals,
cleaning services, personal care, nursing care.

The proposal identifies varying levels of 24 hour care to 150 residents who are no
longer independent.

It is proposed that the RCF be contained within a 2 storey building with 6 wings. Each
wing will accommodate approximately 25 residents in single and double rooms, with
dining and catering services in each wing.

The serviced self care housing is proposed to be single storey semi-detached “villa"
style accommodation.

Planning Considerations

Council officers have undertaken a review of the information provided by the
Department of Planning and Envirenment and have identified the following issues.

Traffic

The site is accessed via traffic lights at Narellan Road. The access road is a narrow
private road that services the existing seniors living at 359 Narellan Road, the school
and the C3 Church.

Council has previously expressed concerns with regards to the existing road having
sufficient capacity for additional residential purposes. The access road is a private road
and currently experiences queuing inside the site at peak times.

Given the queuing at peak times Council’s traffic officers have also identified concemns
regarding the ability of emergency vehicles to access the site during peak times.

Future proposals will need to demonstrate that the existing road network has capacity
for the proposed use and will not unfairly impact on existing uses on the site, and can
provide for emergency vehicle access during peak traffic perieds.

This is the report submitted to the Ordinary Council held on 23 September 2014 - Page 3
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Bulk and Scale of Proposal

The proposal as contained within the application for the SCC proposes 1 large building
with & wings and a height of 2 storeys across the proposal.

Whilst only limited information has been provided, the bulk and scale of the proposal is
of concern to Council officers. The site is located to the east of Currans Hill which
contains largely detached housing forms (many single storey) and to the north of an
existing approved seniors housing development (359 Narellan Road) which consists of
a number of 1 and 2 storey buildings.

It is recommended that the design of the proposed RCF building be articulated or
broken up to reduce the bulk of the proposal and improve its integration with the
surrounding development.

Visual Impacts and Heritage Considerations

The site is located to the west of Kenny Hill, a significant component of the scenic hills
landscape. Council officers have identified potential concerns with regard to the impact
of a larger building mass impacting on the Kenny Hill view corridor.

In addition to the visual impacts it is also noted that the proposal is adjacent to the
State Heritage Listed Sydney Water Upper Canal.

The Camden DCP 2010 contains specific controls relating to development adjacent to
the Sydney Water Upper Canal and these should be considered as part of any future
development.

It is also recommended that Heritage NSW be consulted prior to determination of the
SCC application due to the proximity of the State Heritage Item.

Transmission Easement

The site is adjacent to a large transmission easement measuring 60.96m wide. It is
noted from the information referred to Council that it is proposed to have car parking
and vehicular access located within the easement.

The proposal also proposes the main RCF building to abut the Transgrid easement.

It is recommended that the application be referred to Transgrid for comments with
regards to activities within the easement prior to determination of the SCC,

Drainage and Floeding

Council’'s flooed information identifies that the site is affected by flooding from a
watercourse and is subject to flood related planning controls.

The proposed development is classified as critical utilities and public infrastructure
under Council's Flood Risk Management Policy. Development on this site will need to
demonstrate compliance with all controls for this classification. This will include the
provision of an evacuation plan up to the PMF flood event.
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Response Site Compatibility Certificate at 347 Narellan Road, Ordinary Council - 23
September 2014

t ey 15
Social Impacts

The forecast for the Camden LGA is for a further increase in the ageing population. As
such, Camden will continue to have a demand for accommodation for aged care and
people with disabilities.

The proposed addition of 150 beds within a 24 hour care RCF and 10 additional
serviced self care units within the Camden LGA would provide a social benefit to the
local community.

Consistency with the Seniors SEPP

Council officers have considered the proposal in accordance with clause 25 (5)(b) of
the SEPP. In principle the proposal appears to meet these requirements however,
further information is required to demonstrate full compliance with the following:

Potential Site Contamination — Compliance with SEPP 55;

Heritage Impact Statement — Impact on the Sydney Upper Water Canal,
Demonstrated compliance with Clause 26; and

Detailed traffic impact statement and modeling demonstrating road capacity
and impact on existing development.

A detailed analysis of this clause is included as part of Attachment 1 to this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications to Council as a result of this report.
CONCLUSION

The application for a site compatibility certificate to permit a 150 bed residential care
facility and 10 units of serviced self care housing under the Seniors SEPP appears to
be consistent with the requirements of the SEPP.

Council officers consider that the proposal has planning merit and in principle support
seniors housing on the site, subject to detailed design and planning that addresses
Council's concerns as outlined in this report and within the attached submission.

RECOMMENDED

That Council:

i. endorse the submission to be forwarded to the Department of Planning and
Environment for consideration.

Resolution: Moved Councillor Dewbery, Seconded Councillor Sidgreaves, that Council
endorse the submission to be forwarded to the Department of Planning and
Environment for consideration,

ORD190/14 THE MOTION ON BEING PUT WAS CARRIED
(Councillors Sidgreaves, Copeland, Warren, Symkowiak, Fischer, Dewbery, Fedeli and
Bligh voted in favour of the Motion. Councillor Campbell voted against the Motion.)

ATTACHMENTS
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1. Attachment Draft Submission to the Department of Planning and Environment
Site Compatibility Certificate
2. Attachment 2 Amendment 31 - Site Plan
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l‘c

AN: |

Sy | Planning &
ﬁs,)!“v Environment

Office of the Secretary

Mr Ron Moore Our ref: 14/18577
General Manager
Camden Council
PO Box 183 =t
Camden NSW 2570 Received MU,

-7 0CT 20%
Soungit

Attention: Mr llyas Karaman

Dear Mr Moore

Determination of an application for a site compatibility certificate for land located at
347 Narellan Road, Currans Hill - SEPP (Housing for Seniors and People with a
Disability) 2004

| refer to the above application for a site compatibility certificate for the above site at
Currans Hill. | have considered Council's comments in my assessment of this application
and thank you for providing these comments.

| have determined the application under clause 25(4)(a) of State Environmental Planning
Policy (Housing for Seniors or People with a Disability) 2004 by issuing a site compatibility
certificate subject to satisfaction of certain requirements in the cerlificate (clause 25(7)). |
have attached a copy of the Certificate of Site Compatibility.

If you have any questions in relation to this matter, please contact Ms Rachel Cumming,
Director, Metropolitan (Parramatta), at the Department on (02) 9860 1174,

Yours sincerely

A

Carolyn McNally
Secretary 2a-9 /5

Encl: Site Compatibility Certificate
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Previous Certificate of Site Compatibility

Q‘O

v v

()4 :

N!S‘W Planning &

soemeess: | ENIVIFONMENt

State Environmental Planning Policy (Housing for Seniors of People with a Disability)

2004
Certificate of Site Compatibility

I, the Secretary of the Department of Planning and Environment, pursuant to clause
25(4)(a) of the State Environmental Planning Policy (Housing for Seniors or People with a
Disability) 2004, determine the application made by Precise Planning on 21 August 2014
by issuing this certificate.

| certify that in my opinion:
- the site described in Schedule 1 is suitable for more intensive development; and

- the development described in Schedule 1 is compatible with the surrounding
environment, having had regard to the criteria specified in clause 25(5)(b).

Under clause 25(7), this certificate is only valid in relation to development that satisfies the
requirements specified in Schedule 2 of this certificate.

e

Carolyn McNally
Secretary
Department of Planning and Environment

Date certificate issued: 2 ¥ -9 /7

Please note: This certificate will remain current for 24 months from the date of issue.

SCHEDULE 1

Site description:
The site is located at 347 Narellan Road, Currans Hill (Lot 2 DP 1019708), within the
Camden Local Government Area.

Project description:

The proposal is for a development of a two-storey building for residential care facility and
associated serviced self-care semi-detached houses, including a community park,
ambulance bay and associated car parking.
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SCHEDULE 2

Application made by:
Precise Planning, 152 Sailors Bay Road, Northbridge NSW 2063,

Requirements imposed on determination:

1. The building design should not exceed two storeys in height above natural ground
level,

2. Future detailed designs must demonstrate compliance with Transgrid guidelines for
development within a transmission easement.
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Planning | Development | Management

18 August 2017
Our Ref: 1284

The Secretary

Department of Planning & Environment
GPO Box 39

SYDNEY NSW 2001

Dear Madam
Site Compatibility Certificate (ref 14/18577)
347 Narellan Road Currans Hill (Lot 2 DP 1019708)

| refer to the above matter and now enclose;

+« Completed SCC application form

» Owner's consent letter

* Report to accompany SCC application

« Cheque In favour of DPE in the amount of $5,580
* USB containing the files

The above comprise an application for an SCC pursuant to the provision of State
Environmental Planning Policy (Housing for Seniors or People with a Disability) 2004 (‘SEPP
(Seniors Housing)').

Please note that DPE issued a Site Compatibllity Certificate (‘'SCC') in relation to the above
described site on 28 September 2015, However, this orginal SCC Is approaching expiry and
there is no mechanism avallable to extend the validity of a SCC. Therefore, this new
application is for a new SCC, to replace the original SCC.

| look forward to your favourable response to this application.

Yours faithfully
PRECISE P IN

L

-

e

Jeff Bulfin

P: (02) 9667 0500

E: jefi@deaptver.com au

W: peeciseplanming. com ay

A 152 Sadors Bay Road Norhbridge NSW 2083
P: PO Box 426 Nedhbridge NSW 1550
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Application for Site Compatibility Certificate

SEPP (HOUSING FOR SENIORS OR
‘ PEOPLE WITH A DISABILITY) 2004
. DIRECTOR-GENERAL'S
NSW | Planning SITE COMPATIBILITY CERTIFICATE
APPLICATION
Datereceived: ___ /  / Site compatibility application no

LODGEMENT =~ —= = o= — - - = — ——————
Instructions to users

This application form is to be completed if you wish to apply to the Director-General of the Department of
Planning for a site compatibility certificate under Chapter 3, Part 1A of State Environmental Planning Policy
{Housing for Seniors or People with a Disability) 2004 (the SEPP).

A site compatibility certificate is required under section 50(2A) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Regulation 2000 to accompany development applications for certain proposed developments under the SEPP.
The types of development applications to which the Regulation applies are listed in clause 24 of the SEPP.

Before lodging this application, it is recommended that you consult with the Department of Planning conceming
your development proposal, including whether a site compatibility certificate is required and what application
fee will apply.

To ensure that your application is accepted, you NB: The Department of Planning may request further

must; information if your application is incomplete or
« complete all parts of this form, and inadequate.
= submit all relevant information required by
this form, and All applications must be lodged with the Director-
« provide 3 copies of this form and attached General, by courier or mail. Applications can be lodged
documentation, with the relevant regional office of the NSW Department
= provide form and documentation in of Planning. Please refer to www.planning.nsw.gov.au
electronic format (e.g. CD-ROM). for contact details.
PART A— 4 . e &
Canpmyfwglnl‘mww WV : . - - N
Precis se P lanmnq . |
O COOMe Clms Cor  [ClOter : |
First name Family name
J <‘R: | | Bulfia !
Strest name
Steat addrens |5Z | Sailevs Ba'i 2-0«:1 ]
Suburb or fown
NN‘“«‘M deg | "LS‘J =) 2063 Gl
Postsl address POBoxewBay  * | Suburb or town
[ e ln.b | 'memaﬂe. ]
; . Daytime telephone Fax
NS l lSéo | 0415225732 |
Email Mobile
\lf‘(@ Au?rw.d Lo . AU | 0‘1!61:251";1 |
"5'7-7:","' -4',"':: D DEVELOPMENT D =TAILS - == .

et A P— > n A 4 —_ - -

Identify the land you propose to develop and for whleh you seek the Director-General's site compatibility certificate,
NAME OF PROPOSAL

(" C/Wolf\ MY Aanan

STRE&;A:?&RESS
i 3‘11bcu 'nwmw ‘Loacl |
fown or locallty ocal govermnment area
t;frans thit I 7591 | CAMDE!Q ]
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NSW DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING SEPP (HOUSING FOR SENIORS OR PEOPLE WITH A DISABILITY) 2004

DIRECTOR-GENERAL'S SITE COMPATIBILITY CERTIFICATE APPLICATION

NAME OF PROPERTY -l )
C% Chaunrdn M Anan ]
REAL PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Llat2 DP (014708

[E) Attach—map and etailed description o land. L&‘N "'b M A Aocum4 by Precise

Note: The real property description s found on a map of the land or on the fitle documents for the fand. If you

oflega

ol the real property description, you should contact the Department of Lands, Please ensure that you place a slash (/) to
distinguish between the lot, section, DP and strata numbers. II the proposal applies to more than one piece of land,

please use a comma to distinguish between each real property description.

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT (as it is to appear on the Director-Ganeral's certificats) Refer to the

proposed site layout by fitle or drawing number 1o enable referance in the certificate.

" drawing o) the ‘
" Resdahal Cace Faciliby (156 bads)
- Seriwdd | sc\f— tove olwwu-'ngi (@

T |

SIS TENCY V)

Anmrﬂ:efoﬂoﬁngqusﬂomtoidonﬁfywheﬁerlhoSEPPapplmbmolmdywpmpoeebdevdop.

Bkhmmmmmnedpﬂmniybrummmow? ] Yes

1.2, Is the subject site land adjoining land zoned primarily for urban pumposes? Q{u

Alnch—copyotzoringamoromotevidanoedzom\g.

I you have answered no to both questions 1.1 and 1.2, then the SEPP does not apply to the land and a site
compatibility certificate will not be issued.
1.3. Are dwelling houses, residential fiat buildings, hospitals or special uses permitted on the site? B(es‘

% Attach—copy of development control table.
OR
1.4, Is the fand being used for the purposes of an existing registerad club? [ Yes

llyouhavomsworadnotnboﬂmqueaﬂons1.3and1.4.menmaSEPPdoesnotwplytomclandandaaib
compatibility certificate will not be issued.

1.5. Is the subject site excluded from the application of the SEPP under clause 4(8}—Land o which Policy does not

* Environmentally sensitive land (Schedule 1), O Yes
* Land that is zoned for industrial purposes (except Warringah LGA). [ Yes
* Land in Waringah LGA located in localities identified in clause 4(6)(c) of the SEPP. [ Yes
* Land to which Sydney Regional Environmental Plan No. 17—Kumedl Peninsula (1989) applies. O Yes

@

I Ne

I No

co

=y
i

Ifyouhmamwerodyutoanysubucﬂonlnqueeﬁom.s.nunmeSEPPdoesnotapmylomehMmdaaite

compatibility certificate will not be issued.

[ﬁcnou B1 — SUMMARY CHECK
Continue to fill aut this application form only if you have answered:
o
to questions 1.1 gall 1 2, and

to questions 1.3 apd'1 .4, and
1o all subsections in question 1.5,

I you have safisfied the Summary Check—proceed to Section B2.
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[_secnou B2 — SUMMARY CHECK

NSW DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING SEPP (HOUSING FOR SENIORS OR PEOPLE WITH A DISABILITY) 2004
DIRECTOR-GENERAL'S SITE COMPATIBILITY CERTIFICATE APPLICATION

Identify the reason why you need to apply for a Director-General’s sile compatibility certificate.

2.1. Is the proposed davelopment for the purpose of seniors housing permissible with consentonthe  [] Yes B/No
land under the zoning of an anvironmental planning Instrument? (Sea clausa 24 [1A])

2.2. Is the proposed development staged development of a kind saved under the savings provisions of [ Yes B’ﬁo
the SEPP? (See dlause 53.)

It you have answered YES to either question 2.1 or question 2.2 your proposal does not require a site compatibility
certificate. You can submit your application directly to the relevant local council.
2.3. A site compatibility certificate is required because: (see clause 24{1])
* the land adjoins land zoned primarily for urban purposes I%as[]
= the land is within a zone that is identified as ‘special uses’ (other than land on which hospitals [ Yes [ANo

are permitted) :

» the land is used for the purposes of an existing registered club Dv«g/z

= the proposed development appiication involves buildings having a floor space ratio that would [ Yes
require the consent authority fo grant consent under clause 45.

If you have answered NO to all subsections in question 2.3, your proposal does not require a site compatibility certificate.

to fill out the application form only if you have answered:

10 both question 2.1 and question 2.2, and
@35 to any subsection in questicn 2.3 above.

If you have satisfied the Summary Check—proceed to Section B3.

PES OF SENIORS HOUSING u o

Does the proposed devalopment include any ol the following?
uyu.pbmm.mmwuw the number of beds or dwellings that are proposed

A residential care facility esCINoe  [[56 | Beds
*  Ahostel OYesOONo [ | Dwelings
o Infil self rban only and ¥, No

wmwomu(u only OYesd : Dwaellings
. S«vle.dulmhomho [&FYes (I No [Jo_] Dweliings
« A combination of these a@nm (150 ] Beds [ _jo ] Owalings

It you answered yes 10 serviced saif-care housing—proceed to Section B4. Otherwise—proceed to Part C,

development
purposes, will tha housing be provided:
* for people with a disability? OvYes [36
»  in combination with a residential care facility? @fes [No
*  asa retirement village within the meaning of the Retirement Villages Act 19997 Dves [3(

It you answered no to all questions in Section B4, It is unlikely that the proposal wil satisty the coundil when you submit a
development application {see clause 17[2] of the SEPF) and also unlikaly that a site compatibility certificate would be fssued.
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NSW DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING SEPP (HOUSING FOR SENIORS OR PEOPLE WITH A DISABILITY) 2004
DIRECTOR-GENERAL'S SITE COMPATIBILITY CERTIFICATE APPLICATION

2. THE IMPACT THAT THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT IS LIKELY TO HAVE ON THE USES THAT ARE LIKELY
TO BE THE FUTURE USES OF THE LAND IN THE VICINITY OF THE DEVELOPMENT.

ﬂe(,-./ }» 6.% o fefw‘( bv’ Precisve p\an/\c'na

3, THE SERVICES AND INFRASTRUCTURE THAT ARE OR WILL BE AVAILABLE TO MEET THE DEMANDS
ARISING FROM THE DEVELOPMENT (PARTICULARLY, RETAIL, COMMUNITY, MEDICAL, AND TRANSPORT
SERVICES HAVING REGARD TO THE LOCATION AND ACCESS REQUIREMENTS SET OUT IN CLAUSE 26
OF THE SEPP) AND ANY PROPOSED FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS FOR INFRASTRUCTURE PROVISION,

Ql‘—'v » .3 0*» flfw—’ bv' Precise Ple}iﬁ

4, IN THE CASE OF APPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO LAND THAT IS ZONED OPEN SPACE OR SPECIAL
USES—THE IMPACT THAT THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT IS LIKELY TO HAVE ON THE PROVISION OF
LAND FOR OPEN SPACE OR SPECIAL USES IN THE VICINITY OF THE DEVELOPMENT.

L*"—‘V +o Iﬂ»fﬂ-‘ bv, pfzuiz P‘MA;/D 5.3

5. WITHOUT LIMITING ANY OTHER CRITERIA, THE IMPACT THAT THE BULK, SCALE, BUILT FORM AND
CHARACTER OF THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT IS LIKELY TO HAVE ON THE EXISTING USES,
APPROVED USES AND FUTURE USES OF LAND IN THE VICINITY OF THE DEVELOPMENT.

QL.'«/ % S v{r rp,rw-{ Io.,, Precise p’anmhj

6. |F THE DEVELOPMENT MAY INVOLVE THE CLEARING OF NATIVE VEGETATION THAT IS SUBJECT TO THE
REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 12 OF THE NATIVE VEGETATION ACT 2003—THE IMPACT THAT THE
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT IS LIKELY TO HAVE ON THE CONSERVATION AND MANAGEMENT OF NATIVE
VEGETATION (NB: THIS CRITERIA DOES NOT APPLY TO LAND IN URBAN LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREAS
OR URBAN ZONES LISTED UNDER SCHEDULE 1 OF THE NATIVE VEGETATION ACT 2003).

Q"“{'q b 5% 4 fﬁow" l;», Precise p(um\mj

e~ - =y —— e e e — e
3 ADDITIONALCOMMENTS
WY PRSP § IRFT RN NARF TR INT RS Y S =
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NSW DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING SEPP (HOUSING FOR SENIORS OR PEOPLE WITH A DISABILITY) 2004
DIRECTOR-GENERAL'S SITE COMPATIBILITY CERTIFICATE APPLICATION

Please check that you have provided all the information required for your application.
| have completed ail sections of this application form.

5

es [INo

A

| have attached supporting information. If yes, please check boxes below, as refevant. O Ne
Map and detailed description of land

A copy of proposed site layout

A copy of zoning extract or other evidence

A copy of development control table

Proposal information—context, proposal and strategic justification

Additional information for statements against site compatibility criteria (optional)

| have addressed the following SEPP site compatibility matters in section C2 of the form.

Existing environment and approved uses
Impact on luture uses
Avaitability of services and infrastructure

Impact on open space and special uses provision

Impact of the bulk and scale of the proposal

Impact on conservation and management of native vegetation

| have provided three hard copies of this form and all relevant supporting information O No

| have provided the application form and supporting information in elecironic format O No
| have enclosed the application fee (see below for details) es [INo

PORRP -

(¥

g\iﬁ{?\ Rﬂﬁlﬁ'@i’? Q\QQQQQ?

IRSARPLICATIONEEE —-~ o oo === oo = Ao o - = —a=——r

You are required to pay a fee for the assessment of an application for the Director General's certificate for site compatibly.
This fee is based on the estimated number of beds of the SEPP Seniors Housing Facility. The Department may require
that you pay a proportion of the total fee with this application, You should consult with the Department before lodging this
application to determine the proportion to be paid. The maximum fee payable is $5580

Numberoibedsordwallhos

bide 3 10 dwdluas |
i

ICA

By signing below, l/we hereby:

= apply, subject to satisfying the relevant requirements under State Environmental Planning Policy ((Housing for Seniors
or Persons with a Disability) 2004 for a Director-General's site compatibility application pursuant to clause 50(2A) of
the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000

* provide a description of the proposed seniors housing development and address all matters required by the Director-
General pursuant to clause 25(5)(b) of the State Environmental Planning Policy (Housing for Seniors or Persons with a

Disability}
= declare that on contained within this application is accurate at the time of signing.
Signatutos) s In what capacity are you signing it
| 2l O 223725 S 7,7 s
7

A BM\R; _] ?E——V%fﬁfgi————

As the owner(s) of the land for which the proposed seniors’ housing development is located and in signing below, I'we
hereby agree to the lodgement of an application for a Director-General's site compatibility certificate.

e Laciatm |

Name ' = Nama - =
Date l
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—————————e

®
hurch

-

18 August, 2013

Director General

Dept Planning & Infrastructure
GPO BOX 38
SYDNEY NSW 2001

Dear Sic’Madam,
RE:  Site Compatibility Certificate Application
347 Narellan Road, Currans Hill

mmmsmwwcscnmmum‘

Yours faithfully,
I-Am%.wmmwmnm;
Andrew G

ray Acxiny, CrARm A
C3 Church Mount Annan

l.momm.mmmmwmmmwunmmm:

C 'O‘Connor
r
C3 Church Mount Annan

C3 CHURCH MOUNT ANNAN
PO Box 596 Narelian NSW 2567

P 461 24634 7400 F 461 2 4634 7450 Info@c3churchma.com
ABN 57 003 440 426 Moun? Annan Chac e lchurchema.com
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SITE COMPATIBILITY CERTIFICATE APPLICATION

347 Narellan Road Currans Hill

Part of lot 2 DP 1019708

August 2017

152 Sailors Bay Road Northbridge NSW 2063
(02) 9967 0500 |preciseplanning.com.au |
jeff@deepriver.com.au
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Appiication for Site Compatibility Cerfificate
347 Nareflan Rosd Currens Hill
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Anpiication for Site Compatibitty Cerfificate
347 Narallan Road Currans Hill

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this Report is to provide information to the Department of
Planning & Infrastructure (DPI) to assist in the determination of an application for
a Site Compatibility Certificate (SCC) pursuant to the provisions of Part 1A State
Environmental Planning Policy (Housing for Seniors or People with a Disabliity)
2004 (SEPP).

A SCC issued by DPE is currently In place for this site. However, this SCC will
expire on 28 September 2017, This new application Is intended simply to replace
the current SCC, as there Is no mechanism available to extend the original SCC,
There has been no relevant or material change in the land or its context since the
original SCC was issued.

1t Is proposed to seek approval for the erection of a Residential Care Facility
(RCF) with a capacity for 150 beds and 10 associated serviced self-care houses,
The subject site Is located in an RU2 Rural Landscape zone, pursuant to Camden
Local Environmental Plan 2010 (LEP). The Land Use table contained within the
LEP does not permit RCFs In the RU2 zone, however the subject land is
immediately adjacent to land zoned "...primarily for urban purposes”, Therefore, a
RCF is permissible on the subject land, subject to the issue of an SCC for that
purpose by the DPI.

The subject site is known as 347 Narellan Road Currans Hill (Lot 2 DP 1015708)",
Currently occupying the site is a Place of Public Worship? (C3 Mount Annan) and
associated Educational Establishment’ (Mount Annan Christian College). It s
proposed that the facility would partially utilize road Infrastructure already in
place to service the church and college.

The site is generally orientated north - south and comprises 14.123ha by DP
1019708. It is flanked along its western boundary by existing residential housing;
along its eastern boundary by the Sydney Water Race and the scenic hills
beyond; along its northern boundary by grazing land and along its southern
boundary by an existing self care retirement village consisting of 77 units (of
which 23 are built).

The area subject to this SCC application is at the southern half of the site, as
shown on the plan at Annexure 2.

The RCF is a compatible land use for this location and, as discussed later in this
report, there is 2 demonstrable need for more RCF beds in the local area. A high

' See copy of DP 1019708 at Annexure A
? See Figure 1
' See Figure 2

.

Hesnog | Deveosmen | Mansganer
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Appiication for Site Compatitlly Cartificate
347 Nareltan Road Cumans HIl

quality RCF on this site may be achieved with negligible environmental impact
and a positive social and economic impact, The existing surrounding land uses
(church, college, self care retirement village, residential development) create an
ideal context for such a facllity. The site Is located equidistant between the large
regional centre and Campbelltown, the smaller local facilities at Narellan and the
boutique services at Camden. The entrance to the site is approximately 500
metres from the entry / exit to the M5 motorway. An existing sheltered bus stop
is located at the front of the site, with a concrete constructed continuous path of
travel to and from the proposed location of the facility.

The site is fully serviced with electricity, telephone, Sydney Water sewerage and
water connections and natural gas.

Discussions have occurred with Camden Council in relation to this proposal,
specifically with Council’s strategic planning officers llyas Karaman and Tina
Chappell. Subject to the issuing of a Site Compatibility Certificate and a proper
assessment process, the Council officers are open to the proposal.

Based on Investigations represented in this report, it is concluded that the site is
suitable for the proposed development and worthy of support by DoPI for the
issue of a SCC.

Panmrg | Deveiegmant | Management
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Applivation for Site Compatitwy Certificale
347 Narellan Road Currans Hifl

1

INTRODUCTION

1.1 BACKGROUND

This Report is Intended to accompany an application to Department of Planning &
Infrastructure for a Site Compatibility Certificate (SCC), pursuant to the
provisions of Part 1A State Environmental Planning Pelicy (Housing for Seniors or
People with a Disabliity) 2004 (SEPP). The report addresses the relevant
requirements contained In clauses 24 and 25 of the SEPP.

1.2 SITE IDENTIFICATION

The land to which this report relates is known as No 347 Narellan Road Currans
Hill {Lot 2 DP 1019708), located within the Camden Local Government Area. It
has a frontage to Narellan Road, although its legal vehicular access is from a
traffic-light controlled Intersection at the front of an Immediately adjoining site
known as No 359 Narellan Road. From that access point, the land benefits from
an appurtenant Right of Carriageway through the adjoining land, facilitating
access to Narellan Road.

Narellan Road is @ main 8-lane thoroughfare linking Campbelitown (about 3
kilometres to the east), with Narellan (about 2 kilometres to the west). The
subject site is situated approximately 500 metres westerly from the Intersection
of Narellan Road and the M5 motorway.

T

[} Logation of sjte
- :; }y _‘.

.
The Acstrafiany . -
Exsta Clanten g " Fnennh’ o
e
-

FIGURE 1 - Locality plan

e Ty
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Appication for Site Compatitilly Certificale
347 Naredtan Road Currans Ml

The subject land is elongated and orientated north - south, comprising an area of
14,123ha. Erected on the land Is a 2 storey brick auditorium, used as a Place of
Public Worship, as well as a cluster of detached and semi detached brick
buildings, used as a kindergarten to year 12 Christian College. The existing
development, predominantly on the northern half of the site, is serviced by a
bitumen-sealed private road with a substantial bitumen-sealed carpark.

Location of proposed RCF

FIGURE 2 - Aerlal view of site

The subject land flanked along its western boundary by existing residential
housing; along its eastern boundary by the Sydney Water Race and the scenic
hilis beyond; along Its northern boundary by grazing land and along its southern
boundary by an existing self care retirement village consisting of 77 units (of
which 23 are built).

Location of proposed RCF

FIGURE 3 -~ Aerial view of site

L e )
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Appicetion for Site Compatibiity Cerfificats
347 Narellan Road Currans Hil

FIGURE 4 - Location of proposed RCF (looking NE)

FIGURE 5 - Location of proposed RCF (looking south with existing dam in background)

<
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Applicstion for Sile Compstibifity Certificats
347 NaraVan Road Currans Hill

1.3 ZONING AND PERMISSIBILITY

The subject land is contained within the RU2 Rural Landscape zone pursuant to
CLEP 2010, It adjoins R2 Low Density Residential to the west and south.

Camden LEP 2010

Senior's housing is a type of residential accommodation in the dictionary
contained in CLEP. The CLEP land use table for the RU2 zone prohibits the
following land uses:

Advertising structures; Agriculture; Air transport faciiities; Amusement centres; Camping grounds;
Car parks; Caravan parks, Commercial premises; Corractional centres; Crematoria; Eco-tourist
facilities; Entertainment facilties; Exhibition homes; Extractive industries; Freight transport facilities,
Fupction centres; Health services facilities; Heavy Industrial storage establishments; Home
oczupations (sex services); Industriz! retall outlets; Industries; Information and education facilities;
Mortuaries; Port facilities; Recreation facliities (indoor), Recreation facilities (major); Residential
accommodation; Restricted premises; Rural industries; Service stations; Sex services premises;
Storage premises; Tourist and visitor accormmodatian; Transport depots; Truck depots, Vehicle body
repair workshops; Vehlcle repair stations; Warehouse or distribution centres; Wharf or boating
facilities; Wholesale suppllies

The RU2 land use table contains some exceptions to the general prohibition on
residential accommodation, being:

Dual occupancies (attached)
Dwelling houses

Rural worker’s dwellings
Secondary dwellings

This means that seniors housing, which, although separately defined by CLEP, is a
type of residential accommodation, is a prohibited land use In the RU2 zone.

SEPP (Housing for Senior's or People with a Disability)

The SEPP applies to the Camden LGA and has the effect of setting aside any
controls within an environmental planning instrument that would otherwise
prevent the development of housing specified by the SEPP, provided it meets the
development criteria and standards specified.

Clause 4(1) of the SEPP provides as follows:

This Policy applies to land within New South Wales that is land zoned primarily for urban purposes or
fand that adjoins land zoned primarily for urban purposes, but only if:

(a) development for the purpose of any of the following is permitted on the land:
(i) dwelling-houses,

(i) residential Nat buildings,
(iif) hospitals,

k3
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Appiicstion for Siie Compatibifty Cartificate
347 Naredlan Road Curans Hill

(lv) development of & kind identified In respect of land zoned as special uses, including (but
not limited to) churches, convents, educational establishments, schools and seminaries, or

{b) the land Is being used for the purposes of an existing registered ciub.

Note 1

The land is located In the RU2 Rural Landscape zone under CLEP, This is not land
".... Zoned primarily for urban purposes”. However, the land immediately adjoins
land zoned R2 Low Density Residential (which is land "...zoned primarily for
urban purposes”™) on Its western and southern boundaries,

Note 2

Dwelling-houses are permitted on land zoned RU2 Rural Landscape under CLEP
(for relevance, see cl.4(1)(a)(i) of the SEPP, quoted above).

Note 3

Because the land adjolns land zened primarily for urban purposes, and dwelling-
houses are permitted on land in the RU2 zone, the SEPP enables certain seniors
housing to be erected on the subject land.

Note 4

Clause 17(1) of the SEPP permits the following categories of seniors housing to
be erected on land adjoining land zoned primarily for urban purposes:

« A hostel
« A residential care facility
« Serviced self care housing

Clause 17(2)(b) of the SEPP requires that serviced self care housing on land
adjoining land zoned primarily for urban purposes must only be approved if it is in
combination with a residential care facllity.

The proposal is consistent with these subclauses, as it seeks to develop a
residential care facility for 150 beds and 10 associated serviced self-care houses

— Py
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Appiication for Site Compatibiity Certificate
347 Nareifan Road Currang Hil

FIGURE 6 - Excerpt from Camden LEP 2010 land zone map

1.4 GENERAL SUMMARY OF SITE CHARACTERISTICS

Bronedydosciptc

Lozopiofoms

Location, dimensions, shape, area,
onentation

Fronfage of approximately 61.84 m to the northern side of Narelian Road, The
land is a imeguiarly-shaped and onentated north — south, comprising 14,123ha

Acvess: Access fo the land fe from Narellen Road manwowammmmu
& rwvmmmmwymm Warsian Road i a 6 fane artors! rad

controlied by

Confours and levels mw:sundwamgandwnmﬂydrmmamfenydhdm loward the
ox:smg sarth dam on the sife.

: " g '..'~ g‘ ,..l = 7 . 0P .

Existing improvemeants Larpobnckbuidings(chwdtmdﬂomnmdcoﬂege} administration buldings,
bilumen driveway and car park, sporfing faciities
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mmnﬂimmthnwnAmd
existing driveway and the site ganevatly,
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7mnmmmmmmammm
sastbound vehicles turing inlo the sile and a sheftered bus stop.

No significant noise saurces affecting the land oiher then Nerellan Roed rafic
naise

Contamination There is potential for fill (& contamination) at the site due o the develcoment and
urbanisation over the past 20 yaars, Fill matenials (loca! solls and possibly excess
construction matena's) ars lively fo be disposed at the sde from fhe consfruztion
of Narellan Roed. stormwaler aasement/pipework/defention basin, concrete
pathway and the neighbouring refirement village fo the south east (area of

the gast skeffanced boundsty and some debris {cancrele, asphall) identified s
the site indicate the poleniial for il and potential confaminants (8.9, heavy
meta's, asbesios, hydrocarbons, pesticides). Pestickles may also have bean
usad at the site to cantfrol weeds and pests due to historical agricullural or lend
managsment aclivities. Gross confaminationdandfiltchemical disposal at the site
is not expected dus fo the absence of local heavy industry (e g chemicsl
factonias, fuel station) and rural hisfory,

umm.w:msnmmum

TABLE 1 - General Summary of Site Characteristics
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Traffic

The main traffic concern relating to this proposal relates to access for emergency
vehicles, given the width and shape of the access road where It passes through
the adjoining No 358 Narellan Road. The impact of overall traffic generation
numbers onto the surrounding road network are negligible.

Camden Councll has approved, or Is very close to approving, the amendment of
the Construction Certificate for stage 1 of the adjoining retirement village
development. The amendment will straighten the alignment of the road and
widen it so that it has a carriageway width of minimum 7.1 metres. This widening
work will be undertaken as soon as possible, as the issuing of an occupation
certificate for the existing retirement units on the adjoining site will not be issued
by Council until such work is completed.

For an SCC application, it is sufficient that the Dept be satisfied that the matter is
able to be dealt with at the stage of assessment of a development application

Electricity Easement

Other than vehicular access and parking, no structures relating to this application
are proposed to be erected within the TransGrid easement that traverses the site.
All structures are proposed to the east of the eastern limit of the easement,

Currently, on the western side of the easement, residential development
Immediately adjoins the easement. On the eastemn side, the existing retirement
village (comprising 23 existing units and a further 54 units approved), as well as
the church and K-12 college, exist and/or operate effectively, despite immediately
adjoining the easement. There is no difference between what is being proposed in
this SCC application with what currently exists,

Regionally significant views

The proposed residential care facility will be visible in part from Narellan Road.
However, at worst it would be a glimpse, and then It would be from travelling
vehicles (not a static view). The height of the building would not exceed the
height of the scenic hills set in the backdrop, which would limit any adverse
impacts. It should be noted that the existing church bullding to the north and the
proposed 54 approved units adjoining to the south of the proposed RCF location
each have 2 storey elements. It is envisaged that the proposed RCF buiiding
would be consistent with the existing (or approved) built environment,

The building Is currently shown just as an envelope on the plans. However, during
the DA preparation stage, the architects would develop the architectural deslan
with appropriate articulation, materials and opportunities for landscaping, in order
to soften the appearance of the building on the viewed landscape. The proposed
building would be designed to complement the current scenic environment.

v 2

Paymrg | Oeeropmeet | Wanageme
Page 12|23

Attachments for the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 24 October 2017 - Page 217

ORDO5

Attachment 4



ORDO5

Attachment 4

Attachment 4

Application for Site Compatibility Certificate

Appication for Se Compatibilly Certificsts
347 Narelan Raad Currans HW

2

THE PROPOSAL

2.1 RESIDENTIAL CARE FACILITY

It is proposed to erect a 150 bed residential care facility at the subject site,

Clause 11 of the SEPP defines a residential care facility as follows:

In this Policy, a residential care facility is residential accommodation for seépiors or people with &
disabliity that Includes:

(a) meais and cleaning services, and

(b) personal care or nursing care, or both, and

(¢c) appropriate staffing, fumiture, furnishings and equipment for the provision of that
accornmodation and care,

not being a dwelling, hostel, hospital or psychiatric facilty.
This definition is replicated in Camden LEP 2010,

A plan showing the location of the proposal has been prepared by Boffa Robertsen
Group.

2.2 DESIGN PHILOSOPHY

The proposed residential care facility will provide varying levels of 24hr care to
150 residents who are no longer independent.,

Residents will be accommodated In six wings arranged over two levels, Each
wing will accommodate approximately 25 residerts in single and double rooms.
Dining and lounge facilities will be provided to each wing and served in-house
catering and support services.

Specifically designed indoor and outdoor activity spaces will be created to provide
an environment that will be peaceful and relaxed.

Residents will be supported by nursing and administrative staff 24hrs a day as
their care needs dictate.

A day care centre for the aged will form part of the design of the new residential
care facility,

- v
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2.3 STRATEGIC PARTNER / OPERATOR

The Sisters of Our Lady of China is a Cathalic Order of Sisters and is the proposed
operator for the residential care facility.

The Sisters of Our Lady of China Group provides high quality residential aged care
across three facilities in Metropolitan Sydney - in Peakhurst, Carramar and Minto.

Two other facilities are being constructed at Miranda and Beverley Park.

The Camden Local Government Area has been identified as an area of need by
the Federal Government, demonstrated by the allocation of 450 beds to South
Western Sydney - together with Western Sydney the highest allocation to an
indlvidual area.

The organisation prides itself on the individualised quality care it provides to its
residents by highly qualified and professional staff.

Promoting the dignity and respect for human life at all stages, extending the hand
of a Samaritan and caring with love, hope and faith, are all integral elements of
the Sisters' work.

Residents enjoy a friendly, caring, community atmosphere that is fostered by the
caring philosophy of the management and staff, enhanced by the modern design
and amenities of our facilities.

The existing three fully accredited facilities offer residential aged care
accommodation including low care, high care and respite care. Residents with
dementia are also catered for. The facilities welcome residents from all
backgrounds and are not ethno specific,

The facllities provide a range of social, recreational and educational activities to
meet the needs and Interests of all residents.

The organisation encourages the involvement of relatives and friends in all
activities and welcome them as equal partners in our care family.

2.4 NEARBY SERVICES

Facilities closest to the site are located at Narellan, less than 2kms to the west.
In addition to a typical ribbon-style main street, Narellan also boasts a town
centre. The Narellan Town Centre has a large range of retail and service facilities,
as well as eateries, banks and post office.

u 3
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FIGURE 7 -~ Narellan Town Centre

FIGURE 8 - Narellan Town Centre

Medical facilities are also available at Narellan.

Campbelltown is approximately 4 kilometres east of the site. Campbelitown is a
major regional centre servicing southwest Sydney, with two major retail shopping
centres, several railway stations, a hospital and many specialist medical services,
entertainment precinct and many other services.

Plaening | Developrnest | Maragement
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FIGURE 9 - Macarthur Square regional shopping centre

FIGURE 10 -~ Campbelitown Hospital
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Appiication for Site Compatibilty Certificate
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3

SITE COMPATIBILITY CERTIFICATE CRITERIA

Part 1A, clauses 24 and 25 of the SEPP outline the requirements and criteria for
the determination of an application to the Director General for an SCC.

Clause 24

Cl.24(1)(a)  Appikcation of the ciause The land.adfoins land zoned primarily for
urban purposes
ClL24(1A) Permissibility under another EPI We are not aware of any other EPI which
permits senlor’s housing on this land
C1.24(2) SCC required Purpose of this current application
CL24(3) Consent authority still required to Noted
determine application

TABLE 2 - Response to Clause 24 SEPP

Clause 25

C1.25(5)(b)(i)

The natural environment (inciuding known significant environmental values,
resources or hazards) and the existing uses and approved uses of land in the
vicinity of the proposed development

The local environment consists of undulating topography, an overiand flow path
leading to a farm dam and some species of native vegetation, Development in the
vicinity of the site consists of residential development to the west, an existing
seif-care retirement village to the south, the Sydney water race and grazing land
to the east and grazing land to the north.

The existing self-care retirement village to the south currently comprises 23 x 2/3
bedroom, single storey units, together with community buildings including a
hydrotherapy pool. Camden Council has issued development consent for a further
54 units In two storey buildings. The existing and approved development on this
adjoining land to the south will be consistent in scale and nature with the
proposed RCF.

The topography Is shown on the plan by Sydney Land Surveyors (Appendix ‘B8%).
The overland flow path will be treated in accordance with Water Sensitive Urban
Design Principles and is not considered a barrier to the proposal.

Regarding the native vegetation, the overstorey is dominated by Eucalyptus
moluccana (Grey Box) and a single E. tereticornis (Forest Red Gum). There is no
scrubby 17nderstory. The grassland represents a mosaic dominated by exotic

iy
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species and or In association with a low incidence of native species. The remnant
community has been classified to be in 'low’ condition and therefore not constrain
the proposed development of the site.

It is noted that the land is shown as being affected, albeit marginally, on Camden
Council’s bushfire maps. However, the bushfire constraints associated with the
proposed location of the RCF are minor in nature, being located >100m (l.e.
165m - 260m) from any currently mapped bushfire vegetation and separated
from these areas by managed land.

FIGURE 11 - Excerpt from Camden Council Bushfire Prone Land map

Prese mrevy
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Remnant
Vegetation

&,

FIGURE 12 - Aerial view of potential bushfire threats

CL.25(5)(b)(Ti)

The Impact that the proposed development is likely to have on the uses that, in
the opinion of the Director-General, are likely to be the future uses of that land

The proposal Is low-scale and Is compatible with the existing (and approved)
surrounding development, The proposal will be compliant with the built form
controls of the SEPP, except the height control contained in cl.40(4)(c), which
requires the building height in the rear 25% of the site to be single storey.
However, in this circumstance the non-compliance is justified, given the large site
area, the nature of development to the east and the two storey developments
existing or approved both north and south of the location of the RCF.

CI.25(5)(b)(1ii)

The services and infrastructure that are or will be avallable to meet the demands
arising from the proposed development (particularly, retail, community, medical
and transport services having regard to the location and access requirements set
out in clause 26) and any proposed financial arrangements for infrastructure
provision

A bus stop is located immediately at the street frontage of the site, which is able
to transport patrons to Campbelitown. The proposed RCF is able to achieve

X R
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compliance with the provisions of cl.26 of the SEPP, The site is located less than 2
kilometres from the commercial centre of Narellan and less than 4 kllometres
from the regional centre of Campbelitown. Both these locations have multiple
bank and post office outlets, as well as a wide range of retall and other
commercial services. Campbelltown Hospital Is less than 5 kilometres from the
subject site, and Narellan and Campbelitown have a large range of specialist
medical services avallable.

CL25(5)(b)(iv)

In the case of applications in relation to land that is zoned open space or special
uses — the impact that the proposed development is likely to have on the
provision of land for open space and special uses in the vicinity of the
development

Not applicable

CL25(5)(b)(v)

Without limiting any other criteria, the impact that the bulk, scale, bullt form and
character of the proposed development is likely to have on the existing uses,
approved uses and future uses of land in the vicinity of the development

The proposed RCF will be compatible with existing and approved development to
the north and south, being limited to 2 storeys in height, (refer ta 5,2.2)

The application will include a comprehensive landscape strategy, integrated with
the building deslgn, to maximize occupant amenity and minimize visual impacts.
The strategy will incorporate retention of existing trees where possible.

C1L.25(5)(b)(vi)

If the development may involve the clearing of native vegetation that is subject
to the requirements of section 12 of the Native Vegetation Act 2003 - the impact
that the proposed development is likely to have on the conservation and
management of native vegetation,

Some minor clearing is required, as previously noted. However, the clearing Is of
such a minor nature that its Impact on the conservation and management of
native vegetation is negligible.

—— Yy
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4

CONCLUSION

The proposed RCF development will assist to provide increased housing choice for
seniors and people with a disability in the local area. The proposed location Is
ideally suited to the development, between Narellan and Camden to the west and
Campbelitown to the east, and close to the interchange of Narellan Road and the
MS motorway.

It is proposed that the operator will manage this facility in conjunction with their
existing 108 bed residential care facility at Minto - a facility with a long waiting
list. It is expected that the Narellan site will also be in high demand based on
allocations being made by the Department of Social Services In 2014,

The site is also located in the immediate vicinity of an existing self-care
retirement village, as well as a Place of Public Worship and a large range of
medical facilities. The proposed RCF may be erected with minimal environmental
impact.

Camden council have already indicated support in principle to the concept of an
aged care facllity as a compatible use.

Subject to your support for our application, It Is Intended to proceed with the
application for aged care licenses followed by the preparation of a Development
Application to Camden Council at the earliest opportunity.

We look forward to your favorable reply.

Yours faithfully

Jeff Bulfin

I My
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Appendix “A”

DP 1019708
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Appendix “B”

SOUTHERN SECTION OF THE SITE
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SEPP Considerations

Clause 25(5)(b)

the natural environment (including
known significant environmental values,
resources or hazards) and the existing
uses and approved uses of land in the
vicinity of the proposed development

Existing Uses:

Part of the subject land is occupied by a private
school catering for children aged from
kindergarten to year 12 & a church.

Subject site constrained by an existing Transgrid
power easement with a width 60.96m, which
traverses the site, there are concerns the
proposed community park, car park and other
structures encroach the existing easement; 2 x
storey building on edge of easement;

Approved Uses:
The adjoining land to the south has been

approved for a total of 77 dwellings for seniors
housing.

Previous SCC issued valid from 28 September
2015 to 28 September 2017.

Natural Environment

* European Heritage
o SCA Upper Canal (State listed
item)
o Potential archaeological
remnant Kenny Hill Station
e Transmission Easement 60.96m
wide
e SEE not clear Phase 1 Environmental Site
Assessment already undertaken. As such,
any potential fill identified on site,
required to comply with SEPP 55
Remediation of Lands.

Noted SEE states Phase 2 Investigation
Contamination to be carried out if
proposal is progressed.

e \Visual Impacts on Kenny Hill scenic hills
area.

e Northern portion of site, identified as
bushfire prone on Council’'s Bushfire
maps. Noted the distance to the location
of the proposed seniors housing and
existing church and school located
between the proposed site.
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the impact that the proposed
development is likely to have on the uses
that, in the opinion of the Director-
General, are likely to be the future uses
of that land,

The site has been identified under previous SCC
for future seniors housing.

The subject land is zoned RU2 Rural Landscape
zone, the key objectives of the zone is to
maintain the rural landscape character of the
land, protect & enhance the scenic value by
minimising development and providing a visual
contrast to nearby urban development.

the services and infrastructure that are
or will be available to meet the demands

The subject appears to be well serviced in terms
of utilities infrastructure. Council officers have
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arising from the proposed development
(particularly, retail, community, medical
and transport services having regard to
the location and access requirements set
out in clause 26) and any proposed
financial arrangements for infrastructure
provision,

identified concerns with regard to road
infrastructure capacity (within the site) and the
ability to comply with Clause 26 of the SEPP in
terms of location requirements.

iv. in the case of applications in relation to
land that is zoned open space or special
uses—the impact that the proposed
development is likely to have on the
provision of land for open space and
special uses in the vicinity of the
development,

Not Applicable

v. without limiting any other criteria, the
impact that the bulk, scale, built form
and character of the proposed
development is likely to have on the
existing uses, approved uses and future
uses of land in the vicinity of the
development,

The proposed bulk and scale is of concern to
Council officers. Council officers request the DPE
to impose the same condition as issued on the
previous SCC, i.e. the building design should not
exceed two storeys in height above natural
ground level.

The bulk and scale should be in accordance with
the development already approved to the south
and west of the subject site.

The location of building and other structures
with regards to the transmission easement is
also of concern and needs to be considered.

Council will request the DPE to impose the same
condition as issued on the previous SCC, i.e.
future detailed designs must demonstrate
compliance with Transgrid guidelines for
development within a transmission easement.

Council’s request for a condition on the SCC to
restrict the building design to two storeys will
minimise the visual impacts on the Kenny Hill
view corridor.

Council will similarly request DPE to consult with
NSW Office of Environment and Heritage (OEH)
prior to determination of the SCC application due
to the proximity of the State Heritage Item.

vi. If the development may involve the clearing
of native vegetation that is subject to the
requirements of section 12 of the Native
Vegetation Act 2003— the impact that
the proposed development is likely to
have on the conservation and
management of native vegetation.

The subject site is relatively clear of native
vegetation. However this should be confirmed at
the DA stage,

Attachments for the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 24 October 2017 - Page 234




Attachment 5

SEPP considerations 347 Narellan Road

Clause 26(e) Location and access to facilities

Noted previous SCC as issued to site and DPE consideration and assessment as required under
Clause 26.

(c) in the case of a proposed development on
land in a local government area that is not
within the Sydney Statistical Division—there
is a transport service available to the
residents who will occupy the proposed
development:

(i) that is located at a distance of not
more than 400 metres from the site of
the proposed development and the
distance is accessible by means of a
suitable access pathway, and

A suitable bus stop and bus route are located on
Narellan Road adjacent to the entry to the
subject site.

The SEPP requires services to and from the site;
therefore it is also necessary for the bus stop on
the return journey to be located within 400m of
the subject site.

The return bus stop is on the opposite side of
Narellan Road near Flower Power. This bus stop
appears to be outside of the 400m, and would
therefore not comply with the SEPP.

(i) that will take those residents to a
place that is located at a distance of
not more than 400 metres from the
facilities and services referred to in
subclause (1), and

Bus routes service Camden, Narellan and
Macarthur Square and meet these requirements.

(iii) that is available both to and from the
proposed development during
daylight hours at least once each day
from Monday to Friday {both days
inclusive),

The regularity of services appears to meet this
requirement.

Gradient Controls and requirements

Further information needs to be provided by the
applicant.
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Further information required
1. Pre lIssue of a Site Compatibility Certificate

Detailed Traffic Studies

Clarification regarding compliance with Clause 26 of the Seniors SEPP
Referral of application to Transgrid

Referral of application to the Water NSW

Referral to NSW Office of Environment and Heritage (OEH)

2

As part of future Development application

Drainage and Flooding Information for the site

Statement of Environmental Effects

Phase 2 Contamination Assessment & Remediation Action Plan (if applicable)
Salinity Assessment

Traffic Assessment (development specific)

Aboriginal Impact Assessment

« European Heritage Impact Assessment

«  Waste Management Plan

* Access Report
e Concept Stormwater Management Plan
* Noise Assessment
o Bushfire Assessment
Conclusion

The application for a site compatibility certificate to permit a 150 bed residential care facility and 10
units of serviced self-care housing under the Seniors SEPP appears to be consistent with the
requirements of the SEPP.

Council officers consider that the proposal has planning merit, and in principle support Seniors Housing
on the site, subject to Council's concerns to be addressed as outlined in this submission.
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) ; : Lev 6, 10 Valentine Ave | Telephone: 61 2 9873 8500
‘l v Heritage Council Parramatts NSW 2150 | Facsimile: 61 2 9873 8599

‘ ' S— -
= IF "
Nsw ‘.j ‘ Locked Bag 5020 heritage@heritage. nsw.gov.au

af New South \Waias Parramatta NSW 2124 www.her|lage nsw.gov.au
GOVERNMENT of New:south Walss DX 8225 PARRAMATTA

DOC no: DOC17/492784
File no: EF17/3659

Mr Ron Moore

General Manager
Camden City Council

PO Box 183

CAMDEN NSW 2570
mail@camden.nsw.gov.au

Dear Mr Mocre

Notice of Intention to consider listing on the State Heritage Register of:
St John's Anglican Church Precinct, 6-22 Menangle Road, Camden

| am writing to advise that the Heritage Council of NSW resolved, at its meeting of
4 October 2017, to give notice of its intention to consider listing St John's Anglican Church
Precinct on the State Heritage Register in acknowledgement of its heritage significance to the
people of New South Wales. This advice is in accordance with section 33(1)(a) of the Heritage
Act 1977 (NSW),

Any members of the community, owners, managers, organisations or other interested parties
are invited to make a written submission regarding the proposed listing and significance of St
John'’s Anglican Church Precinct. Submissions should be posted or emailed to the Heritage
Council of NSW at the following address during the public submission period commencing on
11 October 2017 and closing on 8 November 2017:

Heritage Council of NSW
Locked Bag 5020
PARRAMATTA NSW 2124
heritage@heritage.nsw._qgov.au

Please note that the Heritage Council is unable to accept submissions received after the above
closing date.

St John's Anglican Church Precinct is potentially of state heritage significance as a group of
ecclesiastical buildings set in a beautiful landscape setting comprised of mature and exotic tree
plantings and open grassed siopes. The precinct's centre and focal point is St John's the
Evangelist Anglican Church which may be of state heritage significance as the first Gothic
Reviva! church constructed in NSW that was correct in its medieval detail (‘archaeologically
correct’). This status, along with its strong connection to the 1836 Church Act, potentially
renders it an important early forerunner of the Gothic Revival movement which was to dominate
ecclesiastical architecture in the Colony throughout the remainder of the nineteenth century.
The church, and especially its tower and spire, may be aesthetically significant to NSW as part
of the regional landscape created by the Macarthur family, St John's as an important regional
landmark is a significant element in the picturesque landscape planning used to create the
Camden Park Estate, the seat of the Macarthur family.

Helping the community conserve our heritage

ORDO6
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As part of a triumvirate of significant points in the landscape, along with Camden Park House
and the township of Camden, it also expresses the power structures the Macarthur family
wished to instill in the local community they were creating in the early nineteenth century. This
regional landscape design is potentially of state heritage significance as an important example
of early-mid nineteenth century landscape planning.

The entire church precinct may have an important historical association with the Macarthur
family of Camden. Each of the precinct allotments was donated to the Anglican Church by the
Macarthur's and the family funded the construction of most of the buildings and patronised the
operation of the church throughout the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. Prominent
family members who have a strong association with the church precinct inciude James
Macarthur, Sir William Macarthur, and Elizabeth Macarthur-Onslow. In this manner, the church
precinct is a memorial to the achievements of the Macarthur family in the development of
Camden and the Cclony of NSW. These potential historical connections render this church
precinct as a remarkable, picturesquely located and historic place of Anglican worship in a state
context.

A copy of the draft curtilage map for this item is enclosed for your reference. Further details on
the nominated item, the State Heritage Register, listing criteria, making a submission and the
benefits of listing can be viewed on the Heritage Division, Office of Environment & Heritage
(OEH) website at:

http:/www.environment.nsw.gov.au/heritageapp/NeminationsOfStateHeritageReqgister.aspx

If you have any questions, require further information, or if you do not have internet access and
would like paper copies of the documents referred to above, please do not hesitate to contact
Damian Tybussek, Heritage Listings Officer at the Heritage Division, OEH on (02) 9585 6397
or Damian.Tybussek@environment.nsw.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

MS KATRINA STANKOWSKI
Acting Manager, Listings
Heritage Division

Office of Environment & Heritage

10/10/2017

As delegate of the Heritage Council of NSW

encl
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Office of

Environment
Heritage

ome 2 Topics > Haftage places s iteme > Seaich for hestage

St Johns Church Precinct

Item details

Name of item: S5t

Johns Church Precinct
Type of item: Complex / Group
Group/Collection: Religlon
Category: Church
Location: Lat

34 03 30 Long: 150 41 46

Primary address: G - 22 Menangle Road, Camden, NSW 2570

Parish: CAMDEN
County CAMDEN
Local govt. area: Camden

Propesty description

Lot/ Volume Code Lot /Volume Number Section Number Plan/Folio Code Plan/ Folio Number

LOT Dp 1024949
LOT 56 oP 2399467
All addresses
Street Address Suburb/town LGA Parish County Type
6 Camden Camden CAMDEN CAMDEN Primary
Menang le Address

Roed

Statement of significance:

The
church s set within a fine group of other ecclesiastical buldings that

Inclided the Rectory (1859) and church hall (1906), 1ogether with the
red envieonment resplendent in native and
lines, paths ard memorials, The churg

the local Anglican community as It has done for over

years. Completed in 1849, St John the Dvarng llist's Anglican Church

cermetary Ina rural lan

exolic mature

continues to se
15

Canden = a major exdifice in the history of Austraban architecture. [t

16 the first "archasologically correct™ Gothee Revival church built in
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Electric motors replaced manual winiding meachanism of cock In
c1950

Tower louryes replaced in 1970,

Render of the spire remaved
and replaced in 1973

Attachment 2 OEH heritage database
this country, The church, with &5 tower and spire, s a landscope
momment in the rural lands and town of Camden. It 5 also a momiment to
the plioneering pastoral Macarthur Family who built it, and has bocome an
con In conskieration of thesa vaiues.

St Johns Anglican Church,
Camden Precingt (s of rational significance.
Date significance updated: 31 Jul 01
Note: There are
incomnpiste detads for 3 pnumber of Rems Nstedd in NSW. The Heyitage
Division intends to develop or upgrade statements of significance and
ather infoymation for these tems as resouces become
avaitable,
Description
Designes /Maker: Jotw Cunninghaen
Builder /Maker:; Richard Basden
Construction 1840-14850
years:
Physical The St Johns Chureh Pracinet
description: Inchudes the church and church grounds, and also incudes 1he
cermetery, the Rectory and Stables, and church hall,
Iace brick
*Gothic* style church with terracotta shingled roof, cament rendered brick
spire, brick tower buttressed with brick copings with original stone
coping at the top, stone framed stalned glass windows and timber doors,
There s a clock on the church tower:
Rectory and Stables;
A
two storey brick rectory with a single storey detached stables/coach
house, The rectory Is syrmmetrically designed with balanced large stuccoed
chamnneys, rectangutar shuttered windows with flat red brck lintels and
pane sashes. Four paneled timber cooes with imposing entrance Coric
columned portico. Jolnery gecerally is cedar Brickwork, small sandstocks,
15 3id In Erglish bord. Roof s siate. (National Estate Database)
Churchyard and slopes:
The churcivyard & locatex] dose to 5L
Johns with the earliest grave dating to 1843, The slope runs from the
churchyard up to the rectory,
Physical The church, rectary, stables, churchyard and slopes ave In good
condition and/or conditon, Garbage Zones are to be protected for future axploration for
Archasclogical archasclogcal potential
potential:
Date condition updated: 11 Oct (2
Modifications and Spiit tmber shingied roof replaced with terracotta shingles in
dates: 1929
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Formar use:

History

Historical

Charch

Church

5t John's Clarch is situatad on the south-aast aige of

Camden town as laid out In 1835 at the direction of 2ames (1796-1867) and
Withiam (1800-1882) Macanthur, the sons of John Macarthur of Camden Park.

Central Lo the town plan was the siting of the church of St Johi's

05 the Sydney Herakl of 14 February 1840 noted that ‘on the greates:
clevation of the adfacent hills it is proposed to efect a church, the
situation for which will be highly picturesque and commanding®, By the
tme of the sale of the town alotmonts, the church was under construction
and was the maln feature of the inciplnt township prominently sited on
the highest point overlooking the principal street, John Street,

At the same time as clearing land for the new township in 1835,

James and William Macarthur appealed to their neighbours and employees for
help In founding & chutch (Anglican}, By September 1835, 644 pounds had
been colfected, with the majocity (500 pounds) coming from the Macarthurms,

The Macarthurs plans for their church in the town coincldes with

the passing of Governor Bourke's Church Act of 1836 which promoted 'the
batding of Churches and Chapeis and to provide for the maintenance of
Ministers of Refigon in NSW.' This Act placed all the major

denominations {Anglcan, Catholic and Presbyterian} and approved minor
denominations on an equat footing In providing state funding on a
pound-for-pound subsidy, This ald was avaliable for churches and
rectoties parsonages costing betwesn 600 pourdds and 2,000 pounds, To be
eligible for the subsidy, all proposais had 10 be refesred to a cantral
eccksiantical authorty, and & professons| persan was requived to supply
the necessary plans, specfications, etc. The Macarthurs apphied for a
subsdy of 1,000 pounds toward a total cost of 2,500 pounds. The
appointed trustoes of the new church ware Rev Thomas Hassall, Charles
Cowpar of Wivenhoa, James and Willlam Macarthur, and George Macleay of
Brownlow Hill. James and Willlam Macarthur and George Mackeay were
subsaquently elected the Mirst wardens of the church on completion in

1850

In May 1841 the land grant for the church of 5 actes 3 roods

and 24 prrches vas reglstered between James and Willlam Macasthur and
Bishop Broughton, The deed resetved the nd for the purpases of "the
erection of a church or chapel for the performance of divine worship
according to the rites of the United Church of England and Irefand (and)

for the erection of a residence for a clergyman in holy orders and fos a
burial ground according to the use of the said Uniad Chureh.' The church
grant was bounded on the east and south by a road from Elizabeth Street 1
Camden House, and on the weast by a road feading from Broug iton Street to
Camden House  The grant deed also Included 2 perches of &nd that is the
Macarthur family burial vault

The aite was levelled axl footings

loid over the wintes months of 1840, The foundations followed In
September. The Bishop of Australia, Right Bev, W.G. Broughton, Ikl the
foundation stone of the clwrch on 3 November 1840, Despite the fact that
the church was 1o be consecrated as fate as 1849, progress In the Initial
stages of the construction appears 1o have been rapld,

architect for the church is not Known, and i may be the curmustative work

of Mortimer William Lewlis, John Cunningtam and Edmund T Blacket, Bishop
Broughton had Instructed James Hume (7-1868) Lo design the proposed church
in the "Classical style’. This design was accepted and work commenced,

but abandoned In favour of a new design for the church i the ‘Gothic!

style preferred by James Macarthur's wife Emity
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lHtume's role as
supervisory architect was replaced by the then Colenal Architect Martimer
Witkarn Lewlis, however Edmund T Blacket oversaw the final stages of the
construction of the church, The actual designer of the church, however,
15 bellevea to ba John Cunnmgham, an English architect known to the
Macarthur family. Cunningham (1799-1873) received his training In the
Edinburgh Oty Works Department, although he mostly practiced in
Liverpool. A numbes of English churches in Gothic and Romanesgue styles
are known to have besn by Cunninghism

There 5 no doubt as to the
kentification of the bullder: Richard Basdon, whose brckyard (situated
on the south-west junction of Argyle Street and Oxley Street) supplied the
386,000 bricks used in the church's construction. Basden alse balit two
ather promment bulklings in Camden, the post office and the inn.  Basden
was subsaquently appointed & chwrech warden In 1856

The roaf
framing of ironbark was given by the Macarthur brothers, being out fram
the forest at Mount Hunter by Jooathon Wheeler, The brick spire, the
framing and other timberwork were constructed by John Le Fevie, alwo a
church warden, in 1854

Bishop Broughton consecrated St John
the Evangelist's Church on 7th June 1849 A good description of the
church at the time of the consecration was publishad in the Anglican
mewspaper The Syiiney Guardian of August 1849, The comespondent reported
that:

*St John's consists of a nave, chancel and western tower and
sprires, all inclixling the spire, being of brick, and st sorme future time o
be coveredd with plaster, The spire i already stucooed, The windows,
which are of the 'decorated’ period, are exceed ingly well wrought in the
stone procured from the nelghbourhood, which s of greyer colour and
closer grain, though softer in the cutting, than the sandstone arcund
Sydney. The flagging of the Interor 15 the very best plece of work of
the kind In the country,  The roof is open, with tie-bearns and spandrals.
The windows are filled with fancy patterns of octagon and square glass,
the foemer badng ground, the Gtter coloured sel in copper frames. The
aitar rall is carnved with cinguefoil arches, on small shafts, with caps,
bases and bands, in the style of the Church, and i of very effect. There
s a want of porch and vestry, and the chancel is far too short.”

Chancel:

In 1857 Sir Willlam Macarthur commissoned the great
Enghsh Gothic Revival architect Sir George Gilbert Scott to provide plans
for a beck chancel and Vestry addition. Some time later, Edmund Blacket
was also asked to provide the sama, The design for the chancel extension
15 delleves to be a mix of Scott and Biacket's work. The extension was
completed In 1874, The bricks used in the construction came from
demolition of Thompson's former steam fNour mill and store in Camden. The
mifl was constructed oica 1843,

Rectory:

The brick rectary
(including stables and coach house) was erected in 1859, The cost of the
construction, 1,000 pounds, was donated by James ard William Macarthur
It has been speculated that Biacket may have been the architect for the
rectory. The rectory and asscclated jands remained in the ownership of
the Macarthur Emily up to Novembey 1905, when 3 acres 2 roods and 3
perches ware transferred from the Camden Park Estate to the Church of
England Property Trust

Parochial School:

The former St Johns
Parochial School located at the intersection of Hill and Broughton Streets
wos founded in 1850 as a denominational school, This very neat brick
butding was erected with 2 from the Denomimational School Board, The
school closed In 1879 when the Camden Public School was opened, Following
Its chosure, the schoolhouse was retained by the church until its sale,
together with L acre and 11 3/4 perches of land In early December 1906,
The proceeds of e sale were used to éract the extant church hall at the
Intersection of Hill and Broughton Streets

FFarst Church Hall

Attachments for the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 24 October 2017 - Page 243

ORDO6

Attachment 2



ORDO06

Attachment 2

Attachment 2

OEH heritage database

The first church hall was constnicted in 1906, The architects for
this bullding were Sulman and Power. Sulman and Power's plans were
approved by the architect Cynil Blacket, the Diocesan bullding sutvayor in
Febrisry 1906, The foundation stone of the hall was &id by the Bishop of
Goulourn on 29 July of that year, that Is prior 1o the sake of the ok!
“chool bullding and associated 1 acre of land.

Second Church Halt:

The second church hall was completed in 1973 The hall was opened ard
dedicoted on 25 March 1973 by the Archbishop of Sydney Most Rev Marcus
Loane, Part of the funding for this new hall came from the sake In 1968
of the Parish's 2G acres of glebe land situated betwean the Rectory and
the Mepean River, The architects ware Martin and King of Witkughby

Cemetary:

The church cemetery forms gart of the orginai
Macarthur family endowment of 1841 of about 5 acres. The cemetery is
about 1 1/4 acres in area, The first burial is beleved to be that of
Thormas Budd of Nareltan made in March 1843, An early road used to run
through the lowes portion of the cemetery. This road had been used
cxtensvely by the Macarthur family but was closed some tene after
c1849- 1850, possibly at the same time as the church was completed and
consecrated. A new general cemetery for the town, at Cawdor, was
dedicatad In TR9Y, and by 1906 the church cemetary had been closed except
for burlals for those who had purcnasad the right 1o burial o family
vaults. The cemetery howeves, continues in use, in particular the eastem
end. A plan of recording the grave locations was indtiated In 1977 and
completed in 1987, The total number of recoided grave sites is
approximately 1540,

Assessment of significance

Integrity/Intactness:

The chiurch, rectory, stables,
churchyard and slopes retaln good Infteg ity and |ntactness

Assessment criteria: Items are
assessed against the ) State Heritage Register (SHR) Criteria to
determine the
level of significance, Refer to the Listings besow for the level of
statutory protection.
Recommended management:
Conserve arxd maintamn significamt fabiic and
ndscape.
Listings
Heritage Listing Usting Listing Gazette Gazette Gazette
Title Number Date Number Page
Local 163 03 Sep 10
Ervironmmantad
Pan
Heritage
sudy
References, internet links & images
Type Author Year Title Intarmet Links
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Mansgement Plan Australian Heritage National Estate Database
Lommission
Note! Irtero rhs may e o w Apes, docurnaery T e

=~ !

(Click on thumbnail for full size image and image details)

Data source

The information for s entry
cormnes from e following sousce

Namea: Local Government
Database 1230070
numbes:
Evpry stiont has been macie o snsow st nformation montamed in the State Hertags Inventory bs carmoct. if you find any &nors or CoNssons Dease

serd your comments (o the Dutsbase Manager

A nfonration and pctuims Gn B GA0S Mo I8 ainright OF the Mestage Divsson ot (sspactive capytigh! owters
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Attachment 1 LGNSW - AEC election notice

LOCAL GOVERNMENT & SHIRES ASSOCIATION OF NEW SOUTH WALES
Election of Board of Directors (E2017/114)

ELECTION NOTICE

Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009

Nominations are called for.
e President
+ Vice President (from a Metropolitan/Urban council)
+ Vice President (from a Rural/Regional council)
« Treasurer
« Directors (from a Metropolitan/Urban council) (7)
« Directors (from a Rural/Regional council) (7)

Nominations cpen on 16 October 2017. Nominations must be in writing and comply with the Association's registered rules. Nominations
must be received by the Returmning Officer at her office, pestal address or email inbox by 12:00 noon (AEDT) on 7 November 2017

A candidate may withdraw hssther nomination by 12:00 ncon (AEDT) on 28 November 2017 by prowviding the Retuming Officer with written
notificaton,

Nomination forms are available upon request from the Returring Officer or from the Association's website (vwww. lgnsw org.au) or the
Australian Electoral Commission website (vww aec gov au).

The Ballot If required, will be conducted by the Returmning Officer on Tuesday 5 December 2017 at the Association's Annual Conference,
Wharf Rooms 3. 4 and 5, Hyatt Regency Sydney, 161 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000

Polling will be available between:

8:00am and 10:00am,
11:00am and 11;30am,
1:00pm and 2:00pm, and lastly
3.30pm and 4.00pm

Eligible voters shall be those voting delegates who are from an Ordinary member which was financial on § October 2017 and Board of
Directors who are eligible to vote at the Annual Conference

Voting delegates who cannot be present at the Conference to vote in the election may appoint another delegate from the same member to
exercse the vote Members of the Board who cannot be present at the Conference to vote in the election may appeint another member of
the Board to exsrcise the vote. An Appointment of Proxy form is available from the AEC website (www asc gov su), and must be
received by the Returning Officer by 5:00pm (AEDT) on Monday. 4 December 2017

An Ordinary member of the LGNSW wishing to notfy & change of voting delegate under either rules 34(b) or (c) of the Associaton's Rules
may do so by giving notice in writing signed by either the Mayor or the General Manager of the member to both Ross Nassif (LGNSW) at

ross nassif@lgnsw.org.au and Renee Damasena (AEC Returning Officer) at nswelections@aec gov au, by 5:00pm (AEDT) on Monday, 4
December 2017. A Substitute Delegate — Board Election form is available from the LGNSV website {www lgnsw org au).

A voting delegate who is replaced by another delegate will no longer be entitied to vote and any proxy submitted by the voting delegate waill
be void

Candidates can appoint a scrutineer to represent himfher in the ballot. This must be done in wnting to the Returning Officer, and received
by 4:00pm (AEDT), Tuesday 5 December 2017 Ballot papers for the Cffices of President, Treasurer and Vice Presidents will be counted

at the Annual Conference, \Wharf Rooms 3, 4 and 5 commencing at 4.30pm (AEDT). Ballot papers for the Office of Directors will be
counted at the AEC Office on 8 December 2017 Level 10, 53 Goulburn Street, Haymarket NSW 2000 commencing at 9:30am (AEDT),

How to Lodge Nominations

By Post: Renee Damasena. AEC Returning Officer, PO Box 496, Haymarket NSW 1240

By Email: A properly completed nomination form including all necessary signatures may be scanned and submitted as a pdf
file to nswelections@asc gov au

By Fax: 02 62159910

By Hand: Australian Electoral Commisson, Level 10, 58 Goulburn Street, Haymarket NSW 2000

PLEASE NOTE: Emails to the AEC inbox that appear to be spam may be blocked. Emails greater than 6 MB in
size may not be accepted by the AEC's firewall. it is the responsibility of senders to ensure that their email reaches
the AEC before the deadline for nominations, You may call the Returning Officer to check.

Note: A copy of the AEC's election report can be obtained from the organisation or from me afler the completion of the electon

Renee Damasensa
AEC Returning Officer AE

13 October 2017 Q
Telp: 0293756361 v
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LOCAL
GOVERNMENT
NSW

Qur ref: R15/0015 Out-26718

4 August 2017

Mr Ron Moore
General Manager
Camden Council

PO Box 183
CAMDEN NSW 2570

Dear Mr Moore

'Official notice and instructions for registration:
Local Government NSW Annual Conference 2017

| write to provide you with official notice of this year's Local Government NSW Annual
Conference 2017 (Conference) and to detail important information in addition to the
information provided cn 2 June 2017.

This year's Conference will be held later than usual — from Monday 4 December to
Wednesday 6 December at the Hyatt Regency, Sydney. '

As previously advised, this year'the Conference will involve two types of voting: delegates will
vote on motions which determine the policies and priorities for LGNSW and the sector, and
eligible delegates will vote in elections for the LGNSW Office Bearers and Board.

This letter contains important information on the Conference, about:

Registering to attend the Conference (opens late August) -
Registering to vote for (a) motions (b) Board elections
Submitting motions (open now)

General Conference information

I very much look forward to coming together in December to share ideas and debate sector-
wide issues.

Yours sincerely

M&w@ mecaived 1ML

Cr Keith Rhoades AFSM ' -3 AUG 2077
President

Attachments:

1. Registration - to attend the Conference & ; .

2. ~Registration — as a voting delegate™ "7 . >, ™ ' TJT Tt o o Tngern 'y

3: “Submitting motions ° LRI nal R D SR b AUERTOL D Ik Pl SR e LR 3 (U AR AL L R
4. General Conference information

LOCAL GOVERNMENT NSW

GPO BOX 7003 SYDNEY NSW 2001

LB, 28 MARGARET ST SYDNEY NSW 2000
T029242 6000 FO29242 4111
LGNSW.ORG.AU LGNSWIHLGNSW ORG. AL
ABN 49 853 913 862
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Attachment 1: Registration — to attend the Conference

Registrations open in late August on the LGNSW website. We invite councillors, Mayors, General
Managers and senior staff to register to attend. You will be able to register an individual or group

* Early Bird registration rate is $899 and applies if you register and pay by 23 October
2017

« Standard registration rate is $999 for all registrations from 24 October — 27 November
2017

Members wishing to take advantage of the Early Bird rates but uncertain of councillors' names due
to pending Local Government elections can still register the requisite number of attendees and
confirm names up to and including Monday 23 October 2017 (advising delegates' names and
alterations to delegates' names can be completed online),

Confirmation, Cancellation Policy and Enquiries

Should you be unable to attend, once registered, a substitute delegate is welcome to attend in your
place at no additional charge. All cancellations and amendments must be advised in writing to the
Conference Secretariat, Bradley Hayden, at Bradley@ccem.com.au.

Cancellations made by 5.00pm Monday 27 November 2017 will be eligible for a full refund less a
$110 administration fee per registration. Cancellations made after 5.00pm Monday 27 November
2017 are not refundable.

Note: Voting delegates must be registered to vote on motions and also be registered to attend the
Conference.
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Attachment 2: Registration - as a voting delegate
Separate from Conference registration, financial members must nominate:

(a) the names of their voting delegates for voting on motions and,
(b) where applicable, the names of their voting delegates for voting in the elections for the
Association's Office Bearers and Board.

Voting entitlements

The Association’s Rules require the development of two rolls of voters, one for voting on policy
motions, and a separate roll of voters for voting in the elections for the Association's Office Bearers
and Board. A copy of the Rules may be found at www .fwc gov.aulregistered-organisations/find-

registered-organisations/local-government-and-shires-association-new

Each financial member is entitled to a certain number of voting delegates, The formula for
calculating members' voter entitiements is prescribed at Rule 23 of the Association’s Rules.

Ordinary members will need to nominate the names of their delegate(s) for both types of voting:
voting for the Association's Office Bearers and Board and voting on policy motions.

Associate members will need to nominate the names of their delegate(s) for voting on policy
motions only.

Voting on Policy Motions

Ordinary members and associate members of the Association must be financial on Monday 9
October 2017 to vote on policy motions that require consideration by the Conference.

LGNSW will notify members by Friday 13 October 2017 of the number of voting delegates that
they are entitled to send to the Conference to vote on motions.

Forms for nominating the names of each member's delegate(s) will be made available on the
Assoclation's website by 13 October 2017. Members are encouraged to give early consideration to
nominating the names of voting delegates well before 13 October by internally preparing a
draft/reserve voter list of councillors.

The deadline to provide LGNSW with the names of delegates to vote on policy motions is
Wednesday 1 November. Nominations of voting delegates received after the closing date cannot
be accepted. However a member may substitute the name(s) of one voting delegate for another, at
any time, in line with Rule 34 of the Association's Rules.

Voting for the Association’s Office Bearers and Board

The scheduled election for the Association's Office Bearers and Board is to take place this year. If
an office Is contested, nominated voting delegates will vote by attendance at the Conference on
Tuesday 5 December 2017.

The Australian Electoral Commission (AEC) will conduct the election for the Association's Office
Bearers and Board. Once the AEC issues an election notice inviting nominatiens for Office Bearers
and Board, members can be advised, including of when members are required to tell LGNSW the
names of their voting delegates for the elections. Members and potential candidates who are
interested in the election process and timeline should review the Association's Rules
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Nominating as a candidate for Election for the Association's Office Bearers and Board

To nominate for the Board, a person must be a Councillor of a Council which is an Ordinary
member of the Association or a member of the Board of the Aboriginal Land Council (ALC) if ALC

is an Ordinary member.

Nominations must be made using the prescribed form (which the AEC will make available when it
calls for nominations), and must comply with the above requirements. There is no requirement for
councils to formally endorse a person's nomination as a candidate at a council meeting.

Important dates for voting

Please note the 2017 deadlines for voting.

Deadline

Action

Monday 9 October

Deadline for payment of membership fees (required for your council to be
entitied to vote on policy motions and for the Board)

Friday 13 October

Members notified of number of delegates that can vote on pelicy motions.

At a date to be confirmed
by the AEC

AEC to issue an election notice inviting nominations for Office Bearers and
the Board.

Wednesday 1 November

Deadline for members to provide names to LGNSW of delegates who will
vote on policy motions.

For further information about voting please contact Ms Debra Law, Divisional Coordinator — Member
Services, on 02 9242 4142 or Debra Law@lansw.org.au.
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Attachment 3: Submitting Motions
All members can put forward motions to be considered at the Conference

Members are now invited to submit motions using the online form on the LGNSW Annual
Conference webpage http:/lgnsw.org.au/events-training/local-government-nsw-annual-conferen

The LGNSW Board is working to ensure the motions debate centres on advancing the sector wide
policy agenda in new ways. Proposed motions should be strategic, affect members state-wide and
introduce new or emerging policy issues and actions. Members are encouraged to review the
Action Report of resolutions from the 2016 Conference before submitting motions for the 2017
Conference. The Action Report is available on the LGNSW Annual Conference webpage under
‘Past Conference - 2016,

The Board has resolved that motions will be included in the Business Paper for the Conference
only where they:

1. are consistent with the objects of the Association (see Rule 4 of the Association’s rules);
2. relate to Local Government in NSW and/or across Australia;
3. concern or are likely to concern Local Government as a sector:

4. seek to advance the Local Government policy agenda of the Association and/or improve
governance of the Association;

5. have a lawful purpose (a motion does not have a lawful purpose if its implementation
would require or encourage non-compliance with prevailing laws);

6. are clearly worded and unambiguous in nature; and

7. do not express preference for one or several members over one or several other
members.

For a motion to be included in the Business Paper for the Conference the submitting member
needs to provide accompanying evidence of its support. Such evidence may include an extract of
the minutes of the meeting at which the member resolved to submit the motion for consideration by
the Conference.

Deadline for submitting motions

To allow printing and distribution of the Business Paper before the Conference, members are
asked to submit their motions by COB Monday 9 October 2017. In line with the LGNSW rules, the
latest date motions can be accepted for inclusion in the Conference Business Paper is 12 midnight
on Monday 6 November 2016.

For further information on submitting motions please contact Ms Elizabeth Robertson, Policy
Officer, on 02 9242 4028 or Elizabeth.Ro on@lansw.org.au
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Attachment 4: General Conference information
Business Papers

The full Conference Business Paper is expected to be available on the LGNSW website and
copies forwarded to members approximately one week prior to the Conference.

LGNSW's financial reports will avaiiable to members at least 21 days before the Conference.
Conference Program Outline

Training sessions: When registering for Conference, attendees can also register for afternoon
sessions to be held Monday 4 December. Topics this year are amalgamation case studies, and
elected life and good governance

President's Opening Reception: The opening reception will be held in the evening on Monday 4
December.

First business day of the Conference and the LGNSW Board elections: Voting delegates will
be invited to vote on motions and vote in the Board elections on Tuesday 5 December. The NSW
Premier, the Hon. Gladys Bergjiklian MP has been invited for the opening address

Second business day: The Australian Local Government Women's Association (ALGWA)
Breakfast will be held prior to the business sessions. Day 2 on Wednesday 6 December will
include addresses from Ministers, keynote speakers and concurrent information sessions

Conference Gala Dinner: The dinner will be held on Wednesday 6 December and all those
registered for the Conference may attend.

A detailed program will be available on the LGNSW Annual Conference webpage.
Accommodation

December is a busy time in Sydney and LGNSW encourages delegates to book accommodation as
early as possible to avoid disappointment.

For Conference delegates wishing to stay at the venue (Hyatt Regency) a reduced accommodation
rate is available from Sunday 3 December until Thursday 7 December. For group bookings please
contact Ashley Markovic, Group Reservations Coordinator, on 02 92980 4812 or

| rkovic@h

Outstanding Service Awards

The Outstanding Service Awards will be presented at the Conference Gala Dinner. For information
about the Awards, including where to apply and eligibility, please check the LGNSW website,

Privacy Statement

LGNSW, which is regulated by the Privacy Act 1988 (Cth), collects private information about
registered attendees to the Conference such as names, addresses, telephone numbers, credit
card information and email addresses. We use the private information you give us to process your
registration and to send you information in relation to the Conference.

If you choose not to provide some or all of the private information that we have sought, LGNSW
may be unable to process your registration or it may result in you being unable to vote at the
Conference, Further information about how LGNSW collects, holds and uses private information is
contained in LGNSW's Privacy Policy which is available on the website at the following web
address: http://www.lgnsw.org.au/privacy.
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P3.0125.1 -Road Naming Policy

PART 1 - INTRODUCTION

1.  OBJECTIVE

1.1

To provide consistent guidelines for Developers, the Community and Council
when allocating new road names, or changing the name of existing roads.

1.2 To ensure road names are appropriate, will stand the test of time and
preferably are of local or historical significance.

1.3  To adopt the Geographical Names Board (GNB) of NSW road naming
guidelines as the basis for considering road names.

1.4  To establish a list of names for new roads within the local area in consultation
with the community.

2. SCOPE

21  Council is the authority responsible for the naming or re-naming of public
roads for which it is the roads authority.

22 Council's naming authority refers to any road under the control of Council

including public roads or a road that is to be dedicated to Council by way of a
subdivision of land but excludes roads under the control of any State
Government Authority or private road.

PART 2 - POLICY STATEMENT

3.  Guidelines for Assigning Road Names

31

3.2

The key principles adopted by Council when determining Road Names are:

3.1.1 Council's preferred source of road naming includes names from local
history, including early explorers, settlers and other eminent local persons
and geographical features , both physical and human;

3.1.2 Names should be appropriate to the physical, historical or cultural
character of the area concemed;

3.1.3 Thematic names will be given preference where the theme relates to that
area;

3.14 The local Aboriginal Land Councll must be consulted when using
Aboriginal names;

3.1.5 Names of living persons should be avoided, however this does not
include family names;

3.1.6 Names which are offensive or likely to give offence, out of place or

commercial in nature {including estate marketing names) will not be

supported;

.7 Council's preferred road naming list should wherever possible be used;

8 This policy is a living document and will be added to over time.

When developers proposed road names they must provide supporting
information to justify that their names comply with this policy,

4.  Process of Road Naming

4.1

The following procedure is adopted by Council when considering road naming
proposails:

ROAD NAMING POLICY
Adopted by Council. 25 February 2014
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41.1 A proposal shall demonstrate how they satisfy Council's Road Naming
Policy, in particular the guidelines and the GNB Road Naming Policy.

4.1.2 The proposal shall wherever possible use names sourced from Council's
Preferred Road Naming List.

4.1.3 The procedure outlined by the GNB will be followed.

NEXT REVIEW DATE: March 2019

ROAD NAMING POLICY
Adopted by Council. 25 February 2014

Page 3013
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Minutes
Business Assurance and Risk Committee
Meeting
30 August 2017

Executive Boardroom
Camden Council
Administration Building
70 Central Avenue

Oran Park

5:00PM
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BUSINESS ASSURANCE AND RISK COMMITTEE
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Minutes of the Business Assurance and Risk Committee - 30 August 2017

Voting Members Present:

John Gordon Independent Member (Chair)
Bruce Hanrahan Independent Member
Elizabeth Gavey Independent Member

Cr Peter Sidgreaves Camden Council Councillor

Attendees:

General Manager

Chief Financial Officer
Internal Audit Coordinator
Risk Management Officer
Senior Governance Officer

Invitees:

Director Customer and Corporate Strategy
Director Community Assets

Director Planning and Environment

Acting Director Sport, Community and Recreation
Chief Information Officer

Manager Governance and Risk

Manager Civil Construction and Maintenance
Acting Manager Corporate Performance and Customer Service
Manager Waste and Compliance (arrived 5:30pm)
Team Leader Waste Unit (arrived 5:30pm)

Team Leader Technical Support and Infrastructure
Business Assurance Support Officer

Apologies:

Cr Theresa Fedeli Camden Council Councillor

Caroline Karakatsanis Audit Office of NSW (External Auditor)
Alexio Chibika PricewaterhouseCoopers (External Auditor)

Mr Gordon opened the meeting at 5:05pm introducing the newest independent member
Ms Gavey. Ms Gavey provided a brief summary of her background.

BUSO1  APOLOGIES
RECOMMENDED

That leave of absence be granted to Councillor Fedeli from the Business Assurance
and Risk Committee meeting.

DECISION

That Councillor Fedeli be granted leave of absence.

BUSO02 DECLARATION OF INTEREST
RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee declarations be noted.

Minutes of the Business Assurance and Risk Committee Meeting held on 30 August 2017 - Page 3

Attachments for the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 24 October 2017 - Page 259

ORD11

Attachment 1



ORD11

Attachment 1

Attachment 1

Minutes of the Business Assurance and Risk Committee - 30 August 2017

DISCUSSION

Mr Gordon advised that he has been appointed as a member of the Liverpool City
Council and Inner West Council Audit Committees as well as to the Board for the
Salvation Army Overseas Development (SAID) division of the Salvation Army Eastern
and Southern Territories.

Ms Gavey advised that she is a member of the Audit Committees for City of Ryde and
Georges River Councils along with Mr Gordon.

DECISION

That the declarations of interest be noted.

BUS03  MINUTES TO THE 17 MAY 2017 BUSINESS ASSURANCE AND RISK
COMMITTEE MEETING

RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee approve the minutes to the 17 May
2017 Business Assurance and Risk Committee meeting.

DISCUSSION

Mr Gordon commented on the Business Assurance and Risk Committee Charter
outstanding action item. The Internal Audit Coordinator advised that as previously
agreed the review of the Charter was on held until the Office of Local Government
releases its discussion paper on the proposed framework for local government. This
was expected this calendar year.

DECISION

The Business Assurance and Risk Committee approve the minutes and action items
for the 17 May 2017 Business Assurance and Risk Committee meeting.

Moved: Mr Hanrahan
Seconded: Cr Sidgreaves

BUS04 ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT / BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT
PLAN INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT

RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee note the Organisational
Development / Business Improvement Plan Internal Audit Report.

DISCUSSION

The Internal Audit Coordinator provided a summary of the broad findings from the
Organisational Development/Business Improvement Plan audit and explained the
context in which the audit was undertaken. Management was commended for their
approach to the audit.

Mr Gordon commented on the unusual nature of this audit and commended the ability
and attitude of Management to undertake such a project.

Minutes of the Business Assurance and Risk Committee Meeting held on 30 August 2017 - Page 4
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The Acting Manager Corporate Performance and Customer Service advised she found
the audit to be highly valuable and supported the recommendations made

DECISION

The Business Assurance and Risk Committee note the Organisational Development /
Business Improvement Plan internal Audit Report.

The Acting Manager Corporate Performance and Customer Service left the meeting
after this item.

BUS05 INFORMATION SECURITY VULNERABILITY SCAN INTERNAL AUDIT
REPORT

RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee note the Vulnerability Scan Audit
Report.

DISCUSSION

Mr Gordon requested specifics of what the audit involved. The Chief Information Officer
advised that the audit was a vulnerability scan and explained the difference between a
vulnerability scan and a penetration test. The Chief Information Officer also highlighted
that the firm engaged to undertake the review could not access Council's networks to
undertake the scan without assistance from IT staff which highlighted the strength of
Council's system securities.

Mr Gordon asked whether there were any surprises from the audit and the Chief
Information Officer advised that there were not.

The Chief Information Officer supported the recommendations made and the Team
Leader Technical Support and Infrastructure informed the Cemmittee of some of the
work undertaken to keep Council systems secure.

Mr Gordon recommended checking Council's system security against the security
standard.

Cr Sidgreaves asked if we knew how many attempted breaches had been made on
Council’s networks. The Chief Information Officer advised that although he did not have
that information to hand he could find out.

Ms Gavey asked about Councils risk appetite as there were a number of
recommendations that were noted as ‘risk accepted’. The Internal Audit Coordinator
and the General Manager both advised that all recommendations go to Council's
Executive Leadership Group and the Management response is approved prior to
finalisation of the report.

DECISION

The Business Assurance and Risk Committee:
i Note the Vulnerability Scan Audit Report
ii. Requested to be advised of the average number of attempted hacks on
Council's system.
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The Chief Information Officer and Team Leader Technical Support and Infrastructure
left the meeting after this item

BUS06 ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK - UPDATE AND
DRAFT POLICY

RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee:

i. Note the status update on the establishment of Council's Enterprise Risk
Management Framework;
ii. Note the draft Enterprise Risk Management Policy.

DISCUSSION

The Risk Management Officer updated the Committee on the Enterprise Risk
Management Framework and advised that the first risk registers had now been
finalised. Staff are becoming more aware of ERM and asking questions around risks.
Training to date has been aimed at the senior level and is still to filter down to other
relevant staff.

Mr Gordon asked where Council would likely sit using the Audit Office's Risk Maturity
Assessment tool and the Internal Audit Coordinator advised Council would likely be in
the developing stage and noted that Enterprise Risk Management is included in the
proposed 3 year internal audit program.

The Committee asked a number of questions around the policy and suggested some
minor improvements.

DECISION
The Business Assurance and Risk Committee

i. Note the status update on the establishment of Council's Enterprise Risk
Management Framework;
ii. Note the draft Enterprise Risk Management Policy.

BUSO7 AUDIT REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS - IMPLEMENTATION STATUS
UPDATE - JULY 2017

RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee note the Implementation Status
Update for July 2017.

DISCUSSION

Mr Gordon asked about the 21 high risk recommendations that are overdue. The
Internal Audit Coordinator advised that the implementation of online requisitioning
impacts many of the overdue recommendations and a staged rolled out of this system
had commenced early August. The Chief Financial Officer spoke to a number of interim
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controls that have been implemented to mitigate the risks.

The Director of Community Assets and Manager Civil Construction and Maintenance
advised that resourcing issues had impacted completion of a number of the Inventory
and plant replacement audit recommendations and that an external resource has been
engaged to assist with implementation of some recommendations.

DECISION

The Business Assurance and Risk Committee note the Implementation Status Update
for July 2017.

BUS08 'PROJECT 24' - REGIONAL DOMESTIC WASTE PROCESSING AND
DISPOSAL TENDER PROJECT

RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee review the proposed project
methodology for 'Project 24" and provide feedback.

DISCUSSION

The Manager Waste and Compliance gave a brief overview of the project and advised
that given the large dollar value of the project, the need for good governance is critical
and as such the Committee is being consulted.

The Committee raised a number of questions around the structure of the arrangement
and the need to obtain legal advice around key components. The procurement process
around legal representation was also discussed

Mr Gordon advised that it was a well written report and the Committee acknowledged
that it addressed many potential risks.

DECISION

The Business Assurance and Risk Committee:

i Note the proposed project methodology for ‘Project 24'

ii, Requested that a 'Project 24’ risk register be brought to a future Business
Assurance and Risk Committee meeting.

The Manager Waste and Compliance and Team Leader Waste Unit left after this item.

BUS09  INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN STATUS UPDATE
RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee note the Internal Audit Plan Status
Update.

DISCUSSION
Council’s Internal Audit Coordinator provided an update on the status of progress

against the current Internal Audit Plan and advised that a revised three year audit plan
is reported as a separate agenda item to this Committee meeting.
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DECISION
The Business Assurance and Risk Committee note the Internal Audit Plan Status
Update.

BUS10  BUSINESS ASSURANCE STRATEGY AND INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN
RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee:

i. approves the revised Business Assurance Strategy,
ii. approves the new three year rolling Internal Audit Plan covering the period 1
July 2017 to 30 June 2020.

DISCUSSION

The Internal Audit Coordinator advised that the Business Assurance Strategy is
required to be reviewed every two years and had been updated to incorporate the
introduction of Council’s Enterprise Risk Framework.

The Internal Audit Coordinator also presented the proposed three year Internal Audit
Plan for the period 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2020. It was advised that this was developed
after considering Council's risk registers, industry risks and consultation with the Senior
Management Team and Executive Leadership Group.

Mr Gordon asked if a panel is used for external engagements. The Internal Audit
Coordinator advised each engagement undergoes a separate quotation process. Mr
Gordon recommended that this approach is not changed as a panel can lead to an
implied commitment to use each party equally which may not suit the proposed audit

program.

A number of questions were raised by the Committee members around the timing of
certain items in the Plan including WHS, legislative compliance and social media. The
Internal Audit Coordinator explained the reason for the timing and the Committee
accepted those explanations,

Mr Gordon requested that a WWHS report, based on reports already developed for use
by management, be tabled at every alternate meeting showing statistics on WHS
incidents and cost of insurances.

Mr Gordon also recommended development of an assurance map demonstrating
where assurance is provided across variocus activities of Council. This could be done
as the enterprise risk management function matures.

Ms Gavey questioned whether a review of charge cards would be included in the

corporate card review. The Internal Audit Coordinator advised this would be covered
within the audits on the Plan.

DECISION
The Business Assurance and Risk Committee:
i. approves the revised Business Assurance Strategy;,

il. approves the new three year rolling Internal Audit Plan covering the period 1
July 2017 to 30 June 2020
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iii. requested a WHS report be tabled at each alternate meeting showing statistics
on WHS incidents and cost of insurances.

Moved: Mr Gordon
Seconded: Ms Gavey

BUS1M1 EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE
RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee note the external audit update.
DISCUSSION

As there was no representatives in attendance for external audit, the Internal Audit
Coordinator provided an update on external audit activities. The Internal Audit
Coordinator advised that the interim audit was complete and that the external auditor
had advised there will be no interim audit management letter this year with findings to
be included in the year-end audit management letter. The Committee will be advised of
a suitable date to review the draft Financial Statements for the YE 30/6/2017 for
endorsement prior to the Statements being presented to Council.

DECISION

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee note the external audit update

BUS12  BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLAN REVIEW
RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee:

i. note the status update on Council’'s Business Continuity Plan review;
ii. note the draft Business Continuity Plan.

DISCUSSION

Councils Risk Management Officer informed the Committee that the Plan provided is
an update for the Oran Park Administration Centre. It was advised that scenario testing
will also be conducted to test the effectiveness of the Plan.

Ms Gavey highlighted a couple of inconsistencies within the document that the
Manager Governance and Risk advised would be corrected and Mr Gordon suggested
that ‘terrorist’ type attacks should be considered for inclusion in the classifications.

The Committee noted the comprehensiveness of the plan

DECISION

The Business Assurance and Risk Committee;

i. Note the status update on Council’'s Business Continuity Plan review;
ii. Note the draft Business Continuity Plan.
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BUS13  GOVERNANCE INFORMATION REPORT - JUNE 2017
RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee note the Govermnance Information
Report.

DISCUSSION

The Intemal Audit Coordinator explained that this is a six monthly standing report to the
Committee including governance related statistics. Compliments and complaints
information has been provided for the first time.

DECISION

The Business Assurance and Risk Committee note the Governance Information
Report.

BUS14  POLICIES PRESENTED TO THE COMMITTEE
RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee:

i. Note the Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy and Plan
ii. Note the Related Party Disclosures Policy and associated documents

DISCUSSION

Mr Gordon requested the inclusion of ‘Councillors’ in a number of sections of the Fraud
and Corruption Prevention documentation. The Manager of Governance and Risk
advised Council would take these requests into consideration.

Mr Gordon and Ms Gavey raised a number of questions on the Related Party Policy
and associated documentation particularly in relation to ensuring disclosure of related
party transactions that are material by nature. The Chief Financial Officer explained
how such information was being captured.

DECISION
The Business Assurance and Risk Committee:

i. Note the Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy and Plan
ii. Note the Related Party Disclosures Policy and associated documents.

BUS15 BOTANY BAY (OPERATION RICCO) INDEPENDENT COMMISSION
AGAINST CORRUPTION REPORT

RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee note the report.
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DISCUSSION

Mr Gordon praised the summary provided by the Internal Audit Coordinator and noted
he had not seen anything like this from other Councils

Discussion was had around the Botany Bay case where external audit management
letters had not been presented to their Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Coordinator
advised that in line with the current approach, all management letters issued to
Camden Council will be presented to the Business Assurance and Risk Committee in
full.

DECISION

The Business Assurance and Risk Committee note the report.

BUS16  GENERAL BUSINESS
RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee note any General Business items
discussed.

DISCUSSION

The General Manager discussed reasons for bringing forward the project management
audit including the materiality of our Capital Works program.

Mr Gordon spoke to project management being a risk across all Councils and the
importance of ensuring that what we deliver is what we intended to deliver.

The Intenal Audit Coordinator advised the Committee that under the Business
Assurance and Risk Committee Charter we are required to assess the performance of
the Committee. To facilitate this a questionnaire will be sent to Committee members
and attendees around the Committees operations with results to be reported back to
the November Committee meeting.

DECISION

The Business Assurance and Risk Committee note the General Business items
discussed.

Next Meeting:

The next meeting of the Business Assurance and Risk Committee will be held on 12
October 2017 at Oran Park Executive Board Room, commencing at 5.30pm.

The meeting closed at 7.30pm.
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& Y Camden Council

- Minutes

council

Business Assurance and Risk Committee
Meeting
12 October 2017

Executive Boardroom
Camden Council
Administration Building
70 Central Avenue

Oran Park

5.30PM
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Meeting commenced at 5.55pm and at the conclusion of the meeting, the Committee
met separately “in-camera" with Council's External Audit representatives from
PriceWaterhouseCoopers (pwc) and the Audit Office of NSW, to discuss the audit.

Voting Members present:

John Gordon Independent Member (Chair)
Bruce Hanrahan Independent Member
Elizabeth Gavey Independent Member

Cr Peter Sidgreaves Camden Council Councillor

Attendees:

Chief Financial Officer
Internal Audit Coordinator
Invitees:

External Auditor — pwc (Marc Upcroft)

External Auditor — Audit Office of NSW via teleconference {Caroline Karakatsanis)
Director Customer and Corporate Strategy

Director Community Assets

Director Planning and Environment

Director Sport, Community and Recreation

Senior Financial Accountant

Apologies:

Cr Theresa Fedeli
General Manager

BUSO1 Apologies
RECOMMENDED

That leave of absence be granted to Councillor Fedeli from the Business Assurance
and Risk Committee meeting.

DECISION

That Councillor Fedeli be granted leave of absence.

BUS02 Declaration Of Interest
RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee declarations be noted.
DECISION

No declarations of interest were made.
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BUSO03 Minutes To The 30 August 2017 Business Assurance and Risk
Committee Meeting

RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee:

i approve the minutes to the 30 August 2017 Business Assurance and Risk
Committee meeting.

DISCUSSION

The Business Assurance and Risk Committee noted that any actions on the action plan
were deferred to the next full Business Assurance and Risk Committee meeting.

DECISION

The Business Assurance and Risk Committee approve the minutes to the 30 August
2017 Business Assurance and Risk Committee meeting

Moved: Mr Hanrahan
Seconded: Ms Gavey

BUS04 Review Of Financial Statements And External Audit Reports For The
Year Ended 30 June 2017

RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee:
i Note the Client Service Report;

il. endorse the General Purpose Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June
2017 for submission to Council for adoption;

iii. endorse the Special Purpose Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June
2017 for submission to Council for adoption,

iv. endorse Special Schedules 1-8 for the year ended 30 June 2017 for submission
to Council for adoption.

DISCUSSION

Mr Gordon and the Committee acknowledged the high standard of the package of
financial statements and a job well done as the Committee did not have any concerns
with the content of the statements.

The Chief Financial Officer outlined Council’'s operating result and financial position,
highlighting that Council is in a positive position. This included highlighting Council’s
strong ratios. The Chief Financial Officer explained the reasons for significant changes
from prior years including the growth in the Camden Local Government Area,
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Mr Gordon asked if Camden remains the highest growth Council in the State. The
Director Customer and Corporate Strategy explained that we are one of the highest
growing in the country, especially in relation to housing development.

The Chief Financial Officer highlighted the new Valuer-General valuations for land
under roads.

The Chief Financial Officer also highlighted key points from Special Schedule 7.

Mr Gordon asked if there are any significant changes in accounting treatment the
Committee should be aware of. it was confirmed that the related parties disclosures
were the main change for this year and that information was collected and disclosed as
required.

Pwc's representative addressed the Committee on the audit. Mr Upcroft outlined the
challenges and changes this year across the sector with the introduction of the Auditor-
General’s oversight and bringing some consistency to accounting treatments. Mr
Upcroft highlighted that most of the challenges had not impacted Camden Council.

Mr Upcroft highlighted that the Client Service Report outlining the results of the audit
had been issued to the Committee and it was a clean report.

The Audit Office representative Ms Karakatsanis confirmed pwc's comments. The Audit
Office also highlighted that there are no uncorrected misstatements in the financial
statements. The only matter raised in the Client Service report is a sector wide
comment around property valuations.

The external auditors advised that the Management Representation Letter (MRL) was
with Council to be finalised and that the Committee did not have any specific actions in
relation to the MRL, However the Committee noted that Council should send the
Committee a copy of the draft MRL for noting prior to it being signed.

The Audit Office acknowledged both Council's Chief Financial Officer and his team,
and pwc for being very helpful in making the transition to the Auditor-General's
oversight as easy as it can be.

Mr Gordon acknowledged the performance of Council’s management team highlighting
that no issues had been identified. Mr Gordon also acknowledged the assistance of the
external auditors in completing the audit during an extremely busy time for both
organisations.

Mr Gordon asked the rest of the Committee for comments or questions,

Mr Hanrahan advised that he found the accounts easy to understand and has
confidence Camden Council is in good shape. Mr Hanrahan advised that as a non-
auditor and citizen of the local government area he has no questions which is a credit
to Council staff.

Ms Gavey echoed statements already made advising the financial statements are a
very clean set of accounts. Ms Gavey highlighted that the Executive Summary was of
great value and that there were clear explanations for any changes. Ms Gavey advised
that she has some minor typos that she will send through via email. Ms Gavey
highlighted Note 27 that she found well explained and easy to follow.

Mr Gordon advised that he had already discussed his queries/suggested changes prior
to the meeting and that they are being addressed by the Chief Financial Officer.
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Mr Gordon asked the Chief Financial Officer if there are any events after balance date,
litigation and/or possible frauds the Committee needs to be aware of The Chief
Financial Officer advised there is nothing he is aware of,

Councillor Sidgreaves advised he is very pleased with the results. Councillor
Sidgreaves advised the explanations in the ratios and the cover report help to explain
Camden’s unique situation. Councillor Sidgreaves also highlighted his appreciation that
a Client Service Report is now being issued to the Mayor to provide her independent
assurance to sign the financial statements.

The Audit Office representative explained that all significant reports, including the

Conduct of the Audit Report and management letter, will be forwarded to the Mayor as
well as the Chair of the Committee.

The Chief Financial Officer acknowledged the performance of Council's Senior
Financial Accountant in preparing the financial statements to such a high quality.

The Director Corporate and Customer Strategy, in the General Manager's absence,

also thanked the Audit Office of NSW and pwec for their assistance in the first year of

this process.

DECISION

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committes:

i. Note the Client Service Report;

ii. endorse the General Purpose Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June
2017 for submission to Council for adoption subject to minor corrections or

disclosure improvements advised separately to the Chief Financial Officer;

iii. endorse the Special Purpose Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June
2017 for submission to Council for adoption;

v. endorse Special Schedules 1-8 for the year ended 30 June 2017 for submission
to Council for adoption.

BUS05 General Business
RECOMMENDED

That the Business Assurance and Risk Committee note any General Business items
discussed.

DISCUSSION

The Internal Audit Coordinator advised that to enable the minutes to this meeting to be
presented to Council with the financial statements, a fast turn-around on their
preparation and approval will be required. The Committee advised they did not see an
issue with the timeframe.

DECISION

The Business Assurance and Risk Committee noted the General Business items
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discussed.

Next Meeting:

The next meeting of the Business Assurance and Risk Committee is tentatively
scheduled for 22 NOVEMBER 2017 at Oran Park Executive Board Room, commencing
at 5.30pm.

The meeting closed at 6.25pm followed by the 'in-camera’ session with the external
auditors that was completed by 6.45pm.
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